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Income statement and total comprehensive income

INCOME STATEMENT
207
Note 2ms Rastated”
Continued operations
Coerating evejue gic 42163 40 868
Cost of goods and cnanges 0 iventory {17 867) {16787
Wages and otrer personiel expensas il (13 963) 13828)
Other operating expenses il {5936) {4 B98)
QOperating profit before depreciation and amortisation ] 4 397 5558
Depreciation and amorhisation 1516 {(2097) {2 209}
mpalrment charges 121506 (213) (280
Operating profit [*] 2 087 3069
Financial income i3 704 a58
Financial expenses 1z {1987 (2007
Share of brotit of equity accounted compames 17 626 623
Profit before tax g 1420 2643
lncome tax expense 4 (as0) &0
Profit for the year continued operations 9 930 1793
Discontinued operaticns
Zrofit for the penod from discont nuec operations net of tax 2 438 306
Result for the year 1368 2659
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the oarent . 906 1517
Minority interests 23 462 1182
Result for the year 1368 2699
Weighled average numnoer of outstandmy shares 22 74 282137 74 292 680
Earnings per share ¥ 22
Earings ner share continued operations 7.08 1504
Earanigs per share drsconbinued ooerations 51 449
Earnings pe- share 12,19 2643




TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note 2018 2017
Resuli for tne year 1368 2£90
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Itens thet will ~ot pe -eclassified to income statement.
Tef ned bere t plan actuar al gains {Josses) 26 {B2) eG;
Equity investments at FVOC! - net change in fair value 66
temns that will not pe reclassitied Lo ncome statement (18) 1603
Ires that subsequently may De reclassihed 1o income staterent
Deot investments at FYOC! - net change :n “air value &6 -
Crarges o tair value of avaizble for sale fimanoal assets - 3
Crangas In fair value 0f cash 11ow nedges (95} 340
Reclassitied to prodt or ioss debr ~vestments at FVOC, transiation, cash f ow hodges and
i1 2017 avallable-for-sale f.narcial assets (478) (50)
Cunency translation differences 515 {240
Cranges 1n other comprenasive ncame assocates and jont venfures iz 113% ) (974
tems that SJbSéTC]UE“ﬂy may be reclassified to income stete'm-;nt 1 OBT - {923}
Change in other comprehensive income, net of tax 374,24 1 065_ (9835
Total comprehensive incoma for the year 2433 176
Attributable to:
Equity molders of the parent 2219 534
Minority inieresis 24 1°82

Totaf comprehensive income for the year 2433 1716




Balance sheet at 31 December

Ncia 2018 2017
ASSETS
Property, olant and equipmeni 15 18 262 22°78
[Miangise assels 6 10976 9482
Doterrad tax assets ) 1059 135G
IMvestments in equuty accounted compaies 7 23348 21624
Interast-pearing non-current receivaoles 618 1304 5363
Other snares gnd non-current assets i9 212 1677
Total non-current assets 67 070 61675
Inventonies 20 1752 2160
T-ade receivaoles a1 olner interest-free recevadles 21 13146 1 266
Caiculaied lax recevabie 14 146 252
Derivatives 30 406 58
interest-nearing current recevables 618 451 324
Casn and cash equivalents o &4 9 786 B 148
Total current assets B - 25688 22909
Asse's classfied as held for sale 8 - -
Total assets 2 92 758 £4 588
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Paid-n capital 22 2 331 2331
Translation and olher reserves 24 3618 2545
Retaimed earnings 16 051__ . mﬁilg,
lotal equity altrioutanle to equity holders of the parent 22009 2155
Minority interests 23 19908 18 905
Total equity 41918 AG 059
Interest-peanng nen-current iabdites 6.25 24 745 255068
Deferred tax labiiies 14 515 77
Panzion latlities 26 1183 1159
Other interest-free non-current Haalities 27 az7 627
NOO-Curreni provisions 28 221 503
Total non-current liabilities _ 27 499 26 205
interest-bearing current sanilities 625 5682 4616
Trade and other payables z9 14 529 11 636
Income lax payable i 168 134
Derivatives 30 585 507
Current orovisions o 28 2343 1393
Total current liabilities - 23306 18 286
Total liabilities 50808 44 491
Liabilities classified as Felc for sale 8 34 37
Total equity and liabilities G 92 758 54 588
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Total
equity of
Total equity
Total Tans. Far {ranglation holders
DaIG-In lation value Hedging andother Retained ofthe Minonty  Total
Note canifal  resenvg resprues  resenves Teserges  £aTinigs parent |nferests  equity
Balance at 31 December 2016 2330 3547 108 25) 3518 15994 21842 1B177 40019
“roft for the year 2017 - - P 517 1517 1782 2699
Otner comip-ehensive Income 29 cvn 1o 138 (973) ao (983) (983)
Total comprehensive income cn ' 10 188 973 1508 534 1182 1718
oividends - - {1188) {1188) 387) (1575)
Snare-based paymen: transactions 2 2 z
Total contributions and distributions - (1186)  (1185)  (387) (1573
AcauiRilion and sa e of minority 723 - (22) 22) 74 (96}
Issuance of shaes in subsidiaries 23 - 7 7
Total changes in ownership without change of -
control - (22) @22) 67 (89)
Transaction cost shars 1ssue I associated company - (15) (%) - (15)
Balance at 31 December 2017 2224 2ER) 370 N3 &2 2545 1h 279 21155 13805 40059
Impact of changes In accounting policies 3 - 4 (513 42 (267) 2490 23 22 45
Balance at 1 January 2018 2331 2374 (‘200) 105 2278 16569 21178 18927 40105
Pro‘it for the perioa year 2018 - aCe 906 452 1368
Other Comprenansive 1ieomes 24 - 1348 86 (95) 1340 {27y 1313 248y 1065
Total comprehensive income 13418 86 (94) 1340 §79 2219 214 2433
Dividends - {1338y {1338) (495} (1836)
Own shares and share-pased payment transactions - (26) (26) (26)
Total contributions and distributions - - - (1364 (0364) (498) (1862)
Acquisition and sale of rinornity 723 - amn N 37 20
Issuarice of shares in sudsiciaries 23 - - (93 [¢)] 1229 1220
TI':Ji:ai changes in ownership without change‘c;f T
control (26} (26) 1266 1240
Transaclion wits rinority interests i jomnl ventures R ;? L WZ_ o 2
‘Baiance at 31 December 2018 22-24 2331 3722 [HED) W0 3618 16061 22009 19908 419518




Cash flow statement

2017
MNote 2018 Res-ated”
=it pefore tax 1420 28432
Nat 1mrerast expenses iz 1274 152
Sales losses/gains - and wrile-downs 240 27G
dIn-eaiised fare g1 excnange gan/ioss and other non-casn iitems 135 7
Sepreciabon and amorisalion i5lg 2097 2209
Snigre of aa*mings i1 associales and Joint veniyres 17 (1019) (1225)
Canclend recewed fom associates and joint ventures 17 1787 175
Changes due to discontinued operahions and otner net ope-aling assers and lianiities 805_)_ o A{? €3]}
Cash flow from operating activities before interest and tax 6743 a7
interest nai (1566) {1439
interasy raceived 270 274
Taxes pad (185) (597)
Net cash fow from operating activities 5 262 2414
Pracoeds from saies of property, olant, equipment ana intangile asseis 1516 204 32
Pepreeds from sales of s1ares and otner equity Investments 520 438
Disposals of subsichiares, net of cash disposed & 1786 868
Acquisitions of subsicianes. net of casn acquired 7 (205) [GHD)
Acauisitions of prepesty. plant, equinment and intangible assets 1516 (2 215) (3456)
Acguisitions of snares and cquity Investmants in other cormoanies (1018) (24733
Acquisition of vessels accounted for as finance lease 8 (3 343) {398)
Net cast flow from otrer investments 18 (396} 2029
Net cash flow from investing activities T (4 667 (3472
Proceeds from ssue of interest-nearning debt 5 9129 5 854
Repayment of inlerest-bearning deot 25 {7 315) 8701
ﬁNet repayment and issue of interest-bearing debt T 1814 (i 847}
New equiy o 23 a7 7
Owen shares . 37 [0
Dividends paid £23 a73n (15753
Net cash flow from transactions with owners o ) (857) 11578}
Net cash flow from financing activities 857 3425}
V]‘let change in cash and cash equivaieﬁts - 1552 {4482
Effecis of changes n exchange rates on cash 86 28
Casn and cash equivalents at 1 January 8148 12 718
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December g 9 786 £148




Notes to the financial statements

Note 1| Corporate information

P
L

Axgr ADA 1S a Company domiciled in horway, wt neadgaatens atiTornenud outsice Osle, and iisted o7 the Dslo Shoc< Lxchange wiln Lne Lioker "AKER".
Aler's 2018 consolidated fnanc el statements rolude the Singncial statements of 1o pRiect o pany. Axer ASA, TS SLDSICIAT €5, 370 INTRreasis in

assoclaied companies and oinlly covtrolied entities.

Note 2 | Basis for preparation and estimates and assumptions

2.1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Awer nias preparec its consolidated finanaal statements in accordance
with Internatianal Finangial Reporling Standards {IFRSs) and associated
nternretations as determined by tne EU as at 31 Decemper 2018

and Norwegian disclosure reguirements pursuant (o tne Norwegian
accounting act as 37 31 December 2018, The canschdated f.nancial
staternents have neen prenared on a nistorical cost basss, with a few
axceptions described i section 25,

The consolidated Lresozl staterments for tne 2018 sccounting year
were aoproved by the Board of directars an 28 March 2019, The annual
accounits will pe suomitted to A«er's annual ganeral meeting on 26 Apr.|
2018 for final apg-oval,

2.2. FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

"he consolidated f:narcial statements are presented in mill:on Norweglan
kroner [ne Narwegian krone (NOK) 1s the functionsl currency of ine
parent company. As 2 result of rourding differences, amauns and
percentages May not add up to tne total,

2.3. USE OF ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

“he preparation of annual fingncial stazements in conformty witr IFRS
requires management to make Judgmen:s, estimates and assumpoticns
that alfect the reperted amownts of assets and liabilhes, meome and
exgenses. Acual results may differ from amounts arrived at based on
these assumations Estimates and underhying assumptinns are reviewed
and assessad 071 an on-going tasis, and are pased on hustonical axperience,
consultations with experts, trends and other methods whicn management
consigers reasoraole under the circumstances. Changes ta accourting
estimaies are recognised in tha penod in wnich Lie estimates are revised
and in future per-ocs if affected.

Areas i walcn, in aophng the group's accounting orincioles, there tends
to be unceriaint es as to material estimations and critical assumnnons
and assessnents, are described 11 the following paragranhs and in
relevant notes to the accounts, The group's overaticnal companies
operate in different marxets. and are thus affected differantly by the
uncertaintes that characterise the different markets.

(a) Consolidation

IFRS 1G cortains a defimutson of control, which must be applied wnen an
nvestor is ta assess wnether an investrnent must be consolidated In the
consel dated financial statements. The assessment of control Involves
figh degree of judgements. Sae Note 9

(b) Revenue recognition

Revenue [rom constrachion contracts and other contracts with custorers
where the performance obligations are sausf ed over time. are recognsed
according te progress. This method requ res estimates of the #nal
ravenue and costs of the contract, as well as costs incurred to date

For contract -evenue, there are uncertanties related to recoveranie
ameLints from vasiaiion orders and ncentve payments. These are
recognssed when it s deemed to e highly probalile fatf a significant
revenue reversal will not oceur. Coniract revenue s adzJsted Dy
management’s evaluation of kquidaled damaqes 1o e imoosed by
customers typicallv relating to contractua delivery tevms,

The nroject costs depend on aroduclivity factors and the cost of mauts
Weatner conditions the nerfermance of subcontractors and olhers vatn
animpact an scheduies, commodity prices and currency rates can all
a"fect cost estimates. Althaugn exgerence, use of the established oroject
execution modsl and hign comostence reduce the nisk. trere will always
ce Lncertanty related to sucn assessTents

Ihe estimation uncerlainty durimg tne eary stages of a cantract is often
large. No prafin s recognizea unless the autcore of @ pe-formance
chiligation can be measured reliaoly, usually at approximately 20 percent
Grogress. However, management can on 3 praiec!-ny-project Dasis give
anproval of eartier racognition If the uncertainties of cost estumnates gre
fow Trus is typicaily 1 situations of -epeat projects, prove~ tecnoiagy or
aroven axecution model. See Note 9 anc 10,

(¢} Warranty provisions

Al the completion of a project, a provision is made ‘or expacied warranty
expenditures. Based on experiznice, tne provision is often set at one per
cent of the contract value, but can also be a higner o7 lower amount
follewing a specific evaluation of tne actual o rcumstances for each
contract. Both the general one per cent provision and the evaluation

of project specific Qrcumstarces are based on experience from garle
projects. Factors that could a*fect the estimated war-anty cost include
the group's guality miliatives. Provisions aze gresenied in Note 28

{d} iImpairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful fives.

In accordance witn anolcable accounting nrnciples, the group performs
annual mparmeryt tess Lo determine whether goodwill and intangible
assets racorded in the balance sneet have suffered any impairment. The
estimated recoverasle amount for casn-generating units are deterrmined
based on the present value of budgeted cash flows or estimated sales value
less cost {o sell if igher. See Note 12,



(&) Tax

12 graun 15 SLDJeCt to imeame taxes 1n numerous Junsdichons
Sigrificant judgren: is reguired te deternne grovis 0ns “or incarme
taxes worldwide, Acer incurs 81 come-Lax payane ang/or eams

a considerat e tax receivabie. The group also recognises changes

r deferred tax or deferred tax cenefits. ™ ese fgures are based on
management's interpretation OF aopicabie laws and regulations, and
relevant court deqisons. Tre qually of these eslirmates !5 largely
dependent 01 management's anihity 1o apply comolex set of rules, ILs
aniity to idenuly changes to axasting rules and. in tae case of deferred
Tax benefils, bs aotlivy to prosch Future earnings frors which 3 loss carry-
iorward may pe deducted for tax purposes. See Note 14

{f) Financial instruments

“he group 15 exposed to various risxs resulting fromits use of finar sial
instruments. Tris mciudes cedit risg liguidity risic and market nsk
{including curency- and incerest rate ris<) Note 6 and Note 30 present
information abaut the groun’s expasure t each of these risks. the
gro.o’s ohectives, the oringiples and processes for measuning and
managing risk, and Lne grouo’s capital management

(g) Contingent assets and Habilities

As a result of their extensive woridwide operalions, group comgpanies
sometimes necome invelved i1 legal disoutes. Provisions have peen
made to cover the expected outcoes of the disputes whare negative
outcomes are ikely and renahle estimates can pe prepared. However, tne
final cutcome of these ceses will always be subject to Lncertainties and
-esulting liabilities nay deviate from booked provisicns. See Note 31,

h) Acquisition costs - exploration

The gecounting aolicy of Axer's subsidiary Aker Energy is to temporarly
recogiize expenses e ating to the drilling of exploration wells 11 the
balence sheet as capitalized exploration exgencitures. pending an
evaluation of potertial ol and gas discoveries. if resources are rot
discavered, or if recovery of the resources 15 considered technicafly or
commercially urviable, the costs of exolo-ation we.ls are axpensed.
Dacisions a5 ta whetner trus expenditure should remnan capialired o be
expensed diing the period, may materially affect the ocperating result for
tne pericd

2.4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Graun usss yawahon recimiques t1at ae aperonnzie n (ne
crcyTstances and or whicr sufficient daza are avallable to measure fair
vall:®, Maximising the use of relevant opservable IMouts ad mirimismg
tne use of unonservable mouts

All gssets and haoilities for waich farr values are measored o disciosed i
e “nancal statements are categonsed within the fa - valup merarchy.
cesci-ce below. cased or the lowest fevel ol ingut tnat s Signf Canl o
e far vatue measurement &s a wnole

v evel T Quoted (unadiusteds mar«e! prices in ackive mariets for
wentical assets or llapihties.

= fevel 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowes: level nput thal
5 sanificant to the far value measurement is directly or ingirectly
oiservable

= Level 3 valuabion lecnnmgues for which the lowest tevel 1nput tnat is
signifizant to the fair value measurerent 5 .nobservable,

Tne Groun determines whether transters nave occdrred betwea lavals i e
mierarcny by re-assessing categarnisat.on at tne end of each reporting penod,

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the group has determmed asset
and hability classes pased on therr nature. charactenstics and associated
riss, a1d the appiicable level witnin the Tar value nierarchy See Nate 30,

2.5. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The consolidated financ.al statements have been grenared on a h stonical
cost basis, wilh exceol Tor the following items:

= Derivative financial instruments are rreasured at fair value

» Non-derivative financial instrurments at fair value through prof © and
loss are measured at farr value

¥ Debt instraments at fair value througn proft and loss are measured
at farr value

v Contngent considesalion assurned in pusiness combpinations are
measured at far value

= Nerdefined benefit asset or liability s recognised at fair value of clar
assels less the present value of the defired benefi- obligation

Note 3 | Changes in accounting policies

Witn effect frem 1 Januzry 2018, Axer has implemented IFRS S Roverue
from Contracts with Customars and (FRS 9 Finanaial nstruments. Olher new
interoretations and charges to standarcs are also effective from 1. sanuary 2078,
but they do rot have a matenal efect an the group’s ingneial statements.,

3.1 IFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

IFRS 15 Revenue frorn Contrects with Customers was adopted on |
Jenuary 2078 and replaced IAS 11 Construction Contracts and 1AS 18
Reveriue, Tne new standard nas ween mplemented retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised in equity 3% the dase of initia!
apghication, inaccordance with the transtional provisions in FRS 15,
comparative figures have not been restated. The accounting principles
that 1s tre hasis for the comparative 2017 hgures are gescrioes In the
2077 annuat report available on www.akerasa.com.

3.11 Accounting policy under IFRS 15

[ZRS 15 establshes a five-ster metnod that aopies to all customer
contracts. Under the new siandard, oniy approved customer contracts
wit a firm cammstment sre vasis for revenus recoumtion. Variation
grders are includad wnen tney have been apo-oved. aither vernally in
writng, orimphed oy custornary Business practice. The deliveries in
8 contracts are reviewed to identify distinct performance obligat-ons,
and reverue is recogrised infine w tn how the entity satisfies these
performance obligalions - either over tima o at a point 1n hme. This
assessment ray nvolve signif.cant jidgement. For contracts witn
customers for wincn the gerformance obligat.ons are satisfied over
tme, revenue I1s recagnised over time using a cost progress metnod.
For coniracts with custorners far whicn the performance obligations
are satishied at a poirt in t e, revanue 15 recognised at the point in time



wnen 18 Custamer oolams control of the product o the service. Detalls
of [=e accouniing polioies a0 the nature of pertornance obligabions for
eacn of the major types of customer contracts a7 sel out oelow

Construction contracts

Under construction contracts. specialised oroducts ate pulit according 1o
3 customer’s spec:.catons ana the assels have no alternative use ¢ the
groso. if & canslruction contract & terminated oy the custoner, the group
nas an eniorceatle nght o payment for the wor comipletec o gate 1ne
contracts usualy establisn a milestone payment scheduls

The group has assessed that performance ooligations are satished
over timie a1d revenue From construction performance obligalions s
recognised accerding to pragress. The progress 1s measured us ng an
input method that pest depicts the group's performance. The input
metnod Lseaq [o measure orogress s cetermined by reference o the
cosis Mcued to date relalive 1o the total estimated contract costs.
Proent costs mclude ¢osts directly related to the speaific contract and
irchrect costs atiributable to tne contract.

Var able consigerations, such as incentive payments, a-e included in
corstruction revenue wnen it s highly probable that a significant reven.e
reve-sal will not occur, Disouted amounts are oaly recogrised when
negotiabigns nave reached an advanced stage, customer acceptance

15 uanly likely, and ine amounts can be measured reliably Cont-act
modificatiars, usudlly nform of vanat on orders, are only accounted lor
when they are aosproved gy the customers. Contract cosis are mainly
expensed as incurred. Expeced liguidaled damages (LD) are recognised
as & reduction of tne nransaction price unless it 1s righly nrobabie that
L= wiil not be incurred. The transaction price of performance cbligations
15 adpusted for signitcant financing componrents to reflect the time value
of money. Frmancing components may exist wien Ine expacied time
period netween te t-ansfer of the promised goods and sewvices and the
payment 15 moere than twelve months.

wher the final culcome of a perfermarce obligaticn carnot be relably
estirmated, contract ravenue s recogrised only to the axtent of costs
mcurred tnat are expectad to oe recoverabie, The (ull loss 1s recognised
mmediately when identifed on loss-making cortiacts.

Services revenue

Service revenus 13 recognised aver ime 8s the services are orovided

fre revenue s recognised according to progress o- using the Lwoiced
amounts for tre peniod wnen these directly correspond with the value of
the services thal are transferred to the customers 1 the penod. Progress
is 10" naily measured using an input method, by reference of cosls
incilrred fo date relalive 1o 1he total estimated costs

Sale of standard products

This ravenue tyoe involves sale of products or equioment tnat are af a standard
nature. not nade according to the custorner’s specifications. Zustomers
usually cotain contoi of these oroducts when the goods are delvered to the
cuslomers in accordance with {he contract terms. The group nas assessed Lhat
the performance oliiigat ons for suen products are satisfiea at a point In time.

Revenue trom these performance obligations is recogrused wnen the
customers obtam control of the goods, wrich is essentially similar to the
timg when the gogds are delivered to the custamaers

3.1.2. Impact of transition to IFRS 15
ine rollowing tanle summarises tre mpact of transition to IFRS 15 a1 e
crrup's financal sraremerts as or 1 daruary 2018

1 Jgnuary 208

Cnange i Drogress method {1403}
Jemoval of caoiralized render cost 48
Tax affects 94
Total impact on equity: {93)

Changes " grogress maasurement [ram [AS 11to a cost progress metaod
were identtea for some construct.on contracts due to the Implementation
of IFRS 15, The net impact "esulted 11 a decrease of equity of NOK 140
mutlion before tax as at 1 fanuary 2018, Tende- costs arevicusly canitalized
when awarg was propable are fully expensed under IFRS 18, The effect of
‘emoving capitalized tender cost in the oalance shaet upon transilion as al
1 Janua~y 2018 was a reduction of equity of NOK 48 million before tax.

Revenue and cost accruals are presented separately as contract assets
or liamilities under IFRS 15, Under previous “evande -ecognition guidance,
te amount was neliea as cost accruals and presented as work in
orogress (WIPY. Waranty provisions reiated to on-going prajects and
Gnerous customer contracts provision are now presented withinbne
oalance sheel fine Provisicns. See Note 28

The following tasles summarise the impact of adooting IFRS 15 in the
group's financial staterments for 2018

Amounts
withoul
As Adjust-  adostian
reported menls ot FRS18
Operaring revenue 42163 (27%) 41890
Operatng expenses (37 766) 380 (37 386)
Operating profit before
depreciatkia_ and amortisation 4397 106 4503
Jperating profit 2087 106 2193
Profit before tax 1420 106 1526
income tax exosnse 90y (3 (522)
Net profit/iess from continuing
operations 930 74 1004
Result for the year 1368 74 1442
Total comprehensive income
for the year 2433 62 2 495
Amnounts
without
As Adjust-  adoplion
reported ments  of [FRS15
Deferred tax assets 1059 (8} 1051
Currert assets 25688 (3 083) 27 605
Total assets 92 758 3080 §9 687
lotal equity A1 918 156 A2 Q74
Current nabilities 23308 (3248) 20058
Total equity and liabifities 92 758 (3091) 89 667




e

3.2 IFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 9 #1m3ncial s umnents was adooted 011 January 2018 and
renlaced 1AS 39 Figncai instruments Recognit or and Measurement,
Tne new sia~dard nas peen implementad retrospectively wiim the
cumulative efect recogrised In equity &t the date of intal aoplcation,
In accordance witn Lne transilionat orovisions i1 IFRS 9, comparative

figures rave nct peen restated, The accounting principles that 15 the basis

for the comparat ve 2017 figures are described In the 2077 annual repont
AVAIIECIe O WwWw 34Er83a.C0M

3.2.1 Accounting policy under IFRS 9

Ciassification of financial assets

The group classifies 1t financial assets in the foliowing rmoascroment
categories:

= Ihose lo be measured subsequenty at fair value (either through OC|
or through profit ar loss). ana
»  Those to be measured at amortised cost

The class.“ication cepends o~ the entity’s basiness made: far managirg
the financial essets ard the contractual terms of the cash f.ows.

For assets measured at far valug, gans and losses will either oe recorded
ir prof tor loss or QCL Far investments i equity instruments that are
nat neld for trading, t1s will depend on whetqer the group nas made an
rrevocanle election at tne time of intial recognition Lo account for tne
equily investent af fair value trrough other cecmorenansive incerne
{MVOCD. NMinancal assets are not reclassitied subsequent to the rinmisl
racognit:on uless tne group changes ts susiness model far managing
financial assets.

Recognition and derecognition of financial assets

Requiar way purchases and sales of financal assets are recognsee on trade-
date, ine date on wnich Lhe group commits Lo aurchase or sell the asset.
Firancal gssets are derecogniser wher tre rights to recewe cash flows fram
e firancial assets nave expired or have been ransferred and the group has
transfersan suigstantialty ali the risis and rewards of cwnarship

Measurement of financial assets

Atintial rerngnson, the group measures a fina~cial asset (Lniess it

15 3 trade recavaiite without a significart firancing component) at 12
farr value alus, n the case of a financiel asset not at FVPL, transaction
£0s7s that are arectly attriputable 1o Tne acauwisition of the financial
asset. [ransaction cests of firancial assets carned at FVPL are expensed
irprof t or lnss. Trade recervarles without a significant firancing
comnaoient are mtially measured at the transaclion arice.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in thewr
entirety woen deteimining wheather their cash flows are selely payment
of prncipal and interest.

Debt nstruments

Supseguent measuremnant of debt instruments desends on Lhe group's
business modei for manaqing tie asset and tne cash flow characteristics
of tne asset There are three measuremanl categories into whicn the
group classd as 18 debl snstrurnents:

= Amorbised cosl Assers that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cast flows recresent solely payments of

vrncipal and inierest ave measured al amosisad cost using the
effect ve interes: rate method. The a—ortises cost 1s reauced by
Imoarnent losses interest ireome foreign excnange gars and
lnsses, imaalments and &y gan Crinss s 1g 0 Serecogalon are
recocnised in profit and loss.

= FVOC! Assefs tnat are me'd 2ot for coliection of contractua! cash
“aws and “or sell.ng the f nancial assets, wnere the assets’ cash flows
regresent solely pay ments of princinal and 1nterest, are measureg
& FVOCL Interest wicame calculated usire the effective nteres:
methed. foeign excnange gains and iosses 3nd Impa rment a-e
recogniscd 0 orofit or [oss. Ooner net gains a-d 05865 are recogn.sed

1M GCL On derecognition. the cumulative gain cr loss oreviously
recogrsed 1 OCHis reclassified from ecuity to orofl: or loss,

w  FVOL Assets that do not meet the critenia for amortised cost or
FVOC are mreasured at FYPL. Net gains and [osses, including any
irterest. are -eczgmised n profit or loss. However, see seot on below
regarding deivatives designated as hedg:ng instruments

Equity instruments

ne group subsequentiy measures all equity investments at fair value
Wnere tne group nas rrrevocably elected (an election that 1s made on an
vestment -by-Investment basis) to present far vaiue gains ad iosses
cn equity Investments n QCI the'e 15 no subsequent reclassif cation of
far value gains ard lcsses to profit ar ioss feliow.ng tne derecognition

of the Investment. Dividends from such irvestments continue to ne
recogrsed in profit or loss when the aroue's nghl to receive payments s
established

Impairment of financial assets

Ihe group assesses on a forwasd-looking oasis the expecled credit foss
associaied with its dedt instruments carried gt amorlised cost and FVOCH
Tha impairment nethotoiogy apelied depends on wnetnzs there has
heen & S;Qﬂ‘ficﬂﬂ? Increase :n cramt sk

The'e are mainby f nancial recevactes (ncluding trade recewables),
contract asseis and financal lease recevanles that ore subject o the
axgected credit ioss mode! (BCLY 1M IFRS 9 For trade recervanles, the
group gpplies tha simplifies approach oermitted by IFRS 3, which
equires expected hfetime losses Lo be recognised from initial recognilicn
of the recgivacies.

Financial liabilities - initial recognition, classification, subsequent meas-
urement, gains and fosses and derecognition.

A financiat Lability -5 initially measured at “ar value and. for a financial
lability not at FVPL net o transact 00 costs that are directly attrioutable
toats 1ssue bonangial | shilities ars classified as measured at amoriised
cast or FY2L A financial fiability 1s classified ar FVYPL f 1t s class fied as

neld-for-trading, it is a derivative or it 15 designated as sucn onwnitial
-ecegniticn Financial lishilities at FYPL are mzasured at fair valug and net
gains and losses, including ary interest expense. are recogisen in profit
¢r loss. Other financial hakidities are sussesuently measured at amorbised
cost us:ing the effect ve interest methoz. interest expense and foraign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in orofif or 10ss. Any gain or
loss an derecogritan s also recoansed o profit orloss. See section
nelow regarding dervatives designated as hedang inslrurnents.

The group derecognises a financial hak!l:ty when 1ts contractuat
abligations a-e discharged, cancalled or expire. The grouo also
cerecognises a financal hahilty when ts terms are mod fied, and the



wast Fows of the modi ed Hatelity are substartially d fferers, m wien
cgse a new hancal | aoility cased an the mogified terms ¢ recogrised at
fair value, On derecogr tion of 3 fina~c1al lahilty, the ¢ Ference hetween
tne carrying amourt extinguisned and tme cons deaton paid (inchading
ary non-casn assels transfered o haoiiLes assumed) 1s recognisad 1n
rOf ar hess.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

=inarcial assets and financial haoiLies are o'fsel. 2nd tne net arount
presented i the balance sneet when, and only wnen, ine grous curently
~as & legally cnidrceable rght to set off the amoorts and it ntends either
to settie trem an g nel hasis o 10 realise t1e asset and settie tne Liakity
simultanacusly

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The group holds denvative Fnancial instrumerts to hedge s foreian
cuyrrency and intesest rate ris«< exposures. Derivatives are inilially
recogrased at farr value, and attribuiaole rransaction costs are recognised
oproft or 1oss as tcurred.

Embedaed denvalives are separated from the ~0st contract and
acceunted for separately if the haost contract -5 not a finangal asset ang
tne following criteria are met 1} the economic charactanstics ard risks
of tne ernpedaed dervative ame not closely related to the economic
cnaracteristics and risks of the nost, i) a separate instrument with the
same terms as [ ~e embedded denvative would meet the definitior of &
derivative, and i) tne hybnid coniract 1s aot measured at fair value witn
cranges In fair value recogrised in prefit o loss.

Denvatves not peing part of hedge accounting are measured at fair value
and & changes in value are recogrisen in profil and igss. The groun may
designate certain dervalives as hedging nsiruments to nedge the fair
value of recognised assets or katwlizies (fair value hedges), the vanabity
in cash Lows associaled with nighly crobanle forecast transaztions
ansing {-om ¢ranges 1 foreign excnange rates and interest rates {casn
f.ow Nedgesy. and certain desivatives and non-dervative financal
labilities as nedges of foremgn exchange nsk on & nat mvesimert in g
foreign aperation (net Investment hedges) At incegtion of designated
hedging relationships. the group documents the ris« maragemant
otective and strategy for undertaking tne hedge. 1he group aiso
documents the sconomic relationsnip between the hedged item and 1Me
redging instrument. including whether the charges in cash flows of the
redged fem and redging instrumant are expected to offset each other

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative Is gesignated as the nedging instrument in a

redge of the vanabikty in cash flows attrioutable to 2 particular risk
associated with a recognised asset 07 sanility, or a ughly protzasle
forecest transact:or that could affect profit or loss, the effeclive portion
of cranges 1~ Lthe fair value of tre cerrvalive 1s recognised in otner
comprenansive Ncome and prasented 1n the redging reserve withn
equity. | ne anount -ecognisad i Other COMPrenensive INcome 1§
removed and included in orofit or loss 10 the same penod &5 the hedged
cash flows aect orofit or loss under the same bne Se v the income
statement as tha hedged itern. Any .reffective porticr of changes in tre
fa- value of tr e denvat.ve 1s recognised immediately 1 prof t o7 loss.

IF the ~edging inslrumant no longer meets the criteria for hedge
ccounting, expires or 1 sold, terminated, exercised, or tre designation

B

15 revo<ed, Len eaue accounting 1s discontmued proscectively Tne
curnalative gar or loss previousty recogised 1 otner comasrehans ve
ncome @nd presented 0 e nedging reserve M eguiby remans tnere
untl the forecast trar saction affecis prot o loss. I e forecast
fransaction 1s no lorge exoacted 1o occLs then the nalance » cther
LOTTRrenensive 1NCeme s recagesed immediately 11 peoit erloss. in
Cther cases, [me 3MouLnt "eCogrised . CINer COMDIENansive ncama
is trarsterred to crofit or loss in the same perod hat the ~edged tem
afecis nroh or lass.

Farr value hedges

Changes i tne fair vaiue of derivatves designated as fa value heoges
ae recogrised in profit or loss, The kedged eoject <5 valued 3+ far valve
with respect to the risk that s nedged. Gains o losses attmibutacle o
t1e hedged nisk ave recogrised in profit ar loss ana the hecdiged abects
cared amrount 15 adjusted.

et investment hedges

Foreign curtency differences aq1s e from the trensiation of a fimancial
liability designated as a nedgz of a nal invastnent i a toreign operation
are ‘ecogrised i1 other comprenensive income 1o the extent that the
Fecge s effective and are presented within gty in the trarslaton
reserve. 7o the extent that tne hedge is neffective, such differerces ara
recognised in profit or ioss. When the hedged part of a ret investment 15
disposed of, the elevant amcunt i1 the transiation reserve 1s transterred
1o pront or foss as part of “he profit or loss or aisposal.

3.2.2Impact of transition tp IFRS 9

The foilowing Lable surmmarises the imoact of transition 10 IFRS 9 o1 the
group's financial statemerts as of 1 jaruary Z018:

1 January 2018

Reclassification of hacqo reserve 174

Cther effects 4
Tax effects LLw;
Total impact on equity: 138

The group has elected tq agopt the new general nedge accounting model
in IFRS 9. “he new hedge accounting rules wil ahgn fne accounting tor
nNedging instruments more closely with the group’s risk manageament
practices. The group nas concluded that aill hedge relationships
cesignated under IAS 33 as of 31 Decenoer 2017 met Lhe critena for
nedge accounting under 18RS 9 as of 1 January 2018 and therefore
regarded as continuing hedging relabionsHps.

The grous uses forward foreign exchange contracts to nedge the vanaoility
in cash flows aris ng from changas in foresgn exchange 13ates refating 1o
fare.an currency oorrowings, receivadles, sales and 1Inventory ourchases.
For all cash flaw heages under 1AS 39, tre amnunts arcumalated in the
cash fiow hedge reserve are reclassiiea tc profit or loss as a reclassificaiion
adjustrnent in the same pericd as the hedged transachon occurs and
atfects profit or foss. Under IFRS 9, for cash How hedges associated with
foree a5t transactions that subsequently resull @ recognizion of a non-
financial asset or a ron-financial |.ak ity. the amounts accumularea n

the cash flow hedge reserve and tne cost of hedaing “eserve are nstead
incluged drectly in the ntal cost of the non-fnancial asset ar non-fina-cial
lisbinty when recogrised. This change has resuifed in an ingrease of NOK
174 million excluding tax of the carrying amoust of the hedge reserve
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a0 Chanzes loss allowaroes nave Deen NeCessaly N Craer 1o Under IFRS 9. g financial assen ¢ classified on initigl recognimicn as

s3T5ty the mpa.sment requirerrent urder IFRS 9. There s no sgnifcant measured ab amotisec cost, [ar vaide 10 ofher comOrenensive inCcome
reGact on the onsalidated finaacial statements from adept ng the new (FYOCH deit investments, FYOC equity vestent of fais vatue trwougn
rnpairment mocel profit o loss (FV=Ci

IFRS 9 largely retams tre existing requirements 1 1AS 39 for the Crithe date of inbal apol cation oF IFRS 9, Aker's “narcial instramet
classificas o gra measurerent of Snancal labilities, However, assets were classified \nto measurement categor.es as follows. The table
1L efirminates the orevious 1AS 39 categornies for neld to matuty sows the assets oy Categdry CCortig To Drevious reguirements and
ryestrents, 0ans end receivables ang availzble for sale inanual assets. acceing o IFRS 9

Financial assets at 1 January 2018

Measurement category Carrying amount
Previous standard New standard
R Pravious standard (IAS 39) New standard (IFRS 8) (IAS 35) (IFRS 9)
Other investments Availagle for sale Equety instrumenrt at FVOG 12 416
Avaidaole for sale Dent investment at FVOCE 392 392
Avallaole for sale Fair value through proftg or loss 617 617
Firancial interest-beaning non- Availanle for sale Equity investment at FYQOC A02 AG2Z
Cur-ent assers Amortised cosl Amortised cost 4961 1961
Q:her no-cufrent assets including  Held for trading “air value thraugh profit or loss 50 50
lorg-term dervatves
Fa rvalue through nrofit or loss =air vaiue through orofit or loss 99 g9
Amaortised cost Amortised cost 04 104
Trade recavanles, olner viterast-  Available for sale Far value through orofit o7 lass 19 S0
free shori-term recerables o
ee shori-ter v Amorhised cost Amaotlised cost 6 078 & 075
Current derivatives Held for trading Fair value - nedging instrument Hy 103
Fair value - hedgng mstrument Far valua - hedging nstrurent 198 430
Intarest-pearing short-term Fair value through profit or loss Fair val.e through proftt or loss &9 69
receivabies Available for sale Amortised cost 0 10
S Amerisedcost ) Amortised cost 245 245
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost Amaortised cost 8148 §143
7Tota| #nancial assets 21 963 22140

There are n; changes related to the ciassification of Aker's inancizl habihities following the impiarrentation of iFRS 2.



Note 4 | New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A nurrher of new stanaards are effect ve for arpual penons heaineing
after ” Jamuary 2018 and earlier apolication & permitted. The group Ras
nowever 1ot early sdopted the new o amended standa ds 1n ovenanng
these censohdated finangiat siaterrents.

Of those staraards iat ae not vet effective, IFRS 6 L eases s expecten
to have maier alimuact o the group's INandial stetements in ae neroc
of mitial apol.calion.

fFRS 16 LEASES

e group Is equired to adopt IFRS 16 Leases frare 1 January 2058, The
standara repiaces IAS 17 Leases and related interprelalions. Tne grouo
1as assessed the estimated impact that Mitial apphication of IFRS 16 wil
have on ks consolidated financial statermnenls, as descrnbed telow. The
actual impacts of adopting the standard on 1 January 2019 may differ
from tne estimate,

RS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sreet lease accounting model for
lessees. with optional exempbions far short-te-m leases and :eases of .ow
value items. A lessee recognises a nght-of-use asset representing ILs nignt
Lo use the uncerlying assel and a tease kanility renresaniing s atligation to
make lease nayments. Lessor accounting remams simila- o current standard
- e, fessors continue to cassify leases as finance or operat.ng leases.

Leases in which the group is a lessee

e groug will recognise new assets and labilities forits operating laases
af warehouses. rental o° affices and factoy faclties and machines and
venicles The nature of expenses reialed to those leases will now change
pecause L ne group will recognise a depreciation charge for rignt-of-use
assets and 1nterest expenses on lease habiiities.

Presziously, the group recognised operaling lease expense o a straigrt-
ima Dasis aver the term of the lease. and recognised assets and hiabilibies
only o the extent that there was a timing differerce between actual lease
cayments and tne expanse recognised.

In addition, tne group will No longe* recognise rovisions for aperating
ieases that it assesses to oe onerous. Instead, the group will ciude the
pavrenis gue urder the lease nits lease labiily. No significant irpact s
expectad “or the group's T nance leases.

Based on the imformabion current avaiiable, the group estimates that it
will recognise additional lease haoilities of approximately NOK 6.5 niliion
as 0f tlanuary 2019,

Leases in which the group is 2 lessor

“he groug Fas reassessed the clzssificalion of sui-leases in which Lne
group s a lessor Basad on the infornation currently avallabie, the group
expects tial it will reclass:fy some of 115 subr-leases as g finance lease,
resulting in recognition of a finance lease receivable of approximately
NGK 07 tifhon as of 1 January 2018,

No significant impact 1s expected for orher leases in which the group 15 a
fessor

Transition

Ine group olans 10 aogly IFRS 16 mtally fram 1 Ja~uary 2018, sing tee
medified rstrospect ve approace. Therefere the cumulanive effect of
adonting [FRS 16 weil oe recognised as an adustment to the openicg
hatarce of equity at 1 Jaruary 2019, with no restatement of comparative
miormalion. Based 01 e information curqet avalaole, e group
estimates (hat (ne ;mpact of ransitan to FRS 16 on {ne greup's eguity as
cf 1.January 201915 a reduct:on of approximately NOK 0.4 billion,

The groun plans ro asniy the fotiowing practical expedients o1 transition
to iFRS i6:

= Nomn-lease components for Fousing contracts, machines and vehicles
will not e separated.

= Rely on assessment of whether leases are onerous applying IAS 37
on 31 Decemper 2018 as an aiternative 10 oe-forming an mpairment
review of right-of-yse assets Tor all leases on 1 _anuary 2012, The
group expects to reduce tne nignt-of -use assets at 1 Zanuary 2019
oy aoproximatety NOK 0 2 oillion of the onerous lease orowsion
recognised as of 31 December 20718,

= Apoly tne shart-tern lease prachical sxpedient to leases anding
within 2019 and assets of low value on a ease-oy-lease basis

»  Exclude initial direct costs from measurement of fignt-of-use assets
at the date of initial aoplication.

Based on the information current available, the group estimates tnat :t
wilt recognise right-ol-use assets of app-oamately NOK 3.0 bilbon as of
1January 7018 after reciassification of finance lease and onerous lease
orovisiens as mentioned above

Other standards

The fallowing amended standards and «terpretations are not expecled
to have a significant impact or the group's zonsclicdazed franc al
stataments

= |FRIC 22 Uncertainty over Tax Trealments

= Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amandments to
FRE M

= Long-.erm intérests in Associates ana Joint Ventures {Amendments

to 1AS 28)

= Plan Amendment, Curtaidrnent or Settlernant (Amengrments ta 1AS
)

® Anndal Improvements to IPRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - vanous
standards

= Amendments to References to Conceotual Framework in iFRS
Standards

= |FRS 17 Insurance Contracts

]
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Note 5 | Accounting principles

Tne accouning annciples gresented peiow have been aonlied
consistestiy for all periods and comoanies that are presented in the
censclaated fingncial statements. Comparative figures nave ceen
restated 11 accordance with this year's prasentation, see nowever
nformation orovided 11 Note Z regard.ng IFRS 15 Ravenue from Contvacs
with cuslemers and IFRS 9 Financial instruments,

5.1, GROUP ACCOUNTING AND CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES
5.1.1. Subsidiaries

Supsihanes are companies controled Dy Axer. Control requires three
elemerts:

a.  a)ownersind interests that grve the investor oower to direct the
relevant activities of Lne investes,

D ) that fneswesior 15 exposed to vanaoie -eturns from the invesiee,
and that

C ¢} decsion-making oower slows the wvestor to gffect its vanakle
reluras fram Lhe investee,

Supsidiaries aresncluded in the cansahdated accounts from the day
control s acnieved and until control ceases

Acguisitions of companies *hat meet the definibion of a business
campination are recognised using the acquisition metnod. See urther
desciption in section 5.8 Intangible assets. Acquisitions of companies,
which are “or def ned as bus.ness combinations, are recorded as asset
aCOUISITIONS, Tre cost of such purchases is aliocated petweean the
rdividusl sdentifiable assets and habikties acguires based on their tair
valuas on the acquisition date. Goodwitl is not recognised in connection
witn such acquisitions, nor 1s deferred tax recognised in cannection with
diffarences ans ng in the recognition of suck aesets,

Minorily interests have been disclosed sepa-ate-y from tne parent
Comoany owness equity ana habilities in tne balance snest, and are
recorded as & separate item in the consoldated profit and loss account.

5.1.2. Investments in associates

An assoclate is defined as a company over which the group nas
sigmficant in*iuence, but wh.ch s not @ subs diary nor a joint
arrargement. Significant influence 1s the power to participase ir the
fnancial and ooerating policy decisions of the investes, without havirg
contro or joint control of those oolicies. The group's investments 10
associates are accounted for using the eguity method and are initiaily
recognised ai cost. Recerved dividends are recognised as a reduction of
the ook valug of the mvestmert, and a“e presented as part of net cash
fiow frcm operating activities in the cash flow statement.

IMvestmants inClude gocaw:t Waon acquisition less any accumulated
mpairmert losses, The consoldaled financial staterments reflact the

qroup’s share of the associate’s profits or losses and equity changes, after
reslaleme i to comply with the group's accounting princinies, from Lhe tme
signdican: mfluence 1s established until such influence ceases. If the group's
share of accumuiated losses excesds its interest in the entity, tne group does
~ot recogrise further losses unless 1t has incurred or guaranteed obligations
with respect 1o the associate. If control 1s achieved 1N stages. goodwitt s
measured o the date cantrol 15 obtained, and any changes in the value of
previcusly held ecuity interasts are recognised as profits or losses.

5.1.3. Interests in joint arrangements

Aol arangementis 3 C0URCUA 3angement wWieehy tvio of

more parties undertase a1 economic activity that 15 su;ect 10 jeint
control A :nt arangament 1S eilther & j0nt venture 07 3 10171 Operatnn,
The classficancn o a0 rt ar-angerment as a jont ventu-e 07 a joint
cperation depends uoon the nghts and ooigations of ine parties to tne
ar-angament. Ajoint venture # & jont arr-angament waereny t1e partlies
trat nave oint control of the arangemaent have »1gnts [0 the net assets
cf the arrengement. A joirt operation is a joink a-rangemnent wheredy
tne nart-es tat nave Joint controt of the ar-angenent nave rights 1o the
assets, and obilgations for the agdibies, ralating to the grrangame-t,

Joint ventures are accounted for using Lhe equity method and are mitially
recagnised at cost. Receved div dends are recognssed as a reduction of
{ne book value of tre imvestment. and are presentea as part of net casn
flow from aparating activities in the cash “ow statemaonrt,

Tne subsidiary Ader Energy has a 50 par cent ownership Mtarest ina
kcense offshore Ghana, which s classified a5 joini operations under ITRS
1. The group recognises the invesiment by repariing s share of related
reverues, expenses, assets, labilities and zash flows under the respenhive
iterns in the financsl staternents.

514 Elimination of trapsactions upon consolidation

Intragroun balances and transactions, and any unrealised gans and
losses or revenues and expenses arising from Intragroup transactions, are
eliminated i prepating the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
G&IMs arsing Fom transaclions wil it equity accounted investees are
eliminated against the mvestment to tne exient of the group’s Interest in
tne investee

515 Foreign currency translations and transactions

ltems are wmitially recorded in the firancial statererts of each subsdiary
i the subs diary's funct-onal currency, 2. the currency that best reflects
tne economic sudstance of the underlving events and circumistances
~elevant to tnat suosidiary Foresgn currency Bransactions are franslated
Nt e functional cur-ency of tne respective supsidiary using the
excrnange rates prevailing on tne date of eacn transact on. Recevables
and liaodities i1 foreign cur-encias are tanslated 1nto the functional
cur-ency Using the exchange rates on tne balance sheet date, Foreign
currancy exchange gains and losses resuiting from the seltlement of suck
transactions and from the Lransiation of monetary assets and laoiities
cenominated 17 foreign currencies are recognisea in the crofit and loss
account.

The consolidzted financial statemaonts are presertad n Norwegian xroner.
Financial statements of subsidiaries whose funclional currencies a-e
a.fferent from the presentation currency (NOK) are transiaten into NOK
11 tre following way:

= Balance sheet itenns are translated using tne exchange ratas on tne
balance sneet date

= Prefit or Inss iterns are translated using the average exchangr rates
for the penod (f the everage exchange rates for the period oo not
provide a fair estimate of the transaction rale, the actual transaction
rate is used).



Transketion J “fererces ar sing from che translation oF net imvastmerits

i foreign operstions and from related hedsing 2ojects are specified as
ranslat on differonces 1 othe comprehansive ncome, and sre spec flea
uncer shamenolders' eguity. Wnen atoreign enldy is sold, translation
cifferences are recagiseq N tne orofi and loss sccount a3 cart of tre
gain o loss o1 the sale. Foragn exc1ange gains ar lossas on recawvables
‘rom a~d liabif tes payatle 1o a foraigr entity are recogrised in the crofi
and i0ss, except wien settlerment s neitner planaed nar k<ely Lo oceur
In e toreseeasle tuture. Sucn foreign exchange gains ard osses ave
considered to form part of tre net investment 1 the foregn actvily anag
ere recogn sed i ofhe” comprehensive ncome as translation differences

5.2. ISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A discontinued onerat on 15 g cornponent of the arcup’s business
operat.ons tnat renresents a separale, major ine of business or a
gecgraphical area of cperations that nas neen disposed of or 15 held for
sale Classificatior as a cisconuirued ooeration eccurs at the earlier of
disposal or wner the gperation meets the crtesia to be classi“ec as halc
tor sale.

Profits or iosses from discontinued operations (after tax), are reclass.fied
and presented as a separate line itern i the financ:al statements. The
camparatives are restated acco-dingly

5.3. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
INCOME

5.3.1. Revenue from contracts with customers

The group 1as initially apehed IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
customers from 1 Janaary 2018. Infermation about the effect of initially
applying IFRS 15 and the groun’s accounling policies refating ta contracts
witn custoners are provided in Note 3

5.3.2. Revenue from charter agreements

Revenues related to vessei bareboal charter agreements are recognised
over the cnarter peniod. Time-charter ggreements may include s "evenue-
sharirg agreement with tne cnarterern Revenue related to profit snarng
agreements 1s recognised when tne anount can ge reliably estimated

5.3.3. Cther income

Gans and lasses resulting from acquisition and disposal of businessas
whicn do not represent discontinued operations are ircluded in Otner
income within operating profit. In case of acguisitions in stages. such
gams may come from kng remeasurement of previousiy held interests

In the acquired entity. Changes in tha fair value of tne contingent
consideraion fromn acquisiticn of a susidiany o7 non-controiling interest
ara recogrused in Cther iInco re as gans of 10s5es,

5.4. PENSION BENEFITS AND SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

5.4.1. Pension benefits

For defined benefit plans, the Lality recogrised 5 the gefined benent
chiigation as at the palance sheet date, minus the far vaiue of plan
assets. Te dafined benefit cbligation is calculated by independent
actuanes and s measured as the present value of estimated futere
cash outfiows. The pension cost s allocated 1o profit and loss over the
employees’ eshimated ime of service. Actuarial gams and losses arising
from exoerience adiusiments, cnanges in actuarial assumphions, and
amendments to pension plans are recagnised ir other comprahensive
ncome COC"). Tne net interest expense for Lhe peniod 1s calculated
oy applying the discoun: rate to the net cefired heneht lighulity, thus

commsnises oty inlerest ot kao dy and the ratuin on the pension
pian assets. The d-Herance perweer trg actugl return on e pensicn plan

assets and the recogrised returr 15 recognised aganst tne OC onan
cngoing basis.

for Zetned contr pution elars, contniutions are caid ity pensicn
mnsarance plars. Cortnibutions to definea contribution pians are crarged
1o the profit and loss account iInthe cenod to whicn the contr butions
relate

5.4.2. Share-based payments
Sngre-oased payment expense 13 measurea al far value aver the service
peried. All changes 11 fair value are recogmised in the incomne statemnent,

5.5. EXPENSES

5.5.1. Lease agreements (as lessee)

Leases under which a s gnificant progorion of the risks ana rewsras of
ownership s retained by e fessor are classified as anerating loases.

1 ease pavments ander aperating leases are recognsed in the proft ard
1055 account on a straighl-line basis over the tease pericd Any lease
incentives received are recogrised as an Integral pat of e total iease
expense over the term of te lease.

Leases under whicn the group nas substantially all the ris«s and rewards
ol ownership, gre dassdien as financial leases ard are capitalised at

tne nceotion of tne lease at the lower of the fair value of 1ne leased
prooerty or Lne present vaiue of the mimimum fease payments. f oliowing
inthial capitalisation, thg saime accounting arinciple that apphiss to tne
carresponding asset s used. Lease payments are apoortioned between
financiat expenses ard the reduction ir tha lease lab ity F nance
expenses are recegnsed =5 finance costs :p profit or 10ss

Contingent lease payrnents are accounted for by revising tne minnurn
lease nayments over (ne remaining term of tne lease, wnen tie
cont:ngencies of the variadie lease have peen met and ihe adiustment
arncunf 5 known.

5.5.2. Finance expenses

Finance exnenses comprise 1barest expense an horawings, unwindiig
of the discount on grovisiens, changes in the fair value of hinanc.al assets
gt fair value through profit 27 Joss. imparrent [055es recogmsed on
financial assefs. and losses on hedgirg imstruments that are recognised it
profit ar loss. Borrewing costs rot directly sttricutasle to the acquisition
or production of a quali®yirg asset are recogrisea in profit ar loss using
te offect.ve-mterest method, Foreign currency gans and iasses are
reperied on anel basis.

5.5.3, Income tax

income tax comprises curren® and deferred tax. Anincome tax expensa
is recognised in tme profit and joss account unless 1t relates to items
recognised directly 1 equ by, in winch case it is recogrised i equity.

Current tax s tne expacted tax payaocle on the taxable :ncome for ine year,
L8NG tax rates enacted or sustantively enacted as at the balance sreet
date. and any adjusiments Lo tax cavable in respect of previous years,

Deterred tax is calculated nased on the temporary d fferences berween
tie carrying amounts of asseis and habilities and 1he amounts used for




taxglicn curnoses, Seferaw tax 15 measured 3t 1o Llax raies 1731 a8
expected 1o be appled o tre temporary differences wren they reverse.

Tofprredt ax s rot recognised for the follow ng temporary d-Fererces:

=t recognitien of assets or labilities i g transaction that 15 1ot 3
Blsnass comiy ngt o~ and thet affects neit~e- accountirg nor taxable
profy

= offerences ielating to rvestments - oint vertures if 1 s prohable

thal tney wili nat reverse 11 ine foreseeanle future.

v fax-increasing temporary differences tpon ins &l recogniicn of
goodwiil

3

Derer-ed tax assets and habilities are offset |f

« there s a legally enforceable aght to offset current tax Labilities and
assets

= tney relale to income taxes levied by the same tax aulnorty ontie
same taxzble entity, or on differcnt taxaile antizies that interd to
settle current tax abities and assels on 3 net basis, or to reahse
Laelr tax assets and anihities simultanaousiy.

A deferred tex asset wiil be recognised if it 1s probaole that futu-e taxanle
orofits will be avallzble ana nst which the temparary aifference can be
utihsed.

5.6. INVENTORY

Inventery s stated at tne .ower of cost or net ealisanie value. Cost s
determined by the “irst-in first-out (TIF0) method, or the weighted
average cost formula depending on Lhe nature ot tne inventory. The cost
of finished goods and work i progress cormipiises raw rnatenals, drect
iabour and othe- direct costs, and related production overnead (based on
normai ocerating capacity). Nat cealisale valug 15 the eslimated selling
oricein the ordinary course of pusiness. less the costs of completion and
selling expenses

5.7. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

5.7.1. Recognition and measurement

An tem of property, plant and equipment s recogrised as an assel if it
15 probanle that the future econermic penefits associated with Lhe assets
vl flow tn the group, ard ite cost can be reliably measured. Praperty,
plant and equipment |5 measured at cost less arcu nulated deprec ation
and impairment Josses,

Costincludes expenditures directly attrioutable to Lthe asset's acquisition
and if matena! the cosis of dismanting and rerroving the items and
restoring the site on wnicn they a7 located. Tre cost of seif-construcled
assels inciudes the cost of matenals and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributanle o bringing tne assel to @ working condition far

18 ivtended use, Bolrowing costs associated with loans to finance the
censtruction of wronerty, olaat and equipment are capitalised over the
period necessary to complete an asset and make 1t ready forits tended
Lse, Other Borrowing costs are expensed. Whar sigruf-cant oarts of &n
ierr of property, plant. ard equipment have different useful lives, major
compenents are accounted for as separaie items of property, pant, and
eguipment

Againor oss on the disposal of aniten of property, plant and eguinmert
15 determined by comparing the disposal oroceeds with the camrying
amourt of that item; any '0ss is mcuded mimpairment charges,

5.7.2. Subsequent costs

The cost af “enlacing part of a1 :ten of wroperty, nlant and equipment s
“ecoqrised in tne carving amount of thetem il it prooable that 1uture
econamic benefiis essocizted with the asset wil flow [0 the group and 2
cost can be measured rehaoly Tne carrying amcunt of Lne replacen part
15 derecogrised. Tne costs of dav-to-day mantenance of oroperty, plant
a~d equipment are recogised In prafit and 1oss as incurad,

5.7.3. Depreciation

Deprecigtion s recognisad nm ot and loss an s siralght-l ne 2asis owver
e estimated useful ife o eacn major component of an ilem of propetty,
plant and ecup—ert Leased assels are deprecialed over tne snorier of
ine lease term or tae assel's useful e, uniess it s nignly orobaole that
te groun will acguire ownerss at the end of the lease term. Land 1s not
cepreciated Deprecral:on metnods, usefut ives, and residual values are
reviewed af eacn palance sheet date.

5.8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

5.8.1. Goodwill

All business cemninations in the group are recogrised using the
acquisition method. Goodwill represets values ansing from the
acquisitions of subs diaries, associates, and joint ventures, Goodwill is
allocated o cash-ganerating units and s lested annually for mpairnent
Far associates and joint ventures, the carrying anount of gaodwill s
inciucted in tne carrying amount of the mvestrment in the associates
Negative goodwll a7ising on an acguisition 1s recagnised directly in

tre profit and loss account. Mnarty interests are measured ar the neg
value of identitiable assets and laoihties :n the acquired company or at
far-value InCLdmg 3 goodwill element. The method of measurement s
cecded Individually for each acguisition.

Coodwill s measured as a residual at the acquisibon date and constiiutes
tne sum of total consideration transferred i1 connaction with the pusiness
como:nation, the carrving arroust of the minonty inlerests and the far
value of the previous ownershup interest in the acguired cornoany at he
ume of acquisition. ess the net recogrised amount (normraily fair value)
¢’ the idertihable assets acaquired 2nd halilines assumed.

Acquisitions of mimonty interests are accounted for as transactions
wit™ equity holders in Therr capacity as equity holders, and therefore ro
goodwltis recognised as a result of such transactions. In sunseguent
measurements, goodwiltis valued at acguwsit on cost, less accumulated
imparment losses.

5.8.2. Research and development

Expenditures on research achvit es undertexen {0 gan new s<enlific or
technical krowlaedge a~d understanding are recognized :n profit and ioss
I te penod incurred.

Nevelopment experditure tnar appies research findings 10 a olan or
design for the production of & new or supstanhally improved product

or process 15 capitalised if the product or process s techn.cally and
carrrrercially feasible anc the group nas sufficient resources to complete
development, The captalised amaunt includes te cost of matenals,
direct lancur expenses and an appronriale prooort:on of overhead
expenses. Other development expenditure 15 recognised .~ the profit and
[0$8 account as an expense in the period in which it ogcurs, Capitalised
develenment expenditures are recognised at cost fess accumulatea
amcrtisation and impairment 1nsses



5.8.3. Other intangible assets

Lapenditures o0 erally generated goodwill and Drand names ae
recognised roprofit ana loss i the penod in which thay are nourred,
Otner goauired intangiole assets (patenls, trademards a1d otner ngnts),
are recognised inthe aalance sneat al cost iess accumulatec amortisation
and :noairment lesses. Amortisation s charged to 1ne 1ncome staterment
an a straignl-line basis over tre estimated useful lives of mtang ole assets
Jhiess such lives are inge’inte, intangible assets arg amertised from the
Hdate tney are avallaole for use

5.9, IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carryig ancunts of e group’s non-* nancial asse’s are reviewead
at eacn reporting dale Lo determing whether thare s any indication of
impairment If any suciindication exists, the asset's recoveradle amount
Sastimated. For goodwiil and intangible assets that have indefinite
usefui wves o7 tnat are not yet available for use. the recoveranle amount
15 also estimatzd annually at tne balance sheet date irrespactive of any
irmpairent indicators. [he recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
genergting Lt 1s the grester of 1ts value .n Lse and 1fs far value jess
costs (o seli.

Forthe purpase of impairment testing, assels a‘e grouped together nto
the smallest group of assets thar generates cash inflows fram continuing
use that are largely Independent of the cash Hows of other assets

or groups of assets (the "cast-generating umit”, or *CGU™. Goodw Il
acquired 11 3 ousingss comonation is allocated to the groups of CGUs
that are expeciec to cenefit ‘rom the synergies of the comb nat.on

Armpalirment loss 15 recogrised il the carrymg amount of an asset or ds
CGU exceeds ks eshimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recoanssed - profit or loss. Irpairment 1osses recognised in respect of
CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amoant of any goodwill
alflacated to the units, and then 1o reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets 1n the unit {or group of units). on a pro rata basis

Animparrment loss in respect of goodwill and intangiole assets that nave
‘ndef.rite useful ives 1s not reversad. In respect of other assets impairmen:
Iosses recagrised 11 0 or nenods are assessed as &t eacn reporling date
a5 to any indicat ons that the loss has decreased or no fonger exists. A1
mpairment 10ss 15 reversed if tnere nas peen a change 1N Ine estimates
used to detarmine tne recoverable amount, An rmpairment foss 1s reversed
only Lo the extert tnat the asset's carrying amount does not exceed tne
carrying amount tnat would nave seen determined, net of depreciation
and amortisation, If 1o Imnerment loss had deen recognised.

5.10. ASSETS HELD ¥OR SALE OR DISTRIBUTION

Mon-current assets, ar chsposal grouns comonsing asseis and habi hes,
t1at are expected {o be recavered primarily trnrough sale or distrioution
rather than through conlinuing use, are classified as hald for sale or
distripution. Ys condibion 15 regarded as met only when the sale 15 ugnly
prooable, and tre asset or disposal group 1s avaiiacle for immediate sale
or distripution in s present condition,

Non-corrent 2ssets ard dsposal groups classified as held for sale or
distrioution are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs wo sell. Property, plant and eguipment and intangible
assats once classifed as hele for sale or distributicn are not depreciated
or amerhised, but are considerad in the overall impairment testing of the
disposal group.

w
o

Hon-Larenl 355t Cassdied oy reid for sdle and the assets o ¢ qisposal arouy
classified as helc for sale are presentad separately rom other agsets in the
staternent of tranc.al position. Liatires of a disposal grous classified as helg
{or sale shalf ge presented separately from otwer lanilibes in Lre staterment
cf financial pesitior. The balance sheer for £rior penass s not reciassifien %
refect tne clasaifizausn mihe balarce shaet for (- e latest per od prosemtad.

S.11. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The group nas ibially applied IFRS 9 Financial imstruments from )
January 208, Informatior abagt the effect of inikally apohying IFRS 9 and
Ui group’s acceJnting pol ¢ es relating to financial assets and liabiliies
are provided in NMote 3

5.12. SHARE CAPITAL, TREASURY SHARES AND EQUITY RESERVES
Ordinary shares are classified as eouity. Increrrental costs drectly atinbutatle
o tre issue of ordinary snares and share ophions a8 recognised as 3 deduction
frorm ecuity, net of ary 1ax effects. Woen share capiial 15 repurchased, the
ameunt of the consideration gaid inciuding directly attr.outable costs and
et of any tax effects, 15 recognsed 23 & deducthon from egu by, Repurchases
shaves are classified as traasury shares and are presented as a ceduchon
from tocal equity, When treasury shares are sold o reissued, the amount
received Is recogn-sed as an morease in eguity. and the sLrplus or defict
resulting from the transact:cn s transferred fo/from refained earnings.

The translation reserve compnses ali foraign currency d.fferences arisina
fram the tra~siation of the financat statements of fureign aperations,

as well as from tne trarsiation of hab:lities tnat nedge the group's nat
mvestent 13 a forewgn operation.

The farr value reserve comprises the cumuiabive net change 1nine fair
value of tinancial assets at FVOCL

The nedging reserve applies to cash flaw heages enterad into in order
o tedge aga nst changes In incame and expenses that may anse rrom
exchange rate flucruations. The predit or ioss efect of such transaclions
1s includec in tne profit ana foss account Lpon 1ecognrion of the heaged
cas- fiow The heaging reserve represents toe value of such hedaing
1nstruments that 1s nol vel recogrised in tne income siatement.

5.13. PROVISIONS

A provision s recogrised when the group has a nresent legal or
construclive onligaticn as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that
payments or other outflow of econemic benefits wil he required to settie
the obligation, and & -eliacle estimate can be made of the amount of the
chiigation. Provisions are detarmined as the present value of expected
future cash flows, discountec by 8 marxet based pre-tax discount rare.

Warranly orowsions ace made for expected fulure expenses elated lo
celivered products and services. The provisions are based on nistoric data and
a weignting of all possiple outcoras against tneir associated gropab.lities,

A orovision for restructunng is recognised wnen an approved, detalled
and formal restructuning plan exists, and the -estruclunng either nas
begun or has been announced to the affected parties

Provisions for cotract [osses are recognised wnen the expected revenues
from a contract ase lower tnan the cost of meeting the contraclual
opligations. Before provisions are made, all impairnent losses on assels
associated with the contract are recognised,



5.14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

"he calculation of crémary earr ngs Cer share s basen on the pro‘t
atnoutase 1o ordinary snares usng 1ne waignted average umber of
shares ouistand ng during the reporling penod, afle” deduction of the
Fverage numner of 1reasury snares Neid over the penod. The calcuiation
of diluted farungs per snare 15 consistent witn the calculation of ordinary
earnings per srare, and aives effect 1o all o-gimary srares with d.lut ve
potential Ial were cutsiand ng durnng the pened.

Note 6 | Financial risk and exposure

FINANCIAL RISK

Ine Asxer Grou consists of various operalions and companies that are
exposed to different tyoes of firancial risks, :ncluding credit-, icuidity-
and mar«et sk leg ol price-, interest- and currency nsid. The puraose
of risk managerment is to measdJre and manage linancial nsk i a reliate
manner, thereby ncreasing crecictability and reducing negative effects
on Aker s “inancal results. The Group uses different “inancial instruments
o marage ts Ninarcial expos.re actively.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

1ne gverall onjectives of Aier's capilal management policy are 1o
mamnlan a st'ong cadital base to retain investor, creditor and mar«et
confidence, to ensure financial lexibifity for the seizure of cppartunities
&5 they avise. and to maintain a capital structure that munimises the
caompany’s cost of caontal. For rts surplus hiquidity, Aker pursues &
conservative olacement strategy with rmemimal nisk. The placements neen
0 be flexible in terms ot liquidity.

Tne target rate of return for 1na Industrial noldings 1 12 per cent. The
targat retura for the Financial investments portfoho depends on the
cornposition of tne portfoho, including tne size of cash denosits and

the risk orofile oF the recervavles, |n adtiition, Aker has defined financal
target ndicatars (FTIs) that regulate the relalionsiup betweer: cash and
interest-peanng daot, as well as the capital structure. The rancs worik as
guidelnes for invesrment activities and capital allocation.

Ine govering principle of Aker's dividend policy 1s tnat the company
at all tirmes snould nave a sold palance sheet and liguidity reserves
sufficient to deal with ‘ut.re lisbilit'es, The policy of the company s to
pay annual dvidends corresponding to 2-4 per cent of nel assef value
(vaiue-adjusted). The ma-iat prices of hsted companies are used in
caleulating nat asset value, wnile pook values Are used far omer assats

5.15. SEGMENT REPORTING

Aker defires operating segmerts n2ses on tre groun’s interral
Maagement and reporting structiice. ine groun's chiel operating
cacis:on makes, resoonsitle o tne allocation of resources and
assessrent »f tha performance .n e different oreranng seqments, 1
cefined as the board of direciars. te groun president and C=C anc the
CPC. Aler'snvestment portloha compeises two segments' [ndustral
“oldings and Financial iqvestments. The recognit:on and measurement
ang ed 11 segment “epcrting 15 consistert with the accouting orrcioles
apphed wher prepariag e f.nzncial statements, Transactions petween
segments are conductad on market termis and conditicns Comparalive
segment infarmat.on s usually e-prasentad for changes in regort g
segments. See Mote 8 GOperat rg seaments gvd sig-ificant supsidianes,

CREDIT RISK

The Group's “nancial assers are bank deposits, trace snd other
recelvasies, dervalives, and imvestments 11 snares. Tne Groug's excosure
0 ¢redif ris< is rmarrly related to external receivables. For large projects
and long-term lease contracts. assessment of credit risk related {o
customers and subcontractors are performed in the tender phase and
trougnoul {he contract geriod. Large and long-term projects ase closely
monitored i accordance with agreed milestones.

Trace receivables presented In the palance sheet are net of srovisions
for bad debts. wnich are estimated pased on orior experience as wel! as
specific assessments for some o7 the recenables,

Transact.ons involving derivative financial instr.ments a~e witn
counterparties with sound credit ratings and with whom tne Group nas
signed a natting agreement,

The company withint the group wath the largest exposure to credit risk,

is Ocean Yigld. Ocean Yield faces cradi. sk through counterparties

that 'nay not be able to meet its obligations under a long-term charter
contract, In order 1o mitigate tnis, the company cnarters oul the vessels
to mntemationally well-recogrised companies within the shipging and
offshoie irdustry, However as shipping and oil serv ce ma-kes are
volatile, there 15 no complete pratection against potential counterparly
cefaylt. In December 2018, Soistad Offshore enterad irfo a 6-month
standstill period with respect to payment of interest, instalments and
charter nire with the secured lenders and other crecitors Fallowing

tme standsull agreement there is a r sk related to Solstad Offshore’s
onligations under the cnarter contract with Qcean Yield for the two AHTS
vessels Far Senator and Far Slatesman. Trus resuited 11 an imipairment of
e two vessels at the end of 2018, see Note 12,



The exnos.re 1o credit tisk Us represered by Uie Cofrying amount 0F eaoh [ narual gssen, incluing dervalive fe anc ol mstruments, '+ the batange s-eet.

I he exgosure 1o credit 154 at tha nalance sheet date was:

2018 Carrying amount - exposure Lo Credit nis< (IFRS 9 categories)

Fair vaue

Far valug tvougn

throug 1 proSit otrer comprehensive

Relervables
at amortised

Dervatives
cualified o7 heage

Note and loss income (FvoCH cost  accounting at FvDG Total
irangial interest-bearing non-cur-ent assets ig - - 1 304 - N304
Other non-current zssets iIncluding long-term dervatives 19 6t 512 il - 644

TaAp inl frac eter _¥r Yol ity

Trade recevables, otner irterest-free sne-i-term 2 12 5875 _ 5 B8E
recetvaoles

Current dervat vas 0 3% - - 3472 406
Ierest ceaning snott term recevanies 8 25 426 - 451
Casn and cash egusvalents 9 - - 3786 - 9 786
Total 163 512 27 462 342 8418

nterest-bearing receivables were imparred witn NOK 29 miflion in 2018, 11 additien, a sharenolder koan of NOK 35 mullon frem Akastor Lo the jont
venture DOF Deepwaler AS 15 recoansed aganst the snare of losses from the jomi venture {See Note 223

2017 Carrying amount - expasure 10 credit nsk {1AS 39 categoaes)

Classifled Designated at  Avafiabe for  Receivaples Denwvatives qualified tor
as held for  fair value through  saie finarcial  al amortised nedge accounting al
LT e . Note trading profit and loss assets cost PO Total
{ mancial interest-bearing non-current assets 8 - - 402 4 961 - 5363
Other non-current assels including
lorg-term derivatives 9 a0 99 - 104 - 252
i i alher rest-fr
Traue rec'e\vani?s‘ other interest free 3 ) R ‘g 6078 . g097
snorl-tern recelvaoles
Current derivatives 30 181 - - 98 358
Interest-nearng short-term receivaoles It - 69 10 245 - 324
Cash and cash equivatents 9 - - - 148 - 8148
Total 210 et 431 19 535 198 20543
Aging trade receivables and contract assets:
Gross trade receivanles and Gross trade

contract assets 2018

recevables 2017

Mot past dus 81549 3297
Past due G-30 days 673 642
Past due 31120 days 332 21
Past oue 121-365 days 261 392
Past due more than nne year 648 bS8
Total 10372 5240
Mavements in aliocation to loss on trade receivable and contract assets:

Balance at 31 December 2017 (324)
Adjusznent onnitial apphcation of IFRS 9 €3]
Balance at 1.January 2018 (327)
Imaais ment loss Cwrite-off) i~cluded ir operating prof.t (155)
Reversal of impairments ~cluded n operating profit 10
Impairmen: ircluded n ret firancal itemns (243
Provisions usilsed auring the year 197
Other cnanges 43
Frfects of changes = foreign exchange rates 2

Allocation to less on trade receivable and contract assets at 31 December 2018

(268)




LIQUIDITY RISK

Sauianty nss<s e sk tnat the Group will ce wnable to Uil 15 € nancal obl gatiors as tnay fall aue Tne Groun's approach to marag g higudity risk s
o ens e that 1t always has sufficient lquic:ty to pay s lisbilives as they fail due.

Overview of contractual maturities of financial Habilities, including estimated interest payments specified by category of liabilities:

208 Contractual cesh flows including estimated inteqest pay~ens

Carying Cotractua’ 6 montng 6-12 1-2 2-5 Cwer s
amount cash fow or less mantns years VeITS Ye&E"s
Securad loans N5 (21968} (1 750y 661y (5099 (10274) (31743
Linsecured nank loas 988 11557 (68} [€2))] (395) (815 -
Lnsecured nond 1ssues 13 021 (12 412> (288)  (2694) {29401 (6490 -
Other liabilities 171 074 {94} - (68) - (123
Credit facilities 122 32 (132) . - . -
Total contractusi cash fiows forinterest-hearning habilities 30427 {35841 {2 342) 4432y (B302) (7379 {3186)
Short-ter— derivatve firancial | abilities 585 {586) (373} 152y {54} ¥ -
=0rg term denvative financial labilties 232 {338) - - a8d (149 -
Total contractual cash flows for interest-beering llabiites and denvatives 3244 (36 75) {2715y (45B4) (8545 (17735} (3186
[rade and other pavapies 6 816
Long-term interest-free liabihties 2746
Totai hatniities 30 806
Overview of contractual maturities:
2018 Contractual cash flows including estirates nterest payments
Carrying  Contactual 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 Over s
ToLhe o amount cash flow orless  months years vears y2ars
industrial noldings 21080 (25 £53) (1613 {2809y (3775) (14472 (3186)
Financial investments 975 110053 {264 {95 (647) ) -
Aker ASA and holding compan:es 9179 (934807 (840} (YE8ZY  (4123) [T262) -
Total contractuat casn flows for interest-besang liabihties and derivatives 3244 136 765) (2715)  (4584) (854%) (1773%) (Zi8&)

Long-term interast-free haoilities include NOK 515 milhon 15 deferred tax hanilities ana NOK 381 mulion in defer-ed revenue and prepaid cnarter hre,

The Group's kguidity requrements are extecled to pe met through the talances of hgud assets ang cash ow from operating actvibies. As at 31
December 2018, Lne group nad €asn and casn eguivalents of NOK 9 786 milton. In additicn, the group nas interest-pearing assels of NOK 1 755 milicn

(see Note 18}, and otner investments of NOK 1988 million (see Note 19).

OIL PRICE RiSK

The equity accounted investment 1n Axer BP represents a substantial parl
of t1e group's assets. SIace Aker BP's revenues are denved o the sale
of petroleurn oreducis, the vaiue of the investment and the group's share
of profit or loss are therefore exposed to ol and gas price fluctuations,
With Lhe current unstavie macro environment. A<er BP is conbinuously
evaluating and assessing opnortunities for nedying as part of a prudent

f rancial r sk managemant process, Ay year-end 20°8. the company

had entered into commodity nedges for 2019 cons-sting of out aphions
with average stvixe orice of 55 LSD/boi for aporoximately 12 per cent of
estimated 2013 ok production This corresponds to apornximately 40 per
cent of the aftes-tax valug of estirnated ol production.

Althougn Axer's subsidiary Aker Energy does not currently have any
praduction of nydrocarnons, the camaany 1S exposed to the oii markets
in several aspects, Mar«et condinions will infiuence panks and investars’
apeelite to lend to, or invest i, Aker Eneray. Furtnermore, Axer Energy Is
exposed to rhe cost levels inthe suppher industry that 15 a functon of the
capacity and actevty levels in the sector

CURRENCY RISK

Aker's opergtion 1n the nternational market esalts 11 vanous types cf
currency expasute for the groap. Currency rsks anse through ardinary,
future business transactions, capitalised assets and laoilities, 37d whaa
such transactions imvolve payment in a currency other than the functional
currency of the respective company. in addition, currency risk arises from
investments in foreign sunsidlaries The group's mMain exposures are agamst
USD. GBP, EUR and HRL. but 115 also exposea to several other curencies



In Axer's corsolidared accounts, the foilowing axc~ange “ates nave 022N appled in transiating e acceLsts uf Toraig @ subsiciaries and associated
COMpaTies:
Average rate Rale st Average ‘gie Rate at
Country Currency 208 31 Dec. 2018 2017 21 Dec. 2007
USA Ush 813 RE9 827 3.2
Great Britas GEP 10.85 M2 1065 et
Tne Eurgpean Jnon EUR i 960 295 923 G584
Branl BRL 1 2.75 7.4 255 2418

The average rate and rate as at 31 Decemoer nave neen apnlied when tramsianng the income staiement and nalarce snast tems, respectvely If the
averzge excnange vate for tne nencd does Mot provide a farr esumate of the tansaction rate, tue actual iransaction rate s used

The 1able below illustrates the Group's sens.tivity to foreign currency rate “uctuations. IF the Nerwegiar krone nad been 10% stronger aga:nst S0 in
2018, the effects or the consolidares financial siatements would have beer as shown below. The sensimvity analys:s does not take into aczount other
effects of a stronges currency, sucr as compelitiveness, change in the vaiue of denvatves etc.

L Operating revenue Profit before tax Equity
JSD 8976 2364 22805
Oiher curencies 10785 402 a7
NOK_____ e - 22 402 \1 34.7)__ o 9342
Total o o aes | vam a9
Change if NOK 10% strorge- aganst USD {1976) (25N (3258)
When NOK 0% stronger against USD 40187 1143 3B ER0

Aqer ASA and the operantional companes in the grouc nave prepared guidelines on Lhe management of currency nisks, rcluding hedgirg of exoected
fulre cash Lows a~d value of assets znd labilivies ir: feraian currencies. The group uses surrency forward cantracts and currency option contracss to
~educe currency exposure. The net value of tha group's currency contracts was NGK -352 million as at 31 Decemper 2018,

INTEREST RATE RISK

The group's interest rate risk anses form long-term nor-owings and -eceivatles. Borrowings ana recevasies 1ssued at variable rates expose (e groun
w0 cash flow interest rate 718, Securities issuad at fixed rates axpose the group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 41 December 2038, the interest rate profile of the group's interest-bearing financal nstruments was as follows

o e 2018 2017
Fixed rate mstruments:
irancial assels 1708 471
Firancial liablliies . (5 100) (3824)
Net fixed rate instruments - (3392 (3 353)
Variable rate instrumaents:
Firancial assels 19833 "3 363
Einanciat habilities {25 327) (24 301
";det variable rate instruments (5494) {10937}
Net interest-bearing debt {-) / assets (+) (B B86) (14 2900

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments prof:t o kass, but would epoear as a change it the fair value of te casn flow

The Group does not recognise any fived rate financial assets and liagilities
al far value through prefis orloss. At 31 Zecemoer 2008, the fair value of
interes: rate swaps designated as hedges for narts of deot was NOK -3
million A change i intesest rates as at Tne reporbing date would not affact

~edge 11 the Group's cornprehensive income, Other interest rate dernvatives
are nol deugnated as hedges, and nence a change It Lhe 1nterest rate would
affect profit or loss wiz respect to these instrumants, in 2018, the Aker
Group nas an income of NOK 57 million related to interest rate deivalives



Note 7 | Acquisition of subsidiaries and transactions with minority interests

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDLARIES IN 2018

Aker Energy

Axer Energy AS ("Axer Ere-gy) was founded in Fepruary 2038 a1d s
owned 48 per cent oy Axar ASA and £9 per cent by Tre Resource Group
1RG AS Based on a1 assessment under |FRS 10, Acer Enargy 15 fLliy
consoldared in the Aker Groap. 0111 June 2018 Axer Energy Ghana AS, a
supsidary ot Axer Energy, completed the acquisition of ~ess Grana, tne
operator of the Geepwater Tang Ceoe Three Points block ("LWT/CIPY)
with a 50 percent sarficipatng interest 1t tne cense. The accuisition s
regarded as an acgusition of an asset, The transaction has a total ¢asn
consideration of USCI0Z millien, where USD 27 mullon was paid upan
ciosing of 1ne Lransaction and a furtaer USD 75 mil ior will be payaole
upen approval of tne PeD Tor the DWT/CTP block

The recognised amounts of assets and liabilities assumed at time of
acgquisition were as Folfows:

Intanguole assets - value of licenses BRO
Oiher current operating assets 2
_C__asn and ¢asn eglivalents 12
lml gis_e_ts 894
Trade creditors 1
Oiner nov-current labilities 64
Total liabilities 65
Tolal identdiable net assets at fair value 829
Contingent consideration (611
Total consideration gaid on acquisition 218
Less cash ard casn equivalents acguired (123
Acquisition, net of cash acquired 205

Aker BioMarine

On 17 January 2018, Aker BioMarine Antarclic AS (AKBMA) entered i1to
an Assel Purchase Agreement pursuant ta which AKBMA acguired from
Eapymotec! -d assets and certam liabilities related (o the glopal anll
onerations of Enzymotec fotal payable was equivalent ta NOK 214 mullion
The purchase price eflects. among ather tunas, payment of transferred
nventory and cansideration ror customer relabionsips and Lradermarx,

The recognised armounts of assets assumed at time of acguisition were
as tollows:

Inlangiole assets 168
Inventory 37
Goedwiil arsing on acguistion 16
Total consideration paid on acquisition 214

In addition, on 3 July 2018 Aker BioMarine Antarctic AS (AKBMA)
entered into a Settlemant and Termination Agreement with Orochem
Technologies, inc (Orochem), wheraupon the existing Equuiprment and
License Agreament were termunated and Orochem assigned Lo AKBMA

its entie nignt. title, g interest 11 e patents, invenuons for removal
cf arsen ¢ from kell oil ang cwnersnip Lo punfication tecnology. Total
settlement was equivalers to NOK 23 mithon, nerecf NOK 2 nillion
retated o royalty oayanle Lt tne settiement date and NOK 20 mi o0
refated Lo the intang.ole asset acquired.

Tne agove valzations are based on current avallanie 1M ornatiom anout
farr values as of the acquisiion date i new infornalion necames
avallable within 12 months from tne acguisit on date, ne far value
assessment in tre PPA may cnange, in accordance with gusdance 1
IFRS &

TRANSACTIONS WITH MINORITY INTERESTS IN 2018

In 2G18, acnuisition and sale of minerity interests ard subsicharies’
curchase and sale of ownr snares lead t0 87 17crease 1 manty interesis
of NOK 37 milhan and & decrease 0 maionty interests of NOK 17 miluon,
reccgnised directly nequty and attriouted to the equity nolders i the
parent company See also Note 23,

ACGUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES IN 2017

Aker Solutions

On Aoni 7, 2617, Axer Solutions entered into an agreement to acguire
Renertsen's Naorwegian ol and gas services business to strenginen
the positon as a keading mamienance and modifications suppher
cffshore Norway. Aoout 7C0 employees and a backlog containing
key maintenance ana modificat.ons contracts with Caunor, ncluding
a framewo-k agreement of 10 vears awarded in Decemoer 2015, was
part of the deal. The fransaction was struclured as a1 assel deal

veitr @ ourcnase price of NOK 213 million, Transaction costs of NO<
2.4 millipn nas oeen recegrised as other operaling expenses It the
income statement. Goodwlll resulting from the transaction 1s mardy
attributable Lo the expecled syna-gies by moving Remertsen emaleyees
in Trandhe:rn and Bergen to Aker Solutiens offices in addition to
synergies fram assembled workforce.

The recognised amounts of assets and liabilities assumed at time of ac-
quisition were as follows:

Prooerty, plant, and equipment

Intangible assets 45
Total assets 50
Current operating liabiities 68
Total liabilities o 68
Total identifiabie net assets at far velue {18)
GO(_!_EWJUESIHQ_OH ecquistor _231
TotalAc_o_t_l_sideration paid on acquisition 213

Aker BioMarine

0n 7 August 2017, Axer BroMarine Antarciic AS acquired Neptune's kel
pusiness. The transaction increased the Grouo's market shave, as Neptune
ceased (o orodure and sell «nll gil. The tolal purcnase pnce was USD 35.0
miion (NOK 289 miliion) nichuding transaction fees of USH 10 milion
ncurred ug to the gate of signing. The assets and hat ities recognisec



at Le gcquis 1o date conansed imventory. customer relationsups and
iradenards as follows,

Irtangiole assets 250
lventary o]
Total consideration paid on acquisition 289

I additon, Aker pa.d NOK 179 mithan for otner acaussilions of
supsidaries .1 2017, Tre amount includes deferred savment retated to
acquisitions for ear.er years.

e anove valuanons gre nased cn current avaigule 1nformation apout

far values as of the acquisition date. it vew intormation becomes availatle
Wit 12 monins from the acauisitmn date e far value assessment in tne
FPA May ¢iznge, 1 accordance with auidange in iFRS 3

TRANSACTIONS WITH MINORITY INTERESTS IN 2017

in 2017 tne Axer grouD net purchase o mnenty interests {smares i
supsichiariesy was NOK 103 nilbor. 1rus ted to a decrease 17 minority
nterests of NOK 90 million and a gecrease i1 majonty intesests of NOK 14
miilign. “ecognised oirectiv 1N equity and atinpuied Lo the eguity nolders
intre cament comoany. | addition, suosidianies et sold own snaes for
NOK 7 miilion, iLied to an increase = rauno-ty inferests of NOK 16 nill'on
and a decrease of majority interests of NOK 8 millicn. See alse Note 23,

Note 8 | Sale of subsidiaries and discontinued operations

SALE OF SUBSIDIARIES

In April 2018. Aker sold real estate land areas at Fornepu. The sale
resulted in a gain in Aker Group accounts of NOK 232 million, The
disposal did not represent a separate major Ine of business and s not
presenten as discontinued operations. There have teen no major sales of
subsidianes 11 2018 except for the sales descnbed below for discontirued
overations

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS IN 2018

01 Septemoer 26, 2018, Akastor completed tne transaction 1o divest 50
percent of its shares 1In AKGES Offshore to MITSS1 & COL L, C"Mitsu™)
ang Mitsun Q.S K Lines, Ltd. ("MOL") far a tatal consideratian of USD
142.5 mullion wath interest of 4 per cane from the locked box date on
Decernoer 31, 2077 in addition, there are certain preferential nghts in
respect of the operations of AKOFS Seafarer, inclumng guaranteed return
to Mitsw and MOL and earm-out payments to Akastor in the frst six
years of operations. [ 1e t-ansaction does nol inciude the exisung joint
vanture, Avium Sunsea AS, between Axastor, Mitsul and MOL. Foilowing
the transact an, AKDTS Offshore was restructured 1o consaldate 100
per cent cwnershio intarest 11 Avium Subses AS Akastar, Mitsui and

RESULTS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

MOL holds 50 oer cent, 25 per cent and 25 per cent ¢f the shares i
AKOFS Offshare. respactively, ACOFS Sffshore 1§ classif ed a5 @ joint
venture to the group and consolidated using e equity metnod. Tne
AKOFS Offshore operations, exclusive Avium Subsea AS. are ciass:fied as
discontinugad operalions and the corrparative stalement of profi- and loss
nas peen restated to show the discontinued operat ons sepa-ately from
continuing opeérations.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS iN 2017

On January b, 2017, Akastor corrpleted the transaction to sall Frontica’s
staffing business {(Frontica Advantage) ta NES CGlobal Talent (NES)

17 exchange for a minarity sharehaolding of 15.2 per cent econemic
ownership Interest in the compied ent:ty Frontica Advantage was
classified as disconunued operations and as neld-for-sale as of December
31, 2016. On July 27, 2017, Akastor completed the transact.on to sell KOP
Surface Products to the Weir Group PLL for a consideration of USD

H4 mithon ara dett- and cash-free nasis The disposals resutted inan
accounting gain berore tax of NOK 383 million for Frontica Advantage
and NCK 728 milion for KOP Surface Products, presented as Net proft
from discontinued ope-ations.

Loyt 2018 2017
Operating revenues 821 a2
Operating expanses (850) (940)
Financia. items (76} (103)
Profit before tax {204) (301
Tax axpense (332 128
Profit for the period {237) {174y
Gair after tax from discontinued operations 675 -
‘Ngetﬁprofit from discontinued operations ctassified in 2018 T 438 (174)
Classi®:eq as discontinued operations previgus years:
Operations within Axastor 1049
Operaticns within Kvaerner - 3
Total profit from discontinued operations 438 906




CASH FLOW FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

2018 2017
Net ash How om operating acte Ligs 8 (222
Net cash ‘iow rom mvest.ng act vities ) 1043 (423
Net cash flow discontinued operations 1 051 {364)
Classified as disconzirued operations nrevious years:
Cperalions wilin Aaastor - 876
Operations witnin Kvagrie: (5 {3]
Total from discontinued operations 1648 509

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE
ciabidit es of NOK 34 mudlion class fied as held for sale at 31 December 2018 zre rematning legacies relates to Kvaerer's sale of 185 the oashors
construction pusiness in Nor{h America in 2013,

Note 9 | Operating segments and significant subsidiaries

Cperatimg segments are identified sased on the Group's internat
managerrent- ad -eporting structure, The Group's chiel overating
decision makers, whe are resnonsiole tor the allocation of resources and
assessment of performance in the different operating segments, are
defined as the beard of directors, the CEO and tne CFQ.

holdings is long-term vaiue creation Businesses witin Francial mvestments
are managed as a partfolio with focus on financigl and stateaic opporiunities.

Recognition and measurement apalied to segment reporfiing 13 consisient
wizh the zccounting principles apphed when preparing the financal
statements. T-ansact:ons between segments are conducted o market
lerms and conditions. Ooerational revenues and segment assets are
hased on the geograpnical location of companies

Axer's investment portfolio comprises two segrments: Industrial kaldings
and D inancial Investments. The primary focus for bLsinesses witrin indust ol

AN QVERVIEW OF OPERATING SEGMENTS
Industrial holdings
A<er Solubions

Leading glchal sugoker of products, systems and services Tor the oil and gas industry.

The Aker Grouo's ownership 1nterest 15 46.33%. Aker ASA indirectly owns 34.76%. Aker Kvaerner Holding AS owns
40.56% of Aker Solutions ASA. Aker ASA ownis 70% of Aker Kvaeer Hold.ng AS. i1 addition, Akes ASA owns
directly 5.37% of Aker Solutions ASA.

Axastor Akastor is an oll-services Investment conpany with a porifolio of industrial hoidings and olner ivestments. 1ne
Aker Group's pwnershio interesi 15 48.78%. Aker ASA indirectly owns 36.71%. Axer Kvane’ Holding AS owns
40.27% of Axastor ASA. Axker ASA owns 70% of Aser Kvaerner Holding AS. In addition, Aker ASA awns directly
8.52% of Akasior ASA.

Axer BP Explorabion and production {(E&F) comoany on the No-wegian Continental Snelf.
Ownerskip interast 40.00%, Tre company s cef ~ed as an assodated comaany in the Aker Group, ard s accounted for
using tne equity method.

Kvgerner Leading glcoal provider of engineering and construction services to e energy and 0rocess industry.
The Aker Grouo's ownership interest is 41.02% Axer ASA Indirectly owns 28.71%. Aker Kvaerner Holding AS owns
A1L02% of Kvazrner ASA Axer ASA owns 70% of Aker Kvaerner Holding AS.

Q¢ean Yield
Axgr BioMarine

Financial investments

Cwns, operates and charters vassels, Ownership interest £1.65% as at 3' December 2018.
Biotechnology company Harvesting of <rill production and sale. Owaership 1nteest 100%.

Fhilly Snipyard
Soistad Offshore

Axer Energy

Lognite

Other and eliminations

Design and construclion of vessels. Qwnership interest 57.56%.,

Cwns and ope-ates platform supnly-vessels, anchor naadling vessels and conslruchion servica-vessels Ownersio
interest 2310%. The company 1s defired as an associated company in tne Aker Group. and 1s accourted for using
the equity metnod

E&P company. Owns a 50% ownership interest in tne Deepwarter Tano Cape Taree Points block that is under devei-
apmentin Ghana. 1ne groun’s ownershig in tne cornpany 15 48.03%.

with effect from 2018, Aker Erergy will be par: of industnal bolaings,

Software and digitalisation company. Ownaersnp interest §5.24%.

With effect from 2019, Cognite will be pant of industnal Foldings

Aker ASA ard "olding companies

Other

Cash, other financial nvesiments and other assets.
Companies included are listed 1n Note 1.0 the annuat accounts of Axer ASA and nolaing companies.

QOther compan-es and eliminations. See next section for overview of grouo entities.



SUBSIDIARIES nas else neen given La ali other reieva il factors mentioned 1n 1FKS
Aker Solutions, Akastor and Kvaerner 10 that may ~elo to fuwmenate tie guest:o of control further. Factors
Tre ogad and management of Aker have considered wnsther the Inchcating tnat Ader nas conio! 1MCiuae Akes reprasentalion o
comogny's indrect and direct owrershic interests in Aker Solutions ime romimation committeas, (e fact that leading eminlayees ave

ara Akastor, as well as the irCirect ownerse pon Kvaerner. are suffciert oreviodsly wo-ked for Axer te fact that the companies tnemselyvas

to give it control under IFRS10. Tne pimary consideration nas neen consider Aker an active owner, e1¢. On tie otae~ hand, inisolation,
wnetner Acer s able to control tne outcomne of voting at the cempanies’ the sharenoider’s agreement witn ine Norweglan Slate rzlating tc tne
geneal reetings. After careful consideranan of tis question pased nBiGINg company Axe« Kyaermear Holding AS 1s a factor infaveur of Aker
o ootn tne absciute and relalive ownersaip interests ang altendance Act naving controd. Based o0 ar: overall assessment, the corclusion :s
af previous general meeungs o e comoanies and comparasle that Axer does neve CoMtral over A<er Sclul ¢nis, Axastor and Kvasmer,

companies, Axer nas concuded that sucn control exists Consideration

SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES IN THE AKER GROUP ACCOUNTS ARE PRESENTED IN THE TABLE BELOW.

Comipaties owned directly oy Axer ASA are highlighled. Grouo's ownersiip in per cent and Groun's shere of votes in per cent are egualif notning e se

s dicated.

For further aformation regarding sigmfcant subsidiaries in the :sted comparn es Aker Solutions ASA, Akasior ASA, Kyainer ASA. Philly Sripyard ASA

and Dcean Yielg ASA. piease refer to the comopanies own annual reports,

Business address

Srouo's ownersip in% City iocation Caunrf;'_
Aker BioMarine AS 10C.06 Forneou Morway
Aker BioMarine Anla-chic AS 10G.0C Fornebu Norway
Aker Capital AS 100.00 Fermeou Nerway
Qcean Yield ASA (OCY) 61.65 Fornebl: Norway
Axer Energy AS 4903 Fornebu Narway
Phiily Shipyard ASA (PHLY) ' 5756 Oslo Nomway
Cognite AS 65,24 Fornebu Norway
P Eendom AS ¥ 10C.0C Fornebu Norway
Aker Kvzerner Holding AS 70.00 Foraghu Narway
Anar Solutions ASA {AKSE) 4056 Forebu Narway
Akastor ASA (AKA) 40.27 % Fornebu Norway
Kvaerner ASA (KVAER) 4102 Fornetu Norway
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2018 - OPERATING SEGMENTS

Eimina- Financial
tions Total investments
Axer Gcean Axer Big angd  industrial and
Solutions  Axezstor Axgr BR Wvaerner Yieid  Manne otner  holdings eliminations Total
External ooeraung revenuss 24 422 3709 - 7144 264 1263 173 39326 2838 42163
Inter-segment ravenues 810 GO 76 79 (nr k] 38) -
Operating revenues 25232 2800 - T2 2793 1263 (845 39363 2 800 42 163
EBITDA, 1810 290 - 437 2299 269 (2383 4 868 4 4 397
Capragation and amortisation {739) (181 - Gy (8O3 07a) - (2 011) 86}y (2097)
Impairments 7 - (263 oy - ey 78 (213)
Operatingprett 1048 W03 - 65 (238) 2565 479 2087
Share of earnings in associates and joint ventures ash 1547 - - 1390 {763) 626
Interest inccme 39 67 - 7 26 1 - 160 92 252
Interast exnense (236) 96 20 (&678) 00y - (1122) {404y (1526)
_Other financial iemg &0 20y 4 (84} 5 27 (128) 109 [¢):)]
_Profit before tax 792 ah 1547 338 50 [§l0)] 2m; 2 B65 {1445) 1420
Tax expense {238) {103) - (60) (26} 2 (6} (430 (60) {490)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 554 (154 1547 278 A75 ) (NN 2434 (504 930
Result from discontinged oparations {net uf tax) - (128) - 364 236 202 438
Profit for the year 54 1322 1547 278 47 8 147 2670 {1 202) 1368
Profit far the vear to equity holgers of the parert 488 2718 1547 278 475 {8} 147 2548 (1 742) 906
Property, plant, and equomant 3044 825 967 10388 209 - 17 243 1018 18 262
Intanginles assers 5686 1260 s - 997 - B 647 21328 10976
Investiment in eguily accounted companies 1 1088 9878 69 1668 - 22704 644 23348
External interest-kearing fixed assets 93 257 - 10324 - 10674 1081 11 755
Cash and cash equivalent 2473 198 - 2165 958 22 96 6910 2876 9786
Internal interest-beasing Habikites - - - - (3243 (324) 324 -
External interest-seanng liablities (2813 (60D) - (5317 (1460) - (20292) (10135) (30420
Nel tax habiities(-)/assets(+} 429 kY (265) (7 - 29 556 34 523
Otner assets and lawiiiies 0214) 330 Jig()ﬁ) {663} 305 {08 (2030 274y  (2304)
Equity _ 7 608 4317 19878 3439 7348 1554 (57) 44087 {2170} 41918
Minonty interesy [ge: - 55 (52) (19 856) (19 508}
Total equity attributable to aguity holders
of the parent 7502 4317 19878 1439 7348 1554 (3} 44035 (22026) 22009
value 100 per cent = 0789 3547 3403 3231 9433 2430 60789 34 312
nvestments ™ 505 131 334 il 545 1537 1569 3106
Aker ASA and holding companies key figures:
Dividends received - - 1465 613 2078 96 2174
Gross asset value (GAV) & 3750 1313 31403 931 5816 240 45 625 5588 51 213
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2017 - OPERATING SEGMENTS
Financial
Total investments
fsar Ucean AkerBc Eumy- industrial and
Solulions  Akasior  A<er BP Kvaermer Yiela Marne nabons  holdings  eliminations Total
External oneraling revendes 21891 3519 6501 25N EROKIY (28) 35492 5376 40868
INtEr-58GIMenL revenues 50 87 - 35 233 - 8 3 (3 -
Operating revenues 22461 3506 5530 2804 T038 0 (9503 35485 5373 40868
EBITDA 1519 e - 799 253 142 {195) 4 916 644 5559
Deoreciabon and amaertsation (732) (278) B0y (B4 {142 (2151) 58) (2209)
Imoairments 156) {8 as - 05 (304) 3 (28
_Operating profit T -t - 635 1€s6 (4 (85 246 608 3069
Share of earnings .1 2ssociates and joint ventures @5 09 - - 697 ('3 623
intarest iCome 55 63 22 64 7 21 n3 335
interest expense (293) (144) - 205 (573 {585) E (1126) 351y (1477
Crher financia) terms ) 66 3 - 2 61 (36} [elo)] 123 103
Profit before tax 399 (686} apg 637 1238 (139) (195) 2223 420 2643
Tax expense (160} 20 - (186)  (les) {8) (16 (556} (293) (850)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 239 (708} Go9 s 1072 47y (212) 1667 127 1793
Result from chiscortinued operations (et of 1ax) 548 3 - 227 906 - 906
Profit for the year 229 (58} 99 542 Q72 (147 15 2572 127 2699
Sro* tfer the yoar to ecuity hoigars of the paren: oo@Es am 157 I02 Q47 (08B 1646 ;) 1517
Property, olant, and equinment 3317 4419 - 800 10755 1697 {180) 20807 13N 22178
Intanginies assets 5814 1435 649 i) 783 8762 721 9 482
Invesiment 11 eguity accounted companies ) 10 18 815 17 1548 2039 1233 21 624
Exrernal interest-hearing fixed assets 167 I 4732 - 4 900 787 5687
Inferral Interest-bearnng fixed assets - - 1592 1592 - - -
Cash and casn equivalenl 1978 168 2812 810 22 - 5790 2357 8148
Internal intcrast-bearing habilities - (1484) - - (823) 1494 (823) 823 -
External Intarest-bearing lacilities (374)  (1038) @I (143 (17 980) (10144 (28R4
Net tax lianities(- Y/ assets(+) 526 549 - (219) 6 m 09 1070 30 1100
Other assets and labilities (1640 1127 - (884)  (30&) 243 (95) (1556) 1520 (35)
Equity 7047 5777 18B1B 376 6823 487 (264) 41361 (1301) 40059
Mino-ity interest (67} - - (85) 50 (102) (18 803y (18 905
Tolal equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent 6 981 5277 18 815 3176 6737 457 (214 41 259 {20104} 21155
Ya'ue 100 per cent 12542 4448 29083 4216 10208 14N - 62 009 29 941
Investments ™ 650 97 9N | 346 925 - 3107 652 3758
Aker ASA and holding companies key figures:
Dradends received 820 - 603 - 1424 165 1588
Gross assel value (GAN & 4 368 1643 29083 1220 6828 141 - 44560 5829 5038%
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GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS BASED ON COMPANY LOCATION

QOperating revenue

Total properties, plants,
equipment and intangibles

e : _ 2018 2017 2018 2077
Norway 27 973 24 331 14 760 24 802
Bl 4994 3024 9828 257¢
No-tn Avenca 2924 7619 1629 &8N
South A~erica 1863 27385 1446 2 494
Asa 2 615 2290 776 §61
Other areas 1794 1950 799 e
Discontirued aoerations - {742) - -
Total 42163 40 8568 29237 31660
Note 10 | Operating revenue
ANALYSIS OF OPERATING REVENUES BY CATEGORY
S e Sy . 2018 207
Revenue frorn coniracls with cuslomers ecogrsaed gver Lime 5110 34 653
Revenue from contracts with customes "ecognised at a point .n time 3470 1845
Leasing Income 2 402 2792
Qtherincome 1182 2420
Discontinued operations - {742
Total 42163 40 668

Revenue from contracts wila cuslomers consist of construction
contracts, service revenug and sale of standard products recognised
cver time or &t a pointn bime 10 accordance with IFRS °5. Different
tvpes of customer contracts are descrived below. Warranily orovisions
related To on-going projects and anerous cusiomer conlracts o ovis on
are descrned in Note 28,

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS RECOGNISED OVER
TIME

Revenue forn contracts witn cuslomers i1 Aker Solutions totalled NOK
4.4 pillion in 2018 and include contracts wit 1 custamers to geliver
services, tecnnologies, nroducts and sclubions within Subsea and

Field Design. Each cantract within Subsea s usually assessed as one
perigrmance obligation as the deliveries are comibined i1 one output
Fach enginearing, hook-..p, modification and maintenance jon with.n
Fiald Desigrs usually assessed as a separate performance obligaton
andl revenue is recognised over fime using a cost 07ogress mataod or
accorchng o delivered time and materials. Each service job under a frame
agreement 1S usually assessed as a separate performance obligation
and revenue s secagrised according to delivered hime and materials
within Services Payment terms are normally 30-90 days according

to preciefined milestores witnin Sunsea and 30 days afrer time and
malerials are delivered within Field Desigt and Services,

Revenue fom contracts with customers in Kvaerner totalled NOK

G 8 nithon in 2008 and .nclude contracts with custamers to prov de
enginesrnng, procurament and construchion serwices (2PC-contracts)
far offshore 1ristallalions or onshore plants and decorrmissioning 1hat
have no aternative use for the group. These contracts will usually be
one performance anligaton and revenue is recognised over ime using
a cost orogress method. Serwce revenue is recogaiset] over tirnme using a

cosl prograss metod or 15 recognised according 1o delivered Lime and
materais. Pavment terms are normally 30 days for consivuction conlracls
and an average around 45 gays after lime and mater:als are delivered for
service reveme,

Revenue from contracls with customers 11 Akastor {otalled NOK 2.5
Dillion 11 2018 and snciude construction contracts with customers ta
provide drilling systems, products and services. Each cf the construction
cont-acts normaty inchades a sirgle compined outout for the customer,
SuCh as an integrated drilling eguinment package. One singie
oetformance obligabion s usually idenufied :neach coniract and revenue
15 recogrised over time Using a cost nrogress methad Service ravenue s
recegnised over time using a cost prograss method,

Revenue from contracts witn custamers 2 Philly Shipyard totalied

NOK 1.1 bilkon 1in 2018 and inciude contracts wiin customers regarding
canstruction of merrhant vessels for the Jones Act market. Revenue from
sTpbuIldIng 15 "ecogrised over Ume using a cost progress metnod.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AT POINT iN TIME
Revenue from contracts with customers 11 Aker BioMarine totalied NOK
12 lhan n 2018 and clude sale of kelll products recogmised at & point in
Lime, wnen the customers obtains control over Lhe goods. which 1s based
on the contractual terms of the agreements. Joon sale of oroduct, each
sale waould normally constitute two performance obligations.

Revenue from contracts with cuslomers in Akastor totallad NOK 10
Lsithen in 208 ard include revenue {rom sale of stardard ol elc products
recognised at a8 paint In time. usually when tre goods are delivered to 1he
customers,



Revenue from contracts with customers i FP Eiendorn totallec NOK 1.2
allion 1208 and inciude revenue f-om sales of agartments recogised
at g oot i ume at delivery BG tne customers,

IMPORTANT CUSTOMERS
Arer Nas gne custome: Lnet nas been voiced for more tnan 10 pe- cent
of the group's revenues ir 2018,

ORDER INTAKE AND ORDER BACKLOG AT YEAR-END 2018
{Figures are uhaudited, Internal order bacsiog and order intake are
rot elirmnated)

The order nackiog reoresents an aoligation 1o deliver goads and services
10t vet oretuced, as well as Axker's contractual entizlemant fo maxe
future deirvenies. The performance ophigations o customer contracts
vary f-oma few manths to as long a3s five years. The order nacking

85 at 31 Decenoer 2018 was NOK 48.6 ollion i-e table nelow shows

e expected trring of fulu-e revenue for ongoing ana not yet stared
cerfornance ooligarions at yea -end.

Timing of order backlog

Order mitaxe Orcter backlog 2022 and
R N 2018 2018 2019 2020 200 later
Arer Solulicns 25 421 35148 20671 7396 3684 3397
Kvaarner 9328 625 6 663 2827 979 157
Philly Shipyard - 151 151 - - -
Axastor 4 481 7692 1271 142 - -
Total 39730 48616 28 756 1644 4 663 3554

CONTRACT BALANCES
The followng table provides information about contract assets and contract
iaoilities from contracts with customaers,

DR 31 Decemnber 2008 1 January 2018

Trade recevables 5408 4916
Contracl assets 4 696 4859
Contract hav:liies 1764 1607

Contract assets relate to consideration for work completed, but not yet
invoiced at the reperting date. The coniract assets are transferred to

FUTURE LEASE INCOME

receivanles wher the rfghts te payment become unconditional, waich
Lsualty occurs when mvaices are Issued 1o the customers, Moverenis in
ailocation to loss on trade receivables and contract assets are described

in MNote 6. Contract habilities relate to advances from custamer for woric
rot vet performed at the reportirg date. Revenue recogrused in 2018 that
weas nciuded in contract hatiities in the beginning of the year s NOK 1223
millkory The change m contract assets and haoihities relates 10 ine naturas
progression of the project oorifolio, as well as the current project mix.

LEASING INCOME

Leasing incomne of NOK 2 402 mihon 11 2018 consists mamnly of NOK 1707
millior o finanea! lease incorme and NOK 513 il o in operalional lease
ncoeme from parebeat ~ire 1n Ocean Yield.

Operating lease

STt et e Less tnan oneyear  Betwesn one and frve years  More than five years Total
Ccean Yield 739 2924 2548 6 211
Akastor 16 47 15 178
Total pperating lease 855 297 2563 6389
Finance fease

e il T N iess than one year  Between one and five years  Mare than five years Total
Ocean Yield 1218 4489 8410 14118
Total finance lease 1218 4 489 B 410 14 118

ne table show gross future reverues from finance lease contracts. Present value of the fusure financial lease contracts is NOK § 383 million,

OTHER INCOME

Other income of NOK 1182 million in 2018 consist amang others of gain f-om saie of subsicharies and other assets and i1 addition NOK 393 million i

snare of earnings in jont ventures and associates.
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Note 11 | Wages, personnel expenses and other operating expenses

2018 2007
Wages 11263 1223
Sociai securty conlnipubions 1611 479
Pension cosls 749 72
Otne- expenses 698 780
Personnel expenses ncluded in otier items (358) (279
Discontinuad operations - (98)
Total wages and other personnel expenses 13 963 i3 628
i I
GEQGRAPHICAL SPLIT OF NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 2018 2007
Norway 9757 9423
Eu 2 426 2 440
Nortn America 884 1262
Soutn Amerca 4 001 3565
Asia 2549 2387
Oter regions 362 56]’
Total number of empfoyees at year-end 19 979 19444
Average qumber of emploveas 18712 260949
QOTHER OPERATING EXPENSES CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:
R R A R y 2018 07
Renl and leasing exoensas 1163 1206
Off ce equipment, sales- and ad ninistralion expenses 1060 834
txternal consultants ang hired-1ng, exciusive audit expenses (see below) 1005 737
fravel expanses 517 481
Insurance ’ 169 171
L 03 01 custgTer rageivahles 155 5
Miscelianeous oneraling expernses v 1866 1330
Discomtirued operations - (66Y)
Total 5936 4 698
FEES TQ AUDITORS OF THE AKER GROUP ARE INCLUDED IN MISCELLANEOUS OPERAYING EXPENSES, AND DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:

E ool Ordinary audizing Consulting sevices Total 2018 2017
Axer ASA 2 - 2 2
Subsicharies 34 3] 40 A7
Total 26 6 42 50

Ordinary auail fees totalled NOK 36 million in 2018 (NOK 38 milllon in 2017).

Consulting services of NCK 6 nellion consist of NOK 2.5 milhon in atner assurance services, NOL | million in tax advisery services ana NGK 15 million in

otner nan-audit services.



OPERATING LEASES
Lease and sublease payments recognised in the income statement:

gy DT L e e 2D

- : . Minimu lease payments Sublease ncome 2018 207
3.ichngs and vessels 999 - 999 1158
Macnery and equipment 63 - 163 36
Qther agree nents 1 - 1 i2
teasing agreements as part of other operating expenses 1163 - 1163 1206
Parl of operglirg revenue - 1244) (244) (I635)
Part of cost of goods and cnanges in 1ventory 263 - 2863 G2
Total leasing agreements 1426 (244) 1182 1348
Irrevocable operating feases where the Group is the lesses, are payable as foflows:

- t : 2018 207
Less tnan one year 1122 1394
Setween ore and five vears 3474 3872
vore than five years 3631 421
Total 8228 9477

Aker’s operatoral lease costs and future commitments relate mamly to rent of production sitas, office facilitias, 7 sarvices znd srips. the majarity of these
relates Lo agreements in Aker Solutions with NOK 6 675 million excluding interna contracls, Axastor with NOK 937 rmuflion. Kvaerer witn NOK 424 nillion
and Axer BioMarine witn NOK 56 miilion. the contracts relate to leasimg of nuldings and iocations around the world, typical lease penods are 10-15 years
witn ooLions Tor renewal at markat value, The lease contracts regarding iT services, venicies and equiomant nave an average lease tern of 3-5 years.

Note 12 | Impairments

L 2018 2007
impatrment losses on intang ole assets {(Note 16) (97) 67
imparrment losses on property, plant and equiprment (Note 15} M7y 1323
Reversal of Impairment losses o1 property, plant and eguipmant (Note 15) - 17
Total __@n (281

Impairment iosses on intangibie assets in 2018 of NOK 97 mikior are
marity atinibutasie Lo Ocean Yield with NG 8C million, and Aker
Solutions witn NOK 15 rmallion, Ocean yield has made an impairment cf
goodwill related Lo the FPSO Dnirathal-1. The reason for tha impairment
cnarges in Aker Solufians relates to capitalised development costs

Imparment iosses on proserty, nlant and equpment of NOK 117 miliion

11 2018 are mainly attributabie o Goean Yield with NOK 109 milugn and
Aker Soluddons witn NOK 7 million. Ocean Yield has made an wnpaimen]
charge related to the AMTS vessels Far Senator and Far Statesman

impairment losses on intangiole assets 1n 2017 of NOK 187 million are
mamnly attrbutasle to impairment chasges 1N Ader Splalions and Kvaermer
of canitaises develooment costs. Tne imparrment 1 Axastor relates lo
Intangiole assets in MHWirth,

Impalrment 10ss 01 property, plant and equipment of NOK 132 mifion in
2077 are ‘nainly attributanle to Aker Solulions reialed to assets i1 No'way
and UK and to Akastor reiated to MHWrin

Balow is more delaied mformation aboul Impairmient assessments
performec for the matenal assets with n tne Grouw. See alsa Note 15
Froperly. plant and equioment and Note 16 Infangicle assets

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENTS

Determination of the recoverable amount

When performing imoairment assessments, cash geneating units ave
determined at tne jowest level passiole to entify independent cash flows.

For capitalised deveiopment axpenseas and olner Intangiole assets, ail
developrnent projects are tested guarterly for impairment in waichit s
taken inta acrount markel and tecnnology development, cnanges in order
hac<log, costs ncLrred compared to the budget, and otner factors Lhat
notertally may deternorate the value 1nuse For uncompteted orcjects, fuli
impairment tests are performed annually oy reviewmng and updating the
cnginal business case for each project so future cast flows are revised and
rew presant value calcutated. An imoarnent 1oss is -ecognised tor projects
where the net present value of “uture rash flows 15 lower than expected
recognused capitahsed amount at project comolenion
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tor tne years 2018 anr 2017 tne recaveratile amounts of the cash generatrg
Lnits are founa oy celct ating the value 1n Lse. (e calculations are cased 01
“uture cash flows as asser-ed ic curren: budgets and strategc pians. Cash ‘low
after tax is used In the calcuiations and correspondingly discount rale after :ax

Discount rates:
Discount rates are denived from s waightad average cosi of caoital

(WACC) mocdel The rale s estimatea as & weignted average of the

Discount rate, post tax

required return o 2QUIty ana exoected barrow:ng costs. Tne ¢apnal
asset omcing model for 4 pees grouo of companies within tne same
sector has pee: aopled wnen calculating tne WACC, The nisk-free
mtergst mate s naseq on the mierest rate for 10-yea government bonas
at tne time of {ne mpairment assessrienl, Borrowing cos:s are based on

arish-ftee rate, witr an adusirient reflect ng lona-terv inleres., marg .
fhe discount rate s set for each CCGJ and may the-efore vary cetween
ard within tre sunsidianes,

Discount rate, pre tax Growth rate terminal value

2017

Selskap piul:] 2007 2018 2018 2077
Axer Solut:ons 9.3-9.5 8.4-5.7F 12,2143 10118 15 15
Axastor 10.0 931 12.2 101-11.2 2.0 =20
Kyaerer 8.6 B.7 10.9-10.4 113116 1.0 1.0
Ocean Yield 6.1-8.2 51-83% 7.2-8.2 6.8-8.8 NA NA
Aker BioManne 1.0 100 12.7 ns 2.0 20

Cash flow assumptions:
Cash flow assumpticns varies between the differert CGUs, and tre
assumptions used in the most material assessments are described below,

For Aker Solutions, expectstions apout long -term o prices are :mportant
when assessig the fulure market develooment far the products and
services o the company. After several years with a cnatlenging o services
mar«et. the mariet recovery nas conbinued in 2018, The iong-term ol

price per oar-el has been assumed to gradualy increase Lo USD 70 10 the
terminal year, Trus assurnption 1s particularly sensitive in Lhe current markat
CONLions, —our years cash flows in the perod 2019 (o 2022 projectec
from tne forecast and strategy process, approved by management end

the Board of Directors in 2018, have been used as basis for tne estimates

of “Lture cash flows. The forecasts are based on firm orders in the backiog
and identified prospecrs in aadit on 1o expected service reverue, Changes
In the assumpiions redated to the expected prospects can have a significant

impact an the forecasted cash flows. The forecasted cash flows used In
the mpawmant Lests reflect argenic growsh only. Other parameters 0
t1e assessment are tne mix of products and servicas, tevel of aperating
exopenses and capital expenditure tor maintenance of the asset porifolio.

For Akastor, tne vaiue-ruse calcdlations represent the operating earnings
nefore depreciation and amotisation and are estimated based on the
expected future cerfornance of the existing busnesses i therr mam marsets.
Assamiations are made -egarding revenue growth, gross margins and otner
cost components based on histoncal experience as well as assessment of
future mar<et development and conditions. These assumtions require & nigh
aearee of judgement, grven the sianificant degree of uncentainty regard ng
ailficld service activilies in the forecast period. Akastor uses a consta~t growth
rate not exceeding 2 per cont (Including inflation) for penods oavend the
~anagame: (1% forecast peiod of five years,

For Kvaerner, assumec project awards 1s an essential elerrent i the
IMPairMent testing. The group’s susiness development organ.sation
reviews and considers market nrospecis and selects Larget projects. Target
projects are included nased 00 a probability that Kvaerne will pe selected
as supplier and estrnated revenuas and marging pased on the scope of
work and Kvaerner's experience and Judgment from otner orotects. Cash
flow pro,ections for on-going projects are ased on sudget and forecast.
Explict period *or estimated cash flows 15 2013-2022, Terminal values
reflecting long-term. sieady state revenue and margin jevels are estimated

oased on 2 comivnation of histor.c levels and judgment. A annual growth
rate of one per cent 1s used In calcuiating the terrmnal value for Pra
Solutions and Structural Scolutions.

Ca%s

For Ocean Yield the value in use nas been astimated tor tne FPSO
Chrunnar-i The 10-vear contract for the vessel 1n Incia exp red on 13
Seotember 2018, and alternalive lease alternatives have neen explored, The
most liely utthsalion of the FPSO 15 8 Darenoat charter to Aker Energy for
a penod of 15 years for use offshore Ghana. Ir February 20°3, Ocean Yieid
entered into an aplion agreement with Axer Energy providing Aker Energy
with a nght uatil May 2019 to enter In10 such a contract on negotiated
terms. The re present value of the future casn flows undear the nagot.ated
terms. discounted with Ocean Yield's WACC for the project of 77 per cent,
is nigner than the book vaiue of the vessel as at 31 Decenier 2018 See
oetow tor sensibivilies for the Dirabnal-1 assessment.

The anchor na~dling tug supniy vesseis Far Senator and Far Statesman are

cn long-tenm bareboat charter contracts w0 a subsichary of Solstad Stfshore
ASA ("Solszad”). i1 Decenper 2018, Solstad entered into a b-monih stangstil
sernd with respect fo payment of Inferest, instasmen:is and chartar nire with
tne secured lenders and otner crecitors Following tne standstil! agreement
tnere s A sk related to Salstad’s nnligations under the charter contraris. As

a comsequence, the vessel values have oaen assessed without tne charler
contracts al vear-end. Tne vodue i1 use has peen estimmared for the vessals and
has been caleulated based on tre present vale of estimated future cash Hlows,

For Aker BioMaring, projected cash flows are based on management’s
nes] estimates of budget and the usiness olan for the «ill business

for the subsecuent five-year per.od. The budget 1s based on detaled
oudgels prepared by the vanous departments in tne knil business. For
supsequent perniads, tne modet s pased o0 estimated termimal growin of
20 per cent, wnich s 1n lire witn long-term forecasts for arowtn m GHP
In tne forecast and bucget lor Lhe period 2018-2023, revenue oroections
are based on agreements enterad inte, actual historical prices along with
managemenl's evaluat:on of potential new agreements. Tne budgetec
cperaling margin 1S In accorrfance with management’s forecast whicn

1s based on the scalanility in the business model. A large proportion

¢f the comoany's operaling exoenses are independent of production
volurmes, which means at mcreased sates levels will conrioute to nigher
cperating margins Capita: expendifire is based on long-term techaical
ard gperations grogram and firm comrmitments,



Sensitivity analysis and recoverable amount

In relation to e imparment testing, tne companies nave performed
various sensitmty analysis Below s a sumimary of the sensttivity analysis
pa-ormed i the largest companies.

Aker Solutions

“he mgairment testing i affected oy changes in the icng-term ol price. as o w-lk
mpart the expected ordar intzke, The testing s afso affected by crarges in the
discount -aie, growth rates, and tne anldy o sequre o0 ects as astirnated in the
cash ©ow, product mix era cost lavels, Muttiple sensinivity tests have beenr ru~

to address (e current uncetainty 1N the oif services narket. Sens:hivity testing
of gondwl rcludes Changing vanioLs assumalions te consider other coterdial
alternaive market conditions Tus inciudes changing the discount rate and
growth rate 1 adation (o veducing the expectad cash fiows m the future, Tre
neadroom was comiortaile in sl scenanios 1n the goodwilt imoairment testing

Akastor

For the porttolic companies containing goodwill, the recoveran e
amourts are nigner than the carrying amounts based on the value in
use analysis and consequently roimpairment loss of goodwil was
recognised in 2018. Trie grouo nas per‘ormed sensitivily calculations
Lo dertify any reasonably possiole changs in xey assumetions thar
could cause the carrying amourt to exceed tne recoverable amournt.
Axastor beheves that 1o reasonably possitle change in any of the key
assumptions used for mwairment testing woulc cause the carrving
amount oF the porlioko company to exceed s recoveraole amount.

Kvaerner
For the Process Selutions and Stractural Soiutions oneralional areas,
recoveragle amount for recoanised goodwill exceeds the related carrying

values, ang Comsequently e analysis mthcates that ng Imnarmant is
reguired e fchiowing adverse cnanges couid accur srmdltzneausiy before
ay mpalrment 1 eguired; for Process Solutions revenue reduction of 25 per
cent EBIDA margin reduction of 15 oercenlage points andincrease in pre-
wax discount rate 0f 2 5 cerceriage ooints, For Structural Solutions, ravenue
recli.clion of 8 per cent, EBITSA margin reduction of {.% perceniage point
and Increase - pre-tax discount -ate of 2.2 percentage po.nts

Ocean Yield

S1ouid e aphon agreement with Aver Energy t0 Darenoat Charier the FPSO
Druruonar-1ol oe exercsed, and Ocean Yield not e able to secure alterative
emeloyment, tnere 5 a nsk of imparment related to the nook value of the
FPSO. Tre 0oo« value as of 31 Decernbar 2018 15 USD 2388 mifion. Geean
Yietd nas made an impal ment of goedwill related to the FRS0 of USD &1
miilicn and the pook value cf goodwill s 7erg as of 31 Decernper 2018

ine estimated value in use is fower than the oook value for the AHTS
vesseis Far Senator and Far Statesman, and impairment lasses of USD
1Z.4 milion have been recognisea. The prejected cash fiows Jsea int-e
calculation ot waiue in use regresent management’s vest estimate for
fudure charler hire for tne vessets. Te cash flows cover a perod of five
year, wit an estimated residual value at 1h2 end. Tae calculation of vaive
Inuse 15 highly sens.tive to the estimated future charter hire.

Aker BioMarine

Sensitivity analysis o goodwill nave oeen oerformed Dy using simulations
cf various combinations of discount ates and changes in vessel procduction
volumes, krill production ard knil sales 1n addition to fuel casls. No
2a50nably comb.nation of these factors resuits in a value 1t use being lwer
thar the value recogrised in the balance sheet as of 31 Decemper 2018,

Note 13 | Financial income and financial expenses

RPN 2018 w7

Interest incame . 325
Interast income on cash and casn equivalents and investrmenls at amort sed cost 176 -
InLerest incorme on deot nstruments at FYOCL 76 -
Dividands on financial assets 170 94
et change in fair value of financial equity Investments at fair value tarough profit ard loss 64 -
Net foreian exchange gan 59 -
Foreigr exchanae gain [rom hedge instruments - 366
Net gain from interest “ate swaos 57 7
Other financial income 101 i14
_iscontinued gperalions included above (see Nole B) i - 22
Total financial income 704 958
Interest expense on financial lighibt.es measured at amortisca cost (1487 (1422)
Interest expense on financial liabilties measured at feir value (30} (55)
Net foreign exchange loss - (383
Foreign exchange loss from hedge instruments (297) -
Net lass and imparment on availaole “or sale finantial 2ssets - (53}
Met change in fair value of f.nancial assess at fair value throuar grofit and loss - 09
Net other firancal exoenses (174} {1572
Pﬁi_scontmued operations included above (sea Note 8 - 81
Total financial expenses (1997 (2 Q07

Net financial items

(1293) (1049




Note 14 | Tax

TAX EXPENSE(-)/TAX INCOME(+)

2018 2017
Resated
Recagnised in income statement:
Tris year's net tax -ecervable (+) and oayab'e () {261 (553)
Adjusiment priar years - 22
Total current tax expense (261) {331)
Deferred tax expense:
Ongmation and reversal of terporary aifferences {235 (391}
Ulitisation of previously uarecognised tax losses B 24 7z
Total deferred tax expense (229) (&1
Income tax - continued operations (AS0) (850}
RECONCILIATION OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
2018 2017
o Resialed”
Profit before tax 1420 2643
Nomingl Lax rate 1n Norway 23% {2017 24%) {327) (634}
Taw rate differences in Norway and abroac a4 {6%)
“ermanent diferences 81 (72)
Utihsation of previously unrecognised tax losses 24 73
Tax losses for whicn no deferred imcome tax asset was recegnised (422) (281
lax effect of associated companies 234 284
Other differences (124) (166}
Total income tax expenses in income statement (4500 (850)
TAX RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
: I 2018 2087
Remeasurerert of defined benefil habilibies 15 6
Cranges in fair value of finanzial assots (2} 2
Cranges i fair value of cash flow hedges 20 (169>
Currency translation differences 7 113
Total tax expenses other cormnprehensive income 40 (75}
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS ARE ALLOCATED AS FOLLOWS:
RSP L SR S 2018 2017
Aker Splulions 663 633
Akastor 374 661
Qcean Yield - 23
Other comnpanies 22 47
Total 1058 1359

Defer-ed rax assets refer to NOK 1802 million i losses carned forward and NG« -542 rmillion . temporary differences. The deferreo tax asset relazed to
tne Lax losses carried [orward was "educed by NOK 308 mill:on in 2018.

Ine total unrecognized tax ioss carry-forward at year-end 2018 a7e NOK 120 Dillion. Tris mamiy relates ta Akes ASA with NOK 3.€ pillicn, Aker Captal
AS with NOK 1.4 oiflion, Aker BioMarine with NOK 2.5 illion, Akastor with NOK 2.4 milhon, Ocean Yield witn NOK 0.7 iflion and Aker Solutions with

NOK 05 billion



CHANGES IN NET DEFERRED TAX ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Pronerty, Frojects  Tax losses
olant ana  i~taag:ble Lnciaer carry
aquipment assets consteuchion forwa~d DOther Total
At 31 December 2017 (221) (260) (2 245) 1810 1799 982
Immact of cranges 1N accountieg policies 4 - M4 54
At 1 January 2018 (2213 (2600 (2151 1210 t7%9 1036
Acouisitions and sales of subsidianes 10 5 A 3RS 1)) (222}
Deferrad tacincome statenent - conlinued operations - 8 (253 a7 (38) (229)
Jeferrad lax income statement - discontinued operations (77 - (33) (109)
Ceferred tax tota! comprehensive INCOme - OLREr CoMIrenansive Ncame - - 46 40
Brepad wiinholding tax - 46 46
Exchange rate differences and other changes (1} - 5 a0 an 8)
At 31 December 2018 {198) (2283 (2 407 1602 1779 544
Allocated between deferred tax assets and ligbilities as follows:
Defered tax assets B ass 228 (1 49%) 1634 1298 1059
Deferred tax llanilities 44y o {508} (32} 479 (515}
CHANGES IN NET DEFERRED TAX ARE AS FOLLOWS:
Property, [ntan- Projects  Jax losses
olant and uible uncler carry
equipment assets construction forward Otner Total
At 1 January 2017 (2273 (2522 (34443 31428 1871 1334
Acquisitions and sales of subsidianies 3 - 6} (143 14 (8)
Deferred tax income staternent - continued operalions {207 35 1222 (14463 a8y (319)
Deferred tax income statement - discontinued operations - 110 1o
Deferred tax total comprehensive ncome - other comprehensve income - (175 ars)
Frepaid wilhholding lax - - g4 94
Exchange rate differences ano other changes 16 (4) {7 (56) {3) (54)
At 31 December 2017 221 (260) (2 245} 1910 1799 ag2
Allocated between deferred assets and liabilities as follows:
Deferrad tax assets ‘ (151 (242) (1643 2187 1209 1359
Deferred lax kabdines 7o s (6021 {278 591 (377)

TAX PAYABLE AND INCOME TAX RECEIVABLE

Tax payacle amounts io NOK 168 million and tax receivahie amount to NOK 146 million. Tax raceivable mainly relates Aker Solutions with NOK 109
milkon, A<aslor wits NQK 4 mionand Pnilly Steayard with NOK 28 millior. The 2018 figures are cased on prelirnary estir-ates of non-taxable noorme,
ron tax-ded.ctioie items and ternporary differences batween the financial accounts and the tax accounts. Tre fimal resilt will be calculzred based on

the tax return, anc may ciffas from the estimates above.



¢

Note 15 | Property, Plant and Equipment

Machine-y Lanaatd  Assels uncer

Vessels 3¢ venic.es oditdings consiruction Tetal

Cost at 1 January 2018 25628 10034 5293 951 42 005
Citner acausitions - 243 1ES [l 86E 1320
Sales of poerat:cns (7 063) (08 (507 (73 (7 749)
Ol ner disposals and sc-aponng (39) (5873 (260} (5) (892)
Trarsferred rom assets under corstruction and other reclassifications (2943 277 (32} 312y (360)
Efec:s of changes n foreign excharge rates 901 160 (88) 55 1028
Cost at 31 Decernber 2018 19375 9345 4547 1484 35351
Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 1 January 2018 mg7 (6 728) (1859 (54) (19 828)
Degreciat:on cnarge for the year (1007 (699 (i51) {1858)
Impairments (see Note 12) 064; &) {5 - (172)
Sales / disoosals of ooerations 4164 8l 4 - 4 249
Reciassifications ) 244 4 (3) 5 238
Gther disposals and scraoping 35 567 204 - 806
Cffects of changes r oreign exchange rates (397 22y (6) (2} (527)
Accurnulated depreciation and impairment at 31 December 2018 [CRIVY {6 900) {1828 [ {17 091}
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 11063 3045 2719 1432 18 262
Bor« value of leasing agraements recarded in the halance sheet - 4 123 - 127

Machiiery Land and  Assets under

" ! Vessels and vehicles buildings  construction Total
Cost at 1 January 2017 25428 9733 55682 584 41 339
Acguisitions tnrough Dusingss comination 5 - - 5
Other acquisihions * 1409 223 598 794 3023
Sales of operations - (350) 77 - (427)
Qther disposals and scraosing (18) {1G&) “) - (159)
Trarsferted from assets under construction and uther reclassificaliong 4 655 {(570) 429 (384)
=iects of changes  feregn exchance rates {1:22) (125) 11363 (3] (1392)
Cost at 31 December 2017 . 25628 10034 5383 453 42005
Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 1 January 2017 (I6513) (5963 (2 006 Jei) {13 646)
Denreciation charge for the year {1213 (79%) (153) - (2159}
impairments (see Note 12) - (74) {58) - (132)
Reversais of IMnparments - - - 7 17
Sales / disposals of coerations - 298 40 - 338
Reclassfications 43 (308} 263 2] 88
Otner cisposals and scrapping 5 97 2 - 134
Effects of changes r foraign exchange rates 459 18 52 i 532
Accumutated depreciation and impairment at 31 December 2017 [QRER (6 728) {1853) (54) (19 828)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 14 441 3306 3535 897 22178
Boo« value of leasing agreements recarded in the nalance sneet - 7 128 - 135

i

Car-ying amount at tne end of 2018 amounts to NOK iB 261 million, a
decrease of NOK 3917 million during (ne year. The dacrease manly
relates ta the divesiment of 50 per cent i tae shares in AKOFS

Ctfsnore in Akastor, divestments of a real estate company, 1r acdition to
reciassficat on of real estate projects rom property, plart and equiomeant

0 work i progress withim inventory. See alse cormments below.

This year's depreciation of NOK 1858 milion (NOW 2158 million 1n 20121
divided batweers NOK 1 715 o {NOK 1799 miltion in 20177 in conmnuing
operations and NOK 44 milicn (NOK 360 millior = 2017 in discontnued
operalions. [he impariment of the year 1s NOK 172 mullion (NOK 132 midlion n
2017y dividded between NOK 117 miion {NOK 152 mshion 1n 20173 in continumg
cperations and NOK 55 miilion in discontinuing operations in 2018

See Note 12 moairnents {or more intorrmation regarding impalrment
assessments anc Note 25 regarding collatera



Vessels

vessels totalled NCK 13 063 mdlon at the end of 2018, witn a gecrease of
NOK 3378 rilign during tne year, Tne decrease is Tamily 3touted 1o
the divestment of EQ per cert of the shares ir AKOFS O%shore of NOX
2.9 oilion. n addition to cepreciation and imoarments of NO< 1.2 billion,
“he decrease s offser iy wvestments and foreign exchanage finctuations
of NOK G.7 o:llion.

Tre deprecigtion penods ror e nulls are oetween 10 and 30 years. wiile
{ne macnery and equinmeant on oaard are depreciated over a pernod
petween 3 and 15 years.

Machinery and vehicles

Macnunery ard venicles totalied NOK 3 045 mill-on. a reduction from
arevious vear of NGK 268 milan. T1e reduction s due to deprecation of
NOK 699 mulior. chvestnents of aperations manly in Akastor and otner
disposais 31d scrapping totalling NOK 45 rmillion. Tre reduction 1s partly
oifset py investronts of NOK 168 milhon n add ten to transfer from
astets under constructions and foreign exchange fuctuatiors of NOK 319
mithor

Machinery and vencles are depreciatad over a period between 3 10 15
years.

Buildings and land

Bunldings and land rotalled NOK 2 719 mmiilon. with a decrease of NOK
815 milion In 2018 Trie decrease 15 mainly related o divestments in g eal
estate comoany and transfer of real estate p-ojects Lo wor« In progress
withun invantory and to machimery and vehicles of totally NOK 850
milliory In addition, tne decrease 1s due to olner disposals and scrapmng.

Note 16 | Intangible assets

peprecatos, anparment and 1o eiun exchienge flucsations of NOK 306
rmihon. The reduction 1s partly ofser by nvestrents with NOK 4 mdlior,

Land 1s not depreciated The deoreciat on pe~iods {or ouilaings are
netween 8 to 30 vears,

Assets under construction

Assers under construchion are increased oy NOK 526 miliron duning 2018
10 NOK 1432 ellion. Tne increase 15 partly Que 1o nvestiments mace oy
Axer BioMarine of NOK 253 mill.on in the Antarctic Endurance vessel, as
wali a5 nvestments by Aer Sclutions. Akastor, Kvaernas and FP £:endom
wotalkng NOK 591 rralfion. The increase 15 partly offset oy transfer and
reclassi“cations totall rg NGK 3G7 rmithon.

Contractual commitments

A<er 3ioMznine has at tne end of 2018 entered nto contracts on
mvestments 17 property, plan and equioment for NOK 1.2 o,
Contractual commibments in Axer Soiutions 1s NOK 233 miilion and in
Kvaeraer NOK 166 rmiilion

Ocean Yieid has entered contractual ophigatians for the purchase of
vessels, currently under constructior:, ef NOK 1.8 iliion in total dunng 2018,

Effect of exchange rate changes on property, plant and equipment
Effects ‘rom exchange rate fluctuations represent NOK 501 million anc
are mainiy attributasle to cnanges 1n tne USD/NOK in Ocean Yield,
Akastor, Akar Salubions, Aker BioMarine and Prily Shinvard. Based on
boo< vaiues as at 31 Decerber 2018, a decrease of the USD rate of 10 per
cent will reduce assets Dy about NOK 1.4 biliion

- and gas  Capttaised ¢l and gas

ot i licenses  expioration expersas Goodwill Other Total
Cost at 1January 2018 - - 2098 4275 13377
Acquisifions tnroughn business combinations 880 - - - 880
Otiher acquesitions - 388 16 506 906
Sales / cisposals of subsidiaries and operations - - - (206) (206}
Effects of changes .+ foreign exchange rates 58 27 86 55 230
Cost at 31 December 2018 937 4i6 G199 4635 15188
Accumutated amortisation and immoarrment at 1 January 2018 - - (16273 (2269 (3 895)
Amortisation for tne year - - - (38M (391)
Impairmant losses (see Nate 12) - - 80 8 [&:1)]
Sales / disposals of subsidiaries and operatons - - - 87 187
Effects of chanues in foreign exchange rates - - 15 [&10)] (15)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment at 31 December 2018 - - {1692) (2 520) @2
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 a3y 418 1506 216 10 976




Gaoawill Otfer Total
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 7 282 2147 9429
ACGUISITIONS Erougn business combinalions 239 55 294
Qe acquisitions - 437 437
Saes / disposais of suosidianas and operabions {iG0; (443 (145)
Amorisation for the year (414} (414}
imogs et 1esses (see Note 12) - (167) (167}
Effects of changas in foreign excnange rates 5l (3) 48
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 74an 201 9482

Qif- and gas licenses

Oil-and gas hcenses of NOK 937 illion at the end of 2018 is attributeole
to A<er Energy and Is relatec to NOK 88C mill:on from acauisition of
-ess Ghar~a and NOK 58 miihon 1n forewgn exchange floctuat:ors. License
ngnts are récogmised as intanginle assets at the fime of acouisition, see
Note 7 for further »formation.

Qii- a1d gas Iiceses gre gssessed 107 Imeairment yearly.

Capitalised oil- and gas expioration expenses

Capita sed o - and gas exploration expensas of NOK 416 madlicn at tha
end of 2018 s attrioutaole to Aker Energy and 1s related to NCK 390
e in captabsed exploration expenses and NOK 27 miliign in foreign
exchange fiuctuations,

Goodwill

Goodwili totalled NOK 7 506 millian at the end of 2018, Tne changs
I 2018 of NOK 35 mill:on 15 attrinutabie 1o positive toreign exchange
fluctuations and increase aue to the acqu-sit on of Enzymotec’s krill
business of NOK 10 milt:on, pardly offset by impairment of goodwill
related to the FPSO Dhiruphai-tin Qcean Yield of NOK 80 rrufion.

See taple below ror e allocation of goodwill ver comaany. Goodwill elated
te Axker Solutinns, Axastor 3na Kvaerner originates from vanous acoumsitions
and otier transactions througn e years The goodwill 11 Aker BicMarnine
siems from Axer's acguisition of Natural and the estachsnmeant of Aker
BioManine i1 Decernaer 2006, and is fully aliocated to tne kil business.

Other intangilyle assets

Tne carrying amount of otrer intangible assets of NOK 2 16 miillign

at the end of 2018 mamnly consists of NOK 1538 million 1n capita ised
developmient expenses and customer refationships and trademark N
Aker BioMarine of &%OK 386 mullion. Tha «~¢rease of NOK 168 mitlign in
customer retalionstups and tradernark in 2018 15 due Lo the acguisiion of
Enzymotec's krill-0if pusiness,

Capialised deve opment expenses consisted of NOK 1 323 million
represenling capitaiised expenses for internal R&D projects in Aker
Solutions, rapitaised development propects in A«astor totalling NOK 112
million and in Kvaerner totalling NOK 102 million. The net change of NOK
-7 million in 2018 15 largely attnibutable to depreciation and impairment of
MOK 302 millor. The cecrease 15 offset by capralised expenses of NOK
209 malhian in Aker Soluticns ard Adastor, end NOK 74 million 1 Kvagrner
refated 10 g strateqic chgitalisation projectand I systemns

Other intangible assets are amortised over a neriod cetween 5 10 12 vears.

Amortisation and impairments

This year's amortsation of NOK 391 milion (NOK 414 million in 2017) is
draded between NOK 382 million {NOK 408 miltion in 2017) i continued
coerations and NOK 8 mition (NOK S milkon in 20173 in discontinued
coeralions. Impairment of intanginie asse’s of NOK 97 milion (NOK 1E7
rmillion 1n 20173 15 manly attricutabie to imnairment of goadwill in Ocean
vield and is allocated Lo continued operabons in 2018,

See Nete 12 impatrments for more information regarding impairmen:
assessments.

Goodwill Other intangible assets

I ] 2018 2017 2018 2017
Akar Sciulicns 4642 4 665 1428 1533
Akastor 1359 1263 134 183
Kveprner 929 929 102 42
Aker BioMarine 576 535 416 248
Ctrer - 80 26 4
Total 7508 7 471 2116 2an




Note 17 | Investments in associates and joint ventures

The Axker Greup Nas interests In several assnciates and joint veniues

IV, of whicn tne most mportant ones are; Aser BP ASA (40 per

cent, assoctate), BOX Holding inc. (48.9 per cent, associate], Solstad
Cifshore ASA (230 per cent, essoc.ate) FF B0hg Holding AS (376 per

cent assorae), DOF Deeowater AS {56 oer cent, JV), Kiawit -ivaernar
Contractors (50 per cant, V) K2V ANS (5] per cent, JV3, Philly Tankers AS
(537 per cant. IV, Align AS {388 per cenl, associate), Trygg 10T Hoidinas
Corp (50 per cent, U\, and AKOTS Offshare AS /20 per cent, JV).

Aker BP ASA 5 371 E&F comgoany operating on the Norwegian
Continanta: Shelf.

BOX Holding Inc. owns six coniainer vessels chartered ous on long-term
parebaoat coniracts,

Solstad Offshore ASA ownis and operates platform supply vessels,
ancnor handhing vessels and construction service vessels

AKOFS Offshore AS 15 a nrovider of vessel-based subsea well
construciion and intervention services to the ol and gas industry.

K2JV ANS 5 a partnership salween Kellogg Brown & Root (Norway) AS
and Kvaerng” The parlnership s constructing the Johan Sverdrup utility
and living quarter (ULQ) topside for Equinor,

Book
vaiue at 1 Lffects of accuwsitions

DOF Deepwater AS operztes 17 the manme seCtor The Comisany owns &
senes of five ancnor-handling (AHTS) vassels,

Kiewit-Kvaerner Contractors is 3 sa-tnership betwaen Peter Kiewl:
Pifrastractuce Co and Kvaerer The pa-tnerstp was estainlsnad with
e purpose of delivery of tie contract awarded oy ExxomMoni for the
Hatron Fro.ect gravity pased structure (GBS offshore Newfourdlana,
Canada.

Philly Tankers AS was estanlished 11 2074 with newbuild-contracts far eco-
cesign oroduct tankers, The vessels have been bult oy Philly Snipyard

Align AS 15 3 suppler of techmical safety and total fire-fightirg solutions
for ine globa: ol and gas markst

Trygy IDT Holdings | Corp :s & pharmaceutical development company
wilh FDA approved oroducts for asuse-deter-ent opioids that aas been
licensed to others and launched 10 the LS. mar«et.

FP Bolig Holding AS develoos residential real estale projects at Fornebu
cutside Oslo.

The assoclates and joint ventures are accounled for by us ng the equity
method,

Snare  Changes dug Book
Acquisitions of 10 excnange Otner value at 31

January or disposals of and profits / differences  Dividends changes December

vt I 2018 sudsidhanies in stages disposals  losses and hedges recaved  Inequily N8
Augr BP ASA b 18 BIS - 1547 1030 {1 465} (18} 19 878
HCX Holdings Inc. B 1548 13 - 197 93 (184) - 1668
Solstad Gffshore ASA D 630 - (662 32 - - -
AKOFS Offsnorg AS 2) - 1097 - 20 A4y - 53 1 086
K2 IV ANS 2) - - - 130 - (07 - 24
U0OF Deepwaler AS 2) - - - {102) - - 102 -
Kiewit-Kvaaner Contractors 2) - 47 - 30 - 17
Priliy Tanxers AS 2) 398 - 07 (14) 2] - - 388
Adigh A5 A 61 (&) - : - 56
Iryga 107 Haoldings | Corp 2) 78 - .{58) 1 - - 20
FP Boiig Holding AS b - 180 - 4] - - (81) 98
Quner entities 93 - 323 {400 - () (263) n3
Total 624 1290 306 g 1133 (78N {238) 23348
13 Associates 21082 192 & 107 T152 (1650 64 21927
2) Joint ventures 542 1097 290 &) a8y (37 (301 1421
Total 21624 1290 306 1018 1133 (1787 {238) 23 348

Shares of mef ts/losses frorn assocates and joint ventures are based
on the comparies’ net prot t including profit/loss from discontinued
operations. The ourncse of the nvestment determines where its results
are presented i tne ncome statement, Wnen estities are formed to
srEts 15k 11 execuling projects or are closely related to the operating
actw t'es, tne shares of the prefits ard losses are tepottad as part of
ctherncome in tre operating profit, Shares of profits or losses from
financial imvestments are reported as part of financial items.

Snare of profits/losses for 2018 1s allocated with NOK 393 mulhion as other
income and NOK 626 rill.on as share of zrofiz/loss *rom asseciates and
jort ventuzes as part of fimancial items.

The NCK ~ 2890 million efect of acguisiticns or disposals of subsidanes
stages 1s mainly atiributed to Akastor's lass of controlin AKQFS Offshore
AS upon estaclisnment of the company as & joint ventdre » 2018 (see
Note 8).



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND THE GROUP'S OWNERSHIP IN MAJOR ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES:

AKOFS
Solstaz Oftsnore Offsrore
Axer BP ASA BOX Holgngs inc, ASA A5 K21y ANS
o - 2018 %7 2018 2017 2218 2017 2018 208 2017
Country Norway Ma~snall Islands Norway Nosway Norway
Owrersn:o and voting rights 40.0% 40.0% 499% 485% 2307% 230% S0 0% 510% 51.0%
Operalng revenues 0499 21199 508 £56 4 830 3784 448 1e27 2705
Operaling expenses (14 433) (12 868) 8) (8) (8627) (3058) {269 27y {2520
Financial tems {118 (1622} (1883 {285} 892y  (1055) (345) - -
Near rofis C00%) 2875 2273 473 352 (5 732y {344y (RZ) 256 185
Share of net profit result 1550 909 234 174 €1324) n [€1)] 130 94
E;‘;f;lfsgﬁzﬂ:;?{fahm sales gain and 3 : 37 25 A (80} 4
fnpalrment reversal of imparment - - - - 662 115 -
Shareofearnings ... .. 154 em W 98 6 4n Qo 10 84
Non-current assets B7 647 77837 7094 5934 23808 32333 4 741 - -
Curran: assets 5880 20776 463 A75 304 3806 447 322 825
Total assets 93637 98612 7557 7 408 31649 36138 5188 332 825
Mon-cur-ent llabilities (55606) (50391} 472 (479%) 0013y (29173 {2098 - -
Cur-ent haollities (12053) (237000 (333 (363) (22267 (2002 8o (1063 (B2
Minority Interests - - - ) - {28} (32 - - -
Nel assels (100%) 598 2450 2503 27252 (658) 493 2229 226 1
Share of net assets 10 391 9809 1249 s (152) 1139 ins ELE -
L unreals r .
e o av o s asw oy
Excess value 9567 9035 - - {124) {785y 125 - -
Balance end of period 19878 18815 1668 1548 - 630 1086 24 -
Dividends received t 465 B20 184 17¢ - . . 107 m
orewn 2 Sosrener 208 o o et e r i o2
Aker BP ASA Aker s perforning mparment assessments, Sensitivity analysis of excess
The excess vatue of NCK 9.8 nillion s allocated 1o the Jehar Sverdrup field value have pean performed oy Using simulations of varous comcinations
with NOK 71 billion anc NOAKA-Reld (Nortr of Alvheim, Krafia/Askja) w th cf discount <ates, ol price and value growth. hNo reasonanly possidle
NOK 2.4 billian The reduction of NOK 0.5 aillion n 2018 1s atiriputanie to cembinatien of these factors results i a value 1n use paing lower than the
the effects from excnange rate fluctuat:ons. Togather with the company, value recognised in the balance sheet as of 31 Decemper 2018

Aker BP ASA and Solstad Offshore ASA are fisted comnpanies. Shown below are the share prices and market values of the Group’s share in the companies:

Number of shares Quoted orice in Boox valug in Ma-wet value in
ir millions NOK NGK million NCK mullon
ke BP ASA 1440 21800 19878 31403

Solstad Offshore ASA 67.3 172 - His



Note 18 | Interest-bearing assets

2018 2007
Restricted gencs:!ts 528 12G
Loans te employees 22 4
L0ans (o relaed pales 450 iEN
NEn-Curent nonas 37 L5
Fir ance iease recevanles 10181 47315
Other iterest-peanng receivanles 536 682
Total 11755 5687
Rezoded as follows:
Intarest-bearing nen-cur-ent receivaoles 11304 5363
Interest-nearing cur-enk recaivables 451 324
Total - 11755 5687

Restricted deposits 1r 2018 mainly relales Lo a deposit related to loan
agreemerils witn Philly Shipyard of NOK 388 miliion and wii Ocean Yield

of NOK 140 million

The finance lease receivable of NOK 0.2 pili:on represerts Ocean Yield's
cwnership in 32 vessels and fou~ vessels under construction. Tris includes
MOK 16 bilior against the joint venture AKGTS Offshore AL, for the leage
¢ Aker Wayfare:, See cetalls for the Tnancial leasa rece vablas .n the

Loans to related oarties consists of loans to the associates and joml ventures table below.
AKORS Offshore AS of NOK 257 million, Haut Nordic AS of NOK 60 rrliion,
FP Balig Holding AS of NOK 42 millien and G&A Air AS of NOK 76 million
Axer Contaner Otner
Yo s iy Wayfarer vessels Tanke's shipping Total

Number of vessals 1 4 24 7 36
Gross finance lease receivables

Less tnan one year 348 105 G54 109 1218
Between cne and five years 1089 420 2564 A7 4 489
Mare -han five y2ars 947 684 A078 808 6517
Jnguaranteed residual values G 193 1200 - 1894
Gross finance lease receivables 2882 1407 8500 1334 14118
_ess: Jnearred finance income (312} (294 (2 614) (415) 4 735)
Total finance lease receivables 157 1007 5 886 918 9383
Present value of minimum lease payments

Less 1nan one year 321 102 637 ek} 1165
Setween or.e and five years 735 358 2138 343 3574
Mere than five years 365 447 2481 A7 3760
Unguaranteed residual values 149 05 630 BB3
Total finance lease receivables 1571 1007 5 886 N9 9383
Pre-delivery instalments - - 798 - 798
Total finance lease receivables and related assets 1571 1307 6 685 919 10181




Note 19 | Other shares and non-current assets

2018 7
Norron funds 26 471
American Snipoing Compary ASA 385 27
NES Glopa! falent Ltd. 530 405
Awlico Dnling Plo 76 -
Odfje: Depung Ltd 705 -
Sneres in otner companies. 267 267
Total other shares and investments ) 1989 1420
Pension assels (Note 26 1 -
Deavativas (Note 6 and Note 33) - 50
Giher interest-free non-current recevaes 132 203
Total other non-current assets 132 25%
Total other shares and other non-current assets 21 1672
Note 20 | Inventories
e e 2018 27
Raw materials 103 534
Wori in progress 870 1334
Finished goods 774 593
Total 1752 2460
Imoaiment of inventory recognised as expense during tne senod aon (516)
Reversal of imoairment recognised as an expense reduction duning the cenod 69 87
Carying amount of inventory oledged as security for labililies was NOK 534 million as at 31 December 2018,
Note 21| Trade and other short-term interest-free receivables
DI 2018 2017
Trade recelvabies 5408 4916
Conlracl assats 4 696 -
Construction work - 177G
Otner snost-term interes: -free receivables 3042 5280
Total 13146 1366

Ctner snost-term recevables in 2018 includes prepaid expenses witn NOK 1890 million.

See also Note 6 Financal nisk and expostire.



Note 22 | Basis for earnings per share, dividend per share, and paid-in equity

EARNINGS PER SHARE
: Pl 2018 7

Continued operations:

Ner prefit (loss) from continLes operatiors 920 1793
Mingsty 1nterests 404 609
Profit from continued operations attributable to equity holders of the parent 526 1184
Discontinued operations:

Nel prefit (oss) from d scurtinued operat.ons 438 906
Minorty interests 58 572
Profit from discontinued uperations attributable to equity hoiders of the parent 379 333
Total profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 906 1517
Shaves cutstanding at 1 January 74 295 513 74 281 861
Changes 11 own sfares held {26 721) 13552
Total shares outsﬁtanding at 31 December 74 268 792 742953513
Allocation:

1ssued shares a1 31 Decempe” 74 321 862 74 371 862
Own shares held (53 070) (26 349
Total shaes outstanding al 31 Decemper 74 268 192 74235513
Weighted average number of shares at 31 December 74 282137 74 292 690
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE A dividend of NOK 22 50 per snare. Lotafly NOK 1671 miliion, will oe
No instruments wikt a potential dilution effect were outstanding at 31 prooosed at the Annual General Meeling on 26 April 2019
Decerrber 2018 or 31 Decemper 2017,

PAID-IN CAPITAL
DIVIDEND Sea Note 910 the Aker ASA separale financial slatement for a
Bividends caid in 2018 was NOK 18.00 per share, NOK 1337 millign in total specification of share capital as at 31 Decerrber 2018,

Dividends paici 1n 2017 was NOK 16.00 per share, NOK 1188 myllion in total.

Note 23 | Minority interests

The Axer Group includes severa. subsidiares ownad less than 100 per cent. See Note 9 Operating segrnarts and significant subsidiaries tor key figures

for some of tese comparies.

Percent  Balance Impactaof  Balance Other Mew
minority at 2t changesin at] Profit  compre- minority, Snare Batance at
interests asat 31 Cecemper accounting  January  forthe 1ensive release of issue oy 31 Decemnper
December 2018 2017 poicies 2018 year income Dividend rminerity  subsidiary 2018
Aker Solutions 6524 142 66 10 207 378 (69 - 6 10523
Akastor £330 2388 & 2344 an (358) 1944
Aier Energy 5067 - - - (144) 21 - 19 A7 67
Kvaerner 7129 327 - 327 198 an - ! 3459
Orean Yield 38.34 2425 - 2425 139 150 477y i0 755 3091
Prilly Shioyard 4244 649 - 649 {147 20 - - - 522
Other companies - k| - 3 29 m (22) i 2 4]
Total 18 905 22 18927 462 (248 (4993 37 1229 19908
Minority interest in Aker Kveerner Kolding Share issue by subsidiary
The rminatity interest in Aker Kvaerner Holding of NOK 5 860 million at Ocean Yield received NOK 753 mutlion through a snare issue in Feoruary
31 Decemoer 2018 1s broxen down in the table anove on the companies 2018, The crease in minonty interests after the deduction of the
where Aker Kveerner holding nas ownersnip interests, witn NOK 3 615 minarity share of transactions costs was NOK 755 rillion. Snare increase
million for Aker Sclutions, NOK * 224 million for Akastor and NOK 1122 In Ader Enemgy AS in March and Decemibzer from Tre Resource Group

millign for Kvaerner TRG AS increased minority interests by NOK 471 midlion.




Note 24 | Other comprehensive income

Falr Tota
Translation value Hedging tansianor and Retained Minority Total
PSEfVe  TEeseTVes  eSErves ainervesarves earmitgs Total  terests  equity
2018
Cefined benefit plan actuar &l gairs {lozzes) - - - 30 (3O (53 {82)
Equty .mvestments at EVOCI - net cnange 11 fair value 52 - a2 - 8z J16) 66
Items thet will ~ot ce reclassified to income staterment 82 52 (30 52 1H8) (16}
Deal investments at FWOCT - net change i faur value 4 4 - 4 i 6
Cranges in faer vatue of cash “iow nedges - (59) (52) 523 (36) (95)
e - e ~ P p P I}
ensiston andeosntowbesges O e - a2 a7 7 s @)
Corrency translation differences 362 362 362 153 515
;Iq]g':gist V'eg:[‘eer Egzg;ﬁ?::swve 1mcome from associated st A 21 1128 3 113 2 1133
fterrs that may be reclassified 1o income statermert subsequently 1348 4 (943 1258 3 1261 (i8d)y 1081
Other comprehensive income 2018 1348 86 (943 1340 (27) 1313 {248) 1065
Fair Tolal
Translation value Hedging translation and  Retamed Minanty  Total
‘ i reserve  reserves reserves olnerreserves earnings  Total  interesis  equity
2017
Defned benet plan actuaral gains {losses) (2) (2) 58) {60)
Items that will ot be reclassified to income statement - - - 2 (2 (58) (60}
Cranges in fair value of available-for-sake ﬁn_én::al assets 9 g 9 8) 1
Cranges in fair value of cash flow nedges - 137 137 - 137 203 340
Reclassified 1o proft or loss: changes in fair value of
availacle-for-sale fingncial assets, translation differences and (86) - B84 22) (22) (28) (50)
cash flow hedges
Currency translation differenices 175y - (175) - 7R (65) (240)
gf;?f.ist \Tefimg Egrmnls;?g:swe ncome from associated (910) R U3 (923 (B) (930 @a) (974)
Iterns that may be reclassified to incorme statement subsequently (117 10 188 (973) {8) (981} 58 (923)
Other comprehensive income 2017 (117 i0 188 (973) (10) (8832) (983)
Note 25 | Interest-bearing liabilities
focmo e T 2018 2007
Secured barx loans 17 851 16543
Unsecured bank leans 988 2278
Unsecured bond 1ssues 11021 B 880
Laan fram assaciates and other related parties 12 n
Overdraft facilities 132 149
Other interest-beanng labities 423 263
Total interest-bearing liabilities 30427 28134
Recorded as follows:
Current liabillies 5682 4616
Ne-current liabihities 24745 23508
Total interest-hearing liabilities 0427 26124
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CONTRACTUAL TERMS OF INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018:

Nomira: value Carrying

Currency  Nomna:imtesest rale Malunty ncurency  amouri {(NGK)
Aker Solutions
Jrsecured bond 2019 NOK 3 nnd Nibor + 420% Ocloper 2009 1000 o
Unsecured pong 2022 NOK 3 mnd Moo + 315% July 2022 TE00 1497
Unsecured hanw an - Brazeian Development Batx BRL 9.41% 2018 10 2024 188 425
Clher oans g1d lcan fees (20
Total Aker Solutions e 2813
Akastor
Unsecured pank i0an - lermlcsn MNCK Nigor + 2.25% Decambar 2021 600 588
Overdraft facility 14
Total Akastor 602
Qcean Yield
Secured loans 1 USD Usb Licor + 0.66% - 2.65% 2019 to 2027 1442 12378
Secured laans 1In NOK NOK 3.09% 2025 565 £65
Unsecured nond MNOK Nipor + 365% - 45% 2019 1o 2073 7388 23
Total Ocean Yield 1537
Aker BioMarine
Secured pan« loan ush Ligor + 3.4% - 3.95% 2022 to 2023 123 1470
(lher mortgage lcans NOK 2023 to 2026 m m
Other loans and overd-aft facilities 279
Total Aker BioMarine 1460
Aker ASA and holding companies
Unsecured bond issue SEK Slibor + 3.25% July 2019 1500 1455
Unsecured bond 1ssue NOK MNioor + 2.65% - 5.00% 20319 10 2023 4 700 4678
Term loan laclilies Uso Ligar + masgin 2018 to 202 350 3027
Total Aker ASA and heiding companies G160
Other companies
FPLiendom NOK MNipor +13% - 275% 2019 10 2020 457 A57
Philly Shipyard usy 263% March 2020 60 518
Total other companies 975
Total interest-bearing liabilities 30427

Aker Solutions Kvaerner

Unsecured bonds: The bonds are unsecurad on @ negative p edge casis
and mclude 1o dividend restrictions. The nonds issued are listed on the
Qslo Stocx Exchange,

Bark loans: The terms and conditions of the Braziian Developmant Bank
loan include restrictions wich are customary for this kind of facility,

Crecht facilty: Aaer 50lslions has a credit faciity of NOK 5 oillion witn
expiry In Macch 2023, The credit faciiity was Jndrawn oer 31 December
2018,

Akastor

Mortgage loans: The terms and conditions include -estnctions winch are
custamary for thus kind of tacility, ncluding inter alia negative pledge
provisions and restrict.ons on acquisitions, disnosals and mergers. There
are also certain change of control grovisians Included,

Revolving credit faclity of NOK 2 piliion is matunng i July 2020, The
revabving credit faciity was undrawn per 31 December 2018,

Ocean Yield

Mortgage loan Tre reortgage loans in LD are with a differert bank
syndicatas and are secured 1 46 vessais with a book value of NOK
18.4 willion. The mortgage ioan has an average debt natunty of 4 year
witn maturily frarmn Marcn 2019 to July 2027 Interesis are mainly paid
quarterly.

Unsecurea bonds: The seror unsecured bond issues have a Hoat.ng
interest, wnich 1s naid guarterly Tnhe Cornpany has enterad 1t cross
currency Iterest rate swaps from NOK 1qterest to USD interest.

The facilities inciuce finarcal covenants as to ecuity ratio, rierest
coverage ratio and minimum hauidssy, Ocean Yield was in comphance
witn all covenants at year-end 2078



Aker BioMarine
Secured [0ans, (nstalments and Alersst are paio serre-annualy

[1e morigages and overdral: facility. totailing WOK 1448 mingn are
secured in snins and olner assets with hoow values of NOK 2 477 millon.

“he loan arc overd-af fac fties include several financ ai covenants Axer
BioMarne vas 11 comphance witn all covenants at year-end 2078

Aker ASA and holding companies

Senor unsecdred ponds The maturity dates and interest rates are shown
rrore ndetail In ~ote 14 to Aker ASAs separate fingnoial stateme=ts. The
orrcina fals due on tne maturity date anad interest 15 payanle quarterly
until maturity

Mortgage loan; Tne mortgace loans and the imtesest are paid guarterty,
untl maturily. Tne loans are securec with 42 B million Axer BP ASA snares.

The bonds and icans have ar average debt matunty of 2.5 vear with
matunity from July 2019 to January 2023

Trigre are severdl covenants asscrated wi A<e ASA and noid ng
companes lcans, mcluding geot rane and Lotal nter-al icans and
cuaranees 11 relation to Axer ASA a7¢ holding comonanes et agsed
valug. Akar A%A h3s fu
{ne end of 2018

flleg all tne covenants of (he loam agreemeants oy

FP Eiendom

Loars win a group ¢ Neorweg an banks with floating inferest, Interest
and instaiments are Sayaoie quartetly unti matunty Theioans Mature
witr NOK 337 mill.onin 2018 and NOK 120 m liion after 2019,

Philly Shipyvard
T company's 10ans ate secured 11 snares.

Collateral

Collateral for interesi-oearing dewr of NOK 18.4 million nas peen ssued
relaied to secured loans, construction 1oans end overdraft facites {ne
boo< value of tne assets used as co lateralis NOK 26 tiflion.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP'S INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES IN 2018:;
R I AT Non-cur-ent Currenl Total
Interest-sednmg liabiiities as at 1 January 2018 23508 4616 28124
Bond in Axer Soiuhons 1500 - 1500
Drawn bank facility in Ocean Yield 3567 - 3567
Drawn bank facility in Akastor 924 - 924
Bond it Aker ASA and hoiding comoanies 2000 - 2000
Bond in Ocearn Yield 750 750
Other new loans 435 - 435
Cnange 17 credit facifiies - 7 a7
_Loan fees and estanlisiment costs 3 - {(30)
Total payment of interest-bearing loans T T  sue (7] 9129
Repayment of bank facilities in Aker Saiutions - (1 NEY {1716)
Recayment of bonds in Akar ASA and holding companies - (1300) (1300)
Revayment of bonds in Ocean Yield (783) - (753)
Recayment of bank facilities in Qcean Yield 11 388) (% 388)
Repayment of bank facilities in Akastor G318 - {1319)
Other repayments 2209 (7720) (838)
Total “enayment of |nterest-beaFi=wg lnans (7183 {5133) {7 3515
Acguisition and sale of subsidianies (726) 52 (374)
Reciassification / first vear mstalrents {5356 5385 -
Currency translation and ather changes 395 A67 863
Interest-bearing labilities as at 31 December 2018 24745 5682 30427

Curency adiustments total NOK 0.8 pillion @nd are mainty attrputable te tne USD loans descrined anove. Loans denominaied 1n USD at the end of
the year iotallec USD 19 pillion A 10 per cent decrease s e USD excnange rate compared to the rate of B B9 o7 tne balance sneel date would rave

caused a reduct:on in debt expressed in NOK of NOK 1.6 tullien



o Lo e Ea
The Aner Group's Norweglan companies mainly caver therr pensien The Croup &lso Nas uninsyred 0ansion lalities for wcn provisions nave
lidoiilies 1Irougn group pension ma s managed Dy life irsurance cegn made

comoanies. |ne Norweglan coneanies i1 tne Group are subject Lo the

Norweg:an Act relaling t¢ mancatory occupationa pensions, ard the The discount rates used 11 2018 and 2C17 are based on the No-weg an
Group meets tne raguremeants of s lagislataon, ugr-quality corporate ond rate.

in addition, same of Lthe horwegian companies are memaoers of an The foliowing assumptions nave bean made waen caiculal ing labilities

agreeent-cased early retirement pian (AFF). 11 scnermes prowvide a 3nd expenses 11 Norway

large prooortion of 1ne Norwedian employees {ie ooportunity 1o retra

Profit/ioss 2018

nefore the normal «elirement age in Norway of 67 years. Employees who Balance 2018  and talange 2017
croose retirerrent will retain a [felong benefit from the ege of 62 vears.
Expected return 2.8% 2.4 %
Ihe Group’s compbanies auisidle Norway have pension plans based o4 Miscount rate 2.8% 4%
lazdl practice and reguiatons, Wage growiti 28% 5%
Langion adustment 0.0%-4.0% %23 %
Mo-la'ity tabie K2013 K213
PENSION EXPENSE RECOGNISED IN PROFIT AND LOSS:

T e R 2018 2017
Sapense related Lo benefits earned qur g the oeriod a0 93
Interest exnense atCrued N uension llabiities 35 39
Expecied refurn on pension funds {m {14
Service Costs 1 1
Pensioh expense recognised from defined benefit plans 14 120
Contributian plans (employer's contribution) 658 628
Total pension expense recognised in profit and loss 772 48
Allacation i income statement:

Pensian cosl recogrised as part of wages and other personal expenses 749 >
Interest expenses anc expected return recogrised as part of et financial itams 23 27
Total pension expense recognised in profit and loss 772 748
REMEASUREMENT LOSS (GAIN) INCLUDED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

L LR A DT 2018 207
Change in d scount rate and other finznaial assuoptions (4) 2
Cnange 1 life expectancy 6 (38)
Cnange 11 otner assumptiong 85 103
Other comprehensive income - 10ss/(gain) before tax 97 66
Tax (15) (6)
Other comprehensive income - loss/(gatn) after tax 82 B0
CHANGES IN NET PRESENT VALUE OF BENEFIT-BASED PENSION LIABILITIES:

Bt I T I 2018 2007
Net nensian habilites at 1 January 1189 17238
Penaon expense recognised from define benefit plans 114 120
Acquisitions and disposals 7 n8)
Fension payments 68) (62)
Payments received (130) (154)
Remeasurements included (1 other comprenensive income 897 66
E‘fects of changes -1 exchenge rates and other changes (16) nm
Net pension Habilities at 31 December 1180 1180
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NET DEFINED-BENEFIT QBLIGATICNS RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET:

. 2018 2017
Pension ian ifies at 31 Decemper (2872) {2983
var value of gension funds at 21 December ) R R L§92_ 1794
Net !iabi!ities for benetit-based pension liabilities at 31 Decamber {1180) {1183}
Petsion funds 1 -
Pension iapiies . (1187) {1189}
Net liabilities for benefit based pension liabilities at 31 Decamber {1180} (1139)
Plan assets per category:

2018 2057
EQuity securities - 45
Bonds 1139 1406
Other . 434 219
Total funds Norwegian plans = 1573 1€69
Total funds (or plans outside Norway 19 25
Total funds 1692 1794
Tne equity securities are nvested @iobally, and tne value is based on SENSITIVITY (NORWEGIAN PLANS):
gucted price at the reporting dale witnout any deduction for estirnated Ir tha table below, tre effect on pensicn expenses and pension liabilities

future selling cost Tme bond investments are mainily 1N Norwegian is degicted given a one percentage point increase or decreass inine
muaicipalities. Norwegian mumicipalibies are assumad to nave a rating ascouns rate. The efect of a one percentage point increase or -eduction
equal to AA, put trere are ro official ratings for tne majonty of thesa i1 pension adjustment s shown as well,
Investments, The remaining bond 1nvestments are primarily 1 e
Norwegat market within bonds classified as heing “lwestrent Grage™. %-point 1%-point
ncrease reduction
Discount rate (165} 198
Future pension grow!n 60 (124}
Note 27 | Other interest-free long-term liabilities
L B 2018 2017
S pension gaarantee provision (see Note 12 to the Aker ASA financial statement) 89 93
Dervatives (see also Nate 30) 232 a7
Defered revenue and deferred considerations 381 248
Orher interast-free long-term debi 135 B9
Total other intorest-free long-tarm liabilities 837 627

[ e dervatives consist mamty of interesl rate swaps and currency contracts in Ocean Yield. Deferred revenue consists maiaty of NOK 06 mullion (INOK
251 rdlion in 20073 11 Qeean Yield related to prepaid cnarter hire related to four car carrers and two anchor handhng vessels.



Note 28 | Provisions

War-anties Abandonment provision Qiner Total
Balance at 31 December 2017 F06 247 844 1897
Effect of mplementing IFRSTS 155 123 ) 277
Ac_!juste;! balance at 1 January 2018 ) 861 247 1066 2174
?c_quw-s-i-taon and disposals of sunsidiaties - 75 75
Provisions mads duning Lhe year 27 88 837 1142
Provisiohs wsen duniig the year (1233 (116 {442 (687)
Provizions reversad duning tne year 09y 60 270)
Redlassifications an (8) 94 75
Currency exchange adjustnent 12 43 55
Balance at 31 December 2018 828 223 1513 2564
Non-current liabifites 1 220 221
Currant Lakilities 827 223 1292 2343
Balance at 31 December 2018 828 223 1513 2 564
P T N R T Warranties Abandonment provision Cther Total
Balance at 1 January 2017 801 246 1144 2201
Acquisilion and disposals of subsidianes - (8) &
Provisions made during the year 11 518 689
Pravisions used during the year (127) (570) {697)
Provisions revesed during the vear (139 (179) 317
Reclassificat ons 13 26 40
Currency exchange admstrment - (12} s {11
Balance at 31 December 2017 706 247 344 1897
Non-gurrent liabiuties 13 247 243 503
Current liabilites 693 700 1393
Balance at 31 December 2017 6 247 944 1897
Warrantfes Reliance industries Lid. in September 2018 Te FPSO has now seized

Tre prowision for warranties mainly relates Lo the possioiiity that the group,
based on contractual agreements, may have o perform guarantee wor<
related to nroducts and senvices delivered to customers The provision is
hased on Aker's contractizal onlgations and empineat estimates of the
frequency and cost of work thal may need to pe done. The warranty period
15 normally two to five years and anv cash effects will anse during tris
period. The warranty 0-owision for ongaing proiects previously repo-ted

as part of amounts due Lo or from customers, has been reclassified to
provisions after the implementation of IFRS 15 on 1 January 2008,

NOK 551 mitliar nas been nrovided for warranties in Axer Sowtions, NOK
82 mill.on in Akastor. NCK 187 million in Kvagrner and NOK 8 mitlion in
Philly Stupyard.

Removal and decommissioning liabilities
e current habidty of NOK 223 milhion relates to FPSQ Daruonaet
Axer Floating Production. Tne unit completed its 10-year contract with

sraduction and the gecommissioning of the subsea infrastructure will
be compieted during 2019-2020 Due o some delays. tne cast of ine
decommissioning process Nas incveased. and an additional provision of
USE 2.1 mulion has been recognised in 2018

Other provision

Cther provisions mamly comprise Aker Engrgy with NOK 717 miiion,
Akastor with NOK 320 million, Axer Solutions with NOK 355 millon and
Kyaerner with NOK 46 million. The provision 1 Aker Energy 1S maindy
related Lo contingent habiiity from the acguisition ol Hess Ghana. Tne
provisicn will be settled when tne Plan of Developmenr 1s aporoved by
lhe Ghanaan authorities, see Note 7. Ctner pravision reiates to worklarce
reductions and restructuring In add tion to lease obligations for vacant
premises. The anercus customer contracts provision previously reparted
as part of armourts due to of from castomers, has ceen reciassified to
provisions after the implementation of IFRS 15 o7 1 January 2018,
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Note 29 | Trade and other payables

2018 07
Trade accounts payacie 2732 2600
Contract abilities 1764 -
Liaoifit:es rrom construchion contracts a~d advances - 602
Accraals of operating- end f nancie: expenses 793 6 08t
Otner current inferest-frae liabilities 2102 1347
Total 14 528 636

Otner curreny abilities include VAT, pay-oll tax ang tax withholding and resarves for unoad wanes and “oliday Daymans.

Note 30 | Financial instruments

See also Mote I New standards 2nd interpretations nat yet adooted and Nate & Financial rsk and exposare for descriotion of financial instruments.

FAIR VALUE AND CARRYING AMOUNTS
The estimates of fair value and the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet are as follows:

2018 2017
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

SR TR amount value amount value
Financial assets carried at fair value
Avallable for sale © nancial assets - - 1851 1851
Firancial assets at fair value tarougn otner comprehensive incorne (FYOCI)” 1030 1630
Firaacial assets at fair value through orofit anc loss uncluding derrvativesy? 1108 1108 als] 2
Financial assels cesignated at fair value through prefit and loss - . 168 168
Foreign exchange contracts - hedge accounting at FVOC! 342 342 198 198
Totat financial assets carried at fair value 2 480 2 480 2428 2428
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Loans and recevables 17162 17 746 1267 13 1%7
Casn and cash equivalents {inc uding lorg term restricted deonsits, see Note 18) 10314 10314 8268 3268
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 27 476 28 061 19 535 20005
Financial liabilities carried at fair value
Interest rate swaps - hedge sccgunting at FYOQCH ] ] 18 8
Foreign excnange contracts - hedge accounting at FvQCI 190 190 380 380
Denvative contracss - not hedge accoun:ing at “air value through grofit and loss 618 618 206 206
Other habiktios at tar velue trrough profit and foss® 74 74 - -
Total financial assets carried at fair value B91 851 &04 BG4
Financiat liabilities carried at amortised cost
Bonds n Q1 1 282 B 880 9132
Other interest-pearing dept 19 406 19 469 19244 19 362
Intarest-free no~-current financist halbilites 518 518 266 266
Interes:-free cur-ent financial labil't.es 10724 10 724 6722 6722
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 41 669 41 993 3513 35482

NOK 41 b llion of financiat liabilities classified as fixed rate in the interes: profile table (Nete &) are habiliies that pursuant to centract have f.oating
~terest rates put have been swabpped to fixed rates using nterest rate swaps. |- the tabie sbove, tre changes in the fair value of these denvatves dug to
interest rate changes are shown on the line "Interest rate swaps-nedde accounting at FVOC™ and e line "Dervative contracts - nol nedge accounting
at fair value through profit and loss”



FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

ihe table pelow analyses financial instraments by valuaton metnod. See Nate 5 AccounTing [r ~opes far cefimitions of me gtferent levels 'n the fair

valug ~erarcny.

2008

- Leveil Levei 2 Levei 3
Financial assets carried at fair value
Frrancia assels at fair value tirougn ofner CoMorenensive INComa 424 2 594
“rancal assels &t far value through orofit analoss { ncluding denvatives) 101 67 il
Foreign exchange contracts - hedge accounting at FVOCI 342 -
Total 525 420 1534
Financial liabilities carried at fair value
Inlerest rate swaps - =edge accounting et FVOC] 9 -
Foreign exchange contracts - hedge accouiing at FVOC| - 19C -
TErvative contracts - N0t Pedge accounting at far valee shrough pront enc loss - 618 -
Other habit ties at fa.r value through pretit and loss - 39 35
Total - 256 35
Fair value interest-bearing financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Bonds 8 561 - 2421
Other interest-hearing debt - 19 064 405
Total B 861 19064 2526

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE CHANGES FOR RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS CLASSIFIED AS LEVEL 3 AS AT 31 DECEMBER:

2018 m7
L R Financial assets Financial assets
Car~ying amount as at 1 January 1085 243
Transfer to level 3 8 389
Total gans or losses for tne penod recognised 0 the income statement 41 21
lotal gans or iosses recogrised In other comprenensive Income a4 1
Purcnases 765 445
Divestment and otner (363) (3}
Carrying amount as at 31 December 1534 1 0ab
The ermount of gains or losses for the perod incluced in profit and loss and other comprehensive Inccme that s
attriputable to gains or losses related to assels and liabilibies al level 2 still neld ai the end of the ~eporting period n (3

Note 31| Contingencies, guarantee liabilities and legal claims

GUARANTEES

In the course of ordinary operat.ons, comoletion guarantees are 1ssued
and advance payments are receved from customers. Guarantees are
typically issued T the costamer by a financial institution.

Akasicr ASA nas issued financial guarantees in ‘avour of finahoial

st tatons related 1o financing of tne five vessels In DOF Deepwater
A3, The guaranlee was NOK 507 mithon per 31 Decemier 2C18 (NOK
5G2 milion per 3t Decemiger 20173, of which NOK 117 miflion has been
provided for under othier Non-current Jabiities as part of Lhe recognition
of Akastor's snase of losses 11 2018

Akestor AS has issued a Ninancial parent cormpany indemnity guarantee
of NOK 286 mllion and a financial guarartee of NOK 124 million .1 favour
cf finance institut:ons for fultilment of lease obligations elated 1o Avium
Subsea AS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AKOFS Cffshore.

LEGAL DISPUTES

Througn their activiies, the group comoanies are invakved 11 vanous
aisputes all aver tne world, Provisions are made to cover expectad osses
resulting {rom such disputes if 2 negative outcame is likely and a reliable
estirate can be srenared, However the fnal el sior i sach cases will
always be assocated with uncertainty. ana a habilily may thus exceed the
orov 500 made i1 the accounts.

Kvaerner - Nordsee Ost Project

Ir: 2012, arhitration refated to the NMordses Dst project was filed. The

task wind Jackets far the project were delivered in Octoner 2013 Tne
artmtration process for the project will take time due Lo hign complexity,
and it is currently nol possinle to estimate when the arbitration will be
finalised. There 1s substantial uncertainiy wt~ respect 1o the firal financal
outcome of tne Nordsee Ost orogect.



TAX CLAIMS

Group Companies ae reguiarly mveived 11 maftars under consideraucn
by loca’ tax aulnordies 11 vanous couriries. " ne groud ireats mdatiers,
wiich ~ave not been Tmally resolved, in 2ucersance wthitne nlormation
avalasie at the ime the annual accounts 2re issued

Aker Solutions - Tax claim Brazil

The tax gulnertes i the state of Parand 1 Brasl has claimed the
Axer Solusons company 11 Bragi far apo-oximately 8RL 330 mulon
NG 708 nilo) including perail es and interests, staling that the

corditors for tne export exempuen from HOMS are rof fulfilled. ICMS
is & value acaded tax on sales and semvices related Lo the movement of
cocds Management nas e opiuan that 3 succassful outcore in e

aaranistrative appeal system or in g judicial Jrocess is lidety pased o
current law and cractice. 1ne clain s regarded as a contingent lIabiity
since the possible cutcome vak be corfirmed by re occurrence of an
uncerlan future event {3 sotential court decisiony, No orovision nas neen
mace for ths contingent lizhility sirce 2 cash cutflow 15 not consitiaeed

grecaple, nor s it possidle Lo estaglisn a renadle estimate.

Note 32 | Transactions and agreements with related parties

Ax<er ASA's main snarencider 1s TRG Holding AS contolled by Kigll Inge
Raw«ie tarough The Resource Group TRG AS {TRG AS). The Aser Group
treats all companes controlled ov Kell Inge Rekke as -elated parties.

TRANSACTIONS WITH KJELL INGE ROKKE AND FAMILY

Tarough TRC AS, Kjell Ige Reke owns varnous companies with
nvestrnents i industnial propertias, as well as 40 oer cent of the shares
of e commarcial real estate company Fornenu Gateway AS Companies
witnin the group are tenanis al sevaral of these prope-ties. (1 2018,
compaies withm the group paid NOK 89 mitlion ¢ rent 1o the real
estate companies owned iy TRG and NOK 170 milkon in enc to Fornenu
Gateway AS (NG 86 milkon to the raal estate companies owned by TR
and NOK 17§ muthon 1n rent lo Fornenu Gateway ASm 2017).

Since 2015, Aker ASA has guerantegd for certain pension halilities in TRG AS
{previously Axer Mantime Finance AS) that the comgany Look over from
Aker ASA N 2005 (see Note 12 to Aker ASA'S separate financial statemens,

TRG AS nas 1 2018 contributed NOK 471 mition i equity to Axer Energy
AS. Part of this amount was initiglly orovided as a loan that iater was
coverted to equity, inciuding accrued interest on the loan with NOK 3
midlion, Petrica Hoiding AS ang AGM Betroleurn Ghana Ltd., companies
controlled by TRG AS tnal explere an adiecent oif freld i Ghang, were in
7B ynvaiced NOK 14 milon from Aker Energy AS for mannours related
to Petrica/AGM's od held.

Wren Axer empioyees perform senyices for Kjeli Inge Rekke or other
related parties, Axer's expenses are bulied i full. In 2018, "RG AS and

Kpell tnge Rekke oaid MOK 2.2 rmullion plus value sdded tax for services
and reatal of oremuses (NOK 2.0 milion 1 2017). TRG AS and Kiell Inge
Raicke nave provided services to Aker for NOK 16 million in 2018 (NOK 16
miltion in 2087),

£xcenl for the above-mentioned transactions, and remuneration far nis
wor< 3s chairman cf the boa-d of Aker ASA and board representative in
otngr compaties within the grounp (see Note 33), Aker has no matenial
autstanding accounts or othes Lransactions with Kel inge Raxke.

Kristian Reicke, son of Kjell Inge Rakke, was fired as Cnief Investrrent Officer
1n Aker ASA from 1January 2018, See Note 33 for infarmation about nis
rentuneration in 2018, 1n 2017, he earmed NOK 6 394 790 in safary and other
1eTuneration as CEO of Akastor In 2017 he also ea ned remunergtion for
his role as rremer of the boars of Aker ASA (see Note 333

TRANSACTIONS WiTH EMPLOYEES

In parailel with an :ssue of shares in Cognie to newly recruited employees
in the company dusing 2018, Byvind Eriksen was 3s Cognite s chairman

of the poa-d given tne ooportunity to purenase two percent of tne shares
i Lre company Enksen ourchased tne shaves from Aker on the same
mar<etterms and conditions as tne Cogrite emmioyees, including sales
rastrict ong and 3 five-year lac<upn-period. The parchase prce ‘o7 the
snares was NOK 2 miliion.

As parl of 8 co-investmen: program for leading emoloyees im Aker
Energy, Aker soid in1250 001 snares (19 oer cent) 1 Axer Energy ta
employees of the company in 2018, The snares were sold at mar<et lerms
for a total smount of NOK18 milior.

TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES OLTSIDE
ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS

Several of the companies wilhin the groun nave transactions wilh related
parties Lo the group as part of treir ardinary course of business. T1is
oarticuiarly apohes to Aker BR, wno receved products and services from
several companies within the group, including Aker Solutions. A«astor,
Kvaerner, Ocean Yield and Cognite. Below are deccrighions of other
lransactions with associates and joint ventures cutside ordinary course
of basiness.

DOF Decpwater AS

Awer's subsid:ary Akastor have issued a snaveno der's laan to Lhe joint
venture DOF Deeowater AS (a comoany owned 50 per cent oy A<asicr
and 50 per cent oy DOF ASAY During 2018, the shareholder's loan was
increasad by NOA 24 nithion. As of 31 Decemoer 2018, the balance of the
sharenolder’s 10an was NOK 35 muliion, wile the carrying amount has
neen raguced [0 zera aue ta recogaltion of Akastor’s share of fosses in
2018, Akasor ASA has ssued financial guarantees o favour of financial
mstitutions related o firancing of the five vessels in DOF Deepwater AS
(see Note I1).

AKOFS Offshore AS

As of 31 December 2018. Axastor ASA nad interest-peanng receivanles
against AKOFS Offshore amounting to NOK 257 million wiln maturity
In Seotember 2019. Akastar AS has 1ssued a financial parent company
indemnnity guarantee of NGK 296 million and & financial guarantee of
NOK 124 mailion in favour of finance inst.tutions for fuifilment of lease
cnligations related to Avium Subsea AS, 8 wnoliy-owned subsiciary

cf AKDFS Gffshore, In addition, Adastor ASA vas 1ssued a guaraniee



for payment of preferred dividend fram AKGFS Offshore 6 its otner
Investees over five vears for a total amaoun: of NOK 333 miliipn

G&A Air AS

G&A AIm AS, 3 comoany owned 50 per cent by Axer ASA ard 50 per
cant by Blarr Rure Gieistan, owns 30 arplane. fne arolane is leased

and orerated oy SLadt Air Management wno based an market Lerms
(for tne use) diractly -voices the users of tne airplane. G&EA Air AS had o
loan from A«gr ASA of USD & miliion as a1 31 Decemper 2018 Bjern Rune
Gelsten nas also oroviged a ioan on equal terms,

TRANSACTIONS AND QUTSTANDING BALANCES INVOLYING RELATED PARTIES IN 2018 AND 2017

Aker BP ASA
Axer B nas 10 2008 svoiced NOK 92 ~ullion 10 Aker Energy AS for
services related to e developrrent ¢f Awer Energy’s ol Fela in Ghara,

Haut Nordic AS

FP Eierdom acquired m 2018 a 20 cer cert direct ownerswn intesest in
tae company Miklagard Prooerties Holding AS from tne it ventue
Haut Nordic AS for NOKIE milon

LRI e 2m8 2017
Income staterment:

Operaling revenues 4 067 4 284
Operating expenses {363) (364)
Net financial items 4 3
Baiance sheel:

Finance lease receivatie 1571 -
Interest-bearing recevanie 450 141
Trade receivable and other Nierest-frae curren: assets 669 406
fiotallassets T 24680 547
Trade liabilities and oter (nterest-free current liamlihes 18} aoy
Interest-bearing debt (12) an
RETExposure 2660 26

The operating revenues above for 2018 mamly relate (o the delivery of equinment and services from Aker Solutions to Aker BE and sale of man-hours

from Kvaerner to joint veniure projects.

Note 33 | Vested salary and other remuneration to the board of directors,
nomination committee, CEQ and other senior executives at Aker ASA

REMUNERATION TC AND SHARES OWNED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Shares owned as of

RN PO 31 December 2Gi8 2018 2017
Kielt Inge Rekke (Charman of Lhe Board) ? 50673577 500 000 575 Q00
ki Berg Jacobsen (Deputy Chairman) 5158 415 000 £00 0G0
Krstin Krohn Develd (Director) - 365 000 350000
Karen Simon (Lirector) - 365 000 35D 000
Anne Marie Cannon (Directon) - 365 000 350 000
Atle Tranay {Employee representative) > - 182 500 175 000
Arrfun Stensa (Employee representative) 182 500 175 0G0
Armram Hadida (Empiloyee representative) - 182 500 175 000
Tormmy Angeltveit (Employvee representative since 21 April 2007 # - 182 500 116 667
Krstian Rew<e (Direcior untii 31 December 2017) - 350000
Anne Tysdal Egaas (Emcloyee representative unti 21 Aprid 2017 4 - 583332

Total

3075 000




REMUNERATION TG THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lo 2018 207
Fira Berg Jecobsen (Crarman of 1ne audit committes) 185 000 175 000
Atle Trangy 130 000 125300
Krislin Krohn Deveid 130 000 125 0G0
Total 445 00O 425 000
REMUNERATION TO THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

2018 2017
Kiell Inge Rekxe (Charrman of the nomination commitiee) 45 000 50000
Gernard Heioerg 45 000 50 GO0
Leif-Arme Langay 45 000 50000
Totat 135 000 150 000

All remunarauons are ves.ed during tne year Wnere amounts nave
not peen paid oy the end of the year, provisions Jave peen mate N
accordance witn best estimates

In 2018, The Resource Group TRG AS (TRGY earned NOK 645 000D

N beard remuneration (remuneration 1o Ine namination committes
included) from Aker ASA (NOK 625 000 in 2017, throug Chairman of
tne Board K;ell Inge Rekwe. TRG also earned poard remuneration from
other A«er-owned companies Lotalling NOK 1756 000 through Kjell Inge
Racxa in 2008 (NOK 1 486 000 11 2017}, See also Note 32 Transactions
and agreamenls with refated parbies,

The board mempers earnad ne payments from Aker ASA In 2018 or 2017
except as descrioed above, Some board members also hold directorsnios
In other cempanies within the Axer Group.

AKER'S ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Aker ASA's numercus ooerational companies are orgaised inlo fwo
parfolies; cne industrial and one fnancial. At the end of 7018, Aker's
executive tearn consisted of President and CEO @yvind Eriksen CHO
Frank O. Reite and Chief investmert Officer Krstian Rakke.

GUIDELINES FOR REMUNERATION OF THE CEQ AND SENIOR
COMPANY EXECUTIVES

Advisory guidelines

The total reruneration package for executives consists of a fixed salary,
standard employee pension and nsurance coverage and a vanable salary
element. The main purpase of the system 1s to stimulate a strong and
enduring profit-oriented culture that ensures snare price growth,

The intention ol the varable salary element 1s ta promote e
achievernent of good inancial results ard leadership in accordance w th
lne comipany’s vaiues and business ethics. The variabie salary element
has three mam companents, The first component s 2 payment based on
tne dividend on the company’s snares, and the second component 15 8
payrnent pased on personal goai achievement. Work on soecial projects
may entitle an emplovee to an addibional bonus The third component of
the vanable salary 1s described uncer "Binding guidelines™ belaw.

Senigr executives participate in a collective pension and insurance
sceme open Lo all employvees. The coflective pension and Insurance
schemie applies (or salaries up to 12G. For furtner information regarding
the pensior scheme, see Note 11to Aker ASA'S separate Lnancial

staternents. The mernbers ¢ the execative tean are 07fered standerd
enployment contracts and standard empioyment conditions witn respect
to notice penods and severance pay. [nar employment contracis can

oe terminated on three montns  notice. If the company terminates a
contract, tne execulive 1s entitled Lo three months’ pay afrer ine end of
te notice penad

Binding guidelines

Cne of the three components of tne variable salary 15 & granting of

£onus shares calcuiated on the pasis of the increase 1N value-adjusted
equity. The otner comzonents of 1ne varaole salary are descrioed under
"Advisory guidel.aes” above. naddition, te ermployees have an ophion to
by Aker ASA shares at 3 discount {see Note Z 1o the separate fimanoial
staternent for Aker ASA). "he company does rot of‘er stock optior
programynes for its emnployees.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES

@yvind Enksen's apoointrnent as President and CEO can be termunated
by eilner party on three months' notice. If 7is contract is terminated by
the company, Mr Eriksen is entitled to three months’ notice and three
months' salary fromthe date of termination. 1his amount will not oe paid
if he continues 10 De empioyed by ancther company in e Aker Group
The remureration clan for Mr. Enksen includes a fixed salary. standard
employee pensian and insurance coverage and a variable salasy element
The var:avle salary element may total up to two-th rds of the fixed salary.
Irs 2018, Mr Eriksen earned a salary of NCK 17 260 580 (NOK 15 726 319 1In
Z017), and vanabile pay of NOK 11 316 248 (NOK 10 232 6173n 2017). Tne
vaiue of additional remuneration was MOK 31722 10 2018 (NOK 30 036

in 20077, wrile Lhe net pension expense for Mr. Eriasen was NOK 176 220
(NOK 203 755 in 2017). As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Eriksen owns 219 072
shares i Axer ASA thraugh his wholiv-owned company Eray AS, E-ay AS
alse owns 200 000 snares i Ocear Yield ASA, 208 220 shares in Cognite
AS and 100 000 Class-B shares (0 2 per cent) in TRG Holding AS as al 31
Decemper 2008.

Franis O Reite's appointment as UFO can be terminated by either party
on tree months' notice. IF his contract 1s terrminated by ne company,

Mr. Reite is entitied to three months’ salary from tae date of terrunation
This amount will not pe paid if he continues to be enployed oy anatner
company In the Axer Groug. Tne remuneraticn plan for Mr, Rette 1ncludes
a f.xed salary. standard ermployee pension and insurance coverage and

3 varaole salary element. Mr Rete's vananle salary also includes a
banus-share award scheme including an cotion to ouy Axer ASA shares



at a discount {see Aker ASA Note 2 for a descipton of the scneme),

¥r Reite’s contraciuai va<iaote salary may total up to 140 per cent of s
fixee salary. Mr, Reite earred a fixed salary of NOK 4 583902 -~ 2018
(NOi< 3 799 814 10 2017), a5 well as vaniaple pay of NOK 4 374 198 (NOK
5951260 1 2017) For 2017 tnisincludes e value of allocated nonus
snares in Aker ASA Fer 2018, no bonus shares will be aliccated. Tre
value of additional remuneration was NOK 21 352 i 2018 (NOK 324 726
11 2077), wrhile e net censicn expense for Mr. Reste was NC 172 754 1n
2018 (NOK 2632 532 101 2017). in 2018, through fus wholly-owned company
Faus«en invest AS. Mr. Re te was allocated 2 G1% oonus-shares for 2017
2OV 2 402 ponus-snares for 2016), 10 2018, Reite curchased Lnrougr
Fausken invest AS 4 444 snares al a discount as part of the empioyee
snare ourcnase grogram The share purchase prograrm was not carried
out dunng 2017 As at 31 Decemiber 2018, Mr. Reite owns 71 240 snares

1 Axer ASA trough Faus4en Invest AS. 10 addition, Fausken invest AS
ows 200 000 shares tin Axastor ASA and 111 snares in Ocean Yield ASA
as at 31 Decenwer 2018,

Anstian RBakiee acceded the postion of Chiet Investimen: Officer in Aker
onJandary 2018, The appointment can be terminated by either party
on three months' notice. If nis contract is terminatea oy the company, Mz
Ra<ka 15 entitied Lo three months salary from the date of termination
This arnount will not be paid 1f e continues to be emploved by anotnar

comaany 17 e Aker Groun, 11e semanerglion 0137 1o M7 Rawe includes
a fixed salary, standard emnloyee pension and imsure~ e coverage nd
avanable saiary eement Mr Ro<«'s vanacle salary also includes a
30Mus-5Ee award scneme ciuding ar onbion 10 Duy Axer ASA shares
at a discouni (see Aker ASA hote 2 for a description of tre schemel M-
fekke's centraciual vanable salary may total up 1o M3 por cent of hus Twed
szlary. Mr. Rckke earned a fixed salary of NOK 3 273 835 1n 2078, as wall as
vanatla pay of NOK 2750 Ol e value of additional remuneration was
NCK 16 835 11 2018, while the 1et pension exognse for Mr Rak«e was NOK
170953 .0 2018 As at 37 Decenber 2018, Mr. Raxke cwns 200 0G0 snares
in Axasior ASA (nrough his wooily-owned company Riverun Cagilal
Management AS Mr. Rg<ae 0wns 10 51ares 0 Akar ASA,

Senigr executives receive no remuneration for direcrarshugs or
memperstio of rormination commitlees of other Aser compartes. in
2018, A<er ASA recognised a total of NOK 2 460 567 in respect of @yvind
Eriksen's arectorstps of othes Ake” companies. Aker ASA recognised
NOH 1434 922 10 respect of Frank O Raite's directcrsnios of other Axer
companies sn 2018

Tne Bresident and CLO and otnar senior executives receve no oiner
rernuneration than descrined above, Accordingly, Lherr emoloyment
canditions incluge no loans, guaraniees o stocx apticn nghts.

Note 34 | Events after the balance sheet date

AKER ENERGY - DRILLING OPERATIONS AND POD SUBMISSION

On 10 January 2019, Aker Energy announced a successfui driling
operat.on of the Pecan-4A aporaisal well in the Deepwater Tano/Cave
Threo Paints (DWT/CTR) alock offshere Ghana. On 4 March 2019, Aker
Energy fu-tner announced that ol had peen encountered in tne drifling
the Pecan South- A well, the first of two addizional appraisal wells.

0On 28 March 2019, Aker Energy, on benalf of its license partners,
submitted an integrated Plan of Development (PoD) to Ghanaian
authorties for the DWT/CTP black. Tre Pol presents an overall plan for
a phased develepmenl and praduction of the petroietim resources in
the block, with a firm Phase 1 plan for developr-ont and production ¢f

the Pecan field. The total oil reserves on the Pecar field 15 estinared at
234 millien narrels, axd the contingenl resources (20} is estimated to
NO-21C mmpoe Based on the Pecan Soutn resuits and ore-dnlil estimates
of Pecan South £ast, the company eslimates a potenhial volume upside
of an additional 150-150 mmaoe to the mentioned reserves and 2C
resoUrCces

Tne total vestrnent in Lthe Pecan develogment aroject 15 estimated te
LIST 4.4 billion, of which USD 2.4 pillion pror to first o1l Frrst o [ from
tne Pecan field is estimaled to be produced 25 morths after a final
nvestment decision fallowing aparoval from tne authorilies Further
phases wiil be detaied n addendums to tae mtegrated PoD.
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Income statement

Note 2018 2017
Salaries and other personnel “eiated expenizes 2018 (169} (1663}
Cepreciat o~ of fixed assets ks (14) G4)
Cther oherating exoenses 2 an 37
Qperating profit {loss) (260) {257)
intargst (nceme from suosidianes 40 30
Qrrier iterest ingcome 20 33
Reversed impalrmens of shares 7 - 760G
Dividends from suosiciaries 4 3517 1272
Forewgn excnange gains 85 11
Jther financiel income L 26 154
Total financial income 3 688 2260
Interest exnenses 1o subsidiaries 22y 19
Qther irterest expenses ) {283) 2m
impairments of shares and receivables 7 (1254) -
Foreign exchange losses (15) (88}
Other financial experises {88) (673
Total financial expenses (1662) {444y
Net financial items 2026 1816
Profit before tax 1767 1559
Tax expense 10 - -
Profit after tax 1767 1559
Allocation of profit/loss for the year:
Frofit (+3 / loss (-} 1767 1559
Allacation of drndend {1671) {1337
Allocated to other equity {96) (222)
Total 9 - -




86 Lo sk

Balance sheet as at 31 December

. - Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Deferred tax assets i0 -
Praperty, plant and equipment 3 a8 o7
Stares i subsicdhanes 4 24 657 24 359
Inves:ments .1 gssociates and gl ventdres 5 56 66
Non-current recesvanles from groul ComMoames & 671 9ot
Crher non-current financial assets . . o . 6 n 06
Total non-current assets 25 453 76 088
Cur-ent receivanles from group companies <) 3 505 1260
Other current recesvailes 5 232 22
Cash and cash equivalents 8 B 1310 873
Total current assets 5107 2353
Total assets 30600 28442
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Snare canital 2 081 2 081
Owii shares W )
Share premign 250 250
Other pa d-in equity o 1 -
Total paid-in equity 2331 2331
Other equity 17 816 17 751
Total equity G 20148 20081
Fension hab lities 7i 58 8l
Qther noy-current provisions 12 89 Qa3
Non-current habilibies to aroup companies i3 2 380 272
_Non-current external nterest-bearing dent L ! 4 679 1184
Total non-current liabilities 7 206 5629
Allocaied dividend G 1671 1337
Current external interesi-peanng debt 4 1454 1299
Otner current liaorities 15 121 95
Total current liabilities 3246 2732
Total equity and labilities 30 800 28 442
Fornebu, 29 March 2019
Aker ASA
Kjeli inge Rakke (sign) Finn Berg Jacobsen (sign) Anne Marie Cannon (sign) Kristin Krohn Devold (sign)
Chairman Deputy Chairman Director Director
Karen Simon (sign) Atle Tranay (sign) Tommy Angettveit (sign) Amram Hadlda (sign)
Director Director Director Director
Arnfinn Stenss {sign) Byvind Eriksen {(sign}

Director President and CEC



Cash flow statement

- - Neie 2018 2017
Frofit before tax 1767 1559
Sales losses/gai~s(-) and write-downs/reversals(-} of financial assets 7 1254 760)
Uriragiised fore g1 excnange losses/gains,-) (59) 73
Depreciat.on and write-cowns of frxed assets 3 14 14
Cnanges in ather currant items, elc, {36070 {1448)
Cash How from operating activities 628) (553)
Sales procseds/acg.sitons:-) of fixed assets 3 (5) 3
Acguisitions of snares and other equity 1Investments . (7}
Revayments of interesi-bearing receivablas 106 M9
2ayments oninterest-pearing receivanies (706) {976)
Cash How from investment activities {604) {867)
issue of non-current debt 1985 -
Renayments of extenal interast-bearing debt {1300) {10003
Net repayments/oayments (-) 01 debt to groun comoanies 2345 1239
Dividend pa d and payments from other equity transactions {1361) {1188)
Cash flow from financing activities 1668 {949)
Cash flow for tre year 436 (237
Casn 3ol cash equivalents as at 1 Jandary 8 873 3248
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 8 1310 875




Notes to the financial statements

Note 1 Accounting principles

stemants are prepared and presenced Ir horwegiar kronzr
NGO The  narcisl statements nave peer prepared - accordance

ne © nanceal st

wilh The Norwegian Accodnting Act and generzlly acceoted accounting
anacicles 1 Norway as at 31 Decernper 2018,

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
Suizsidiacies are cempanies 1t which Aker ASA has contrel, Tis nornally
means an ownersho interest of more tnan 50 per cent, and that the

Investment is long-term and of a strategic nature. Associates are
comparies ir which Aker ASA has significant influence, bt not consrol,
wricn "ormally is the case when Axer ASA holds petween 20 per cent
and 50 per cent of the voling snares Joint ventures are contractual
arrangements whereny two o mare parties Jndertake an econemic
activity tat 1s sunject to joint contrel, and wne-epy the part.es have
rights to the net assels of the arrangament.

Supsidiaries. assoClates and joint ventures ave accounted for us ng
the cost methoo in Aker ASA's saparate financial statements. A wete-
down to fair value is nade whenever Impairnent 1s due to causes that
are asstmead to be non-transient. A reversal is made whenever the
impatrment 15 no longer present,

Cividends exceed:ng the share of retained pro®ins since acquisition are
deemed as refunds of invested capital. Sucn dividends reduce the ook
value of tne vestments, Received dividends from comparnies owned less
tan 80 per cent are accounted for when the diidends are approved.

A group contripution received that exceeds Aker ASA's snare of retaned
profits since acousition, i booked as a deductior: from the book val.e of
the mvast ment, with a corresponding deduction of the deferred tax asset
{or an increase (1 deferred tax). in cases where no deferred tax asset 15
pnoked and an amount equal to (e group contriution is transferred pack
to the subsidiary as a grouo contribution without tax effect, the entire
reCeIVEd groun contribution will be recorded as a deduction from the book
value of the investment (withaut any corresonncing antry with resonect

to geferred tax assels/defer-ed tax) The groun contnoution witnout tax
effect is than correspondingly recorded as an increase in the bock value of
the investmert, wath the result that zhe net esect or the investment 1s zero,
This reflects the ‘act Lhat, overall, the "aircula group contribuicn” has not
canstituted a transfer of value petweer Aker ASA and the subsidiary.

CLASSIFICATION AND ASSESMENT OF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Current assets and currant laoil ties comnprise items that fall due wirnin
one year afier the batence steet cate. Other ilems ara classilied as non-
current assers/mnon-current llabiites.

Current assets are valued at the iower of acquisition cost o- fair value.
Current debxt 15 recogrused at its nominal value at the tima it was recarded.

Non-current assels are vaiued al acguisition cost out wnitten down to fair
value wheniever imparment is deemed non-transient. Non-cur-ent deot
is recognised at its nominal value af the time it was established. Fixed
imlerest -ate bords are accounted for at amortised cost,

RECEIVABLES
Trade recevables and ather vecevables are recorded at par vaiue aftar

e sustractior: of a provision for expected iosses, Prov.sions are made
for lossas nased on ndividus) assessents of eacn receivaoie.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Transactic 1s in foregn currencies are transizted 1nto NOK using The
exchange -ates applicanle at tve time of eac transact o, Monetary
teTs i1 foreIgn currencies are translated into NOK using tne exchange
rates aoolicabie on the naance sneet date. Mon-monetary iterns trat are
measured at fa- vaive 11 a foreign currancy ae transiated into NOK using
tne excnange -ates appilcanle on tne date of measrement. Vaiuation
changes due Lo pxcharge rate fluctuat.ons are recordec on 3 Cont ~uous
basis under cther financial items.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Non-current assels are recognised and deoreciated over thair estimated
useful Ifes, Dnect mantenance of cperating assets 15 expensed on

an ongoing basis as operating expenses, whie mprovenenls and
enhancenents are added to the acaustion cost and depreciated i1 ine with
the asset, If tre recoverable amount of the aperating asset 15 less thar its
carrying value, the recoveraole amount 1s impaired. The recoverab.e amount
15 tne nighear of net sales vatue and value-in-use. Value-in-use Is the present
vatue of the future cash flows trat the asset 1s expected to generate.

PENSIONS

Pension expenses and oension llanlibes are calculated according to Iinear

vesting based on expected final salary. Mhe caledlat o s oased on a number of
2531:mptins sikn as Me discount rate, futlre salary Increases, oensions and other
soc-al benat s Fom tne Norwegian nationst iInsurance sysfem {Folketrygden?,
futiire returns on pension funds and actuanal assumptions regarding mortality
and volurigary retirernent, Pension funds are “ecognised al fair value.

TAX

Tne tax expense in the ncome stalernent inclucies both Lhe tax payale for
tna period and cnanges in cefer-ed tax. Deferred tax 1s ca culated at a nominal
value rate hased on the temporary differences that exst bebween accounting
and tax vaiuas, and tax losses carried forward at the end of the accounting
yeer. Tex increasirg and tax decreasing ternporary differences that reverse

or can be reversed 11 the same penad are of'set, Net ceferred tax assets are
recognised Lo e extent that it s probagie tnat they can oe utihsed,

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The cash flow staterrent 1s orepared accord ng to the indirect method,
Cash and ¢ash equivalents consist of cash, oanx deposis and clner

current, ligud 1vesiments,

THE USE OF ESTIMATES

Pregparation of the annuat acceunts in accordance with geerally accepted
acceunting principles reguires management to maxke judgments, estimates
and assumphions trat affect the aoplication of acco.nting principles, as

weli as [ne reported amounts of assets and liabilities, Income and expenses.

The estirmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed and essessed on
an ongoing basis, and are based o historical expenence and vanous ather
factors considered to be reasonatle. Changes fo the accounting estimates
are recogrused in tme profit and loss account In the same ceriod as the
wre in whicn the estirnates are revised, untess deferred ailacations are
prescrived Dy generally accepted accounting princioles.



Note 2 | Salaries and other personnel expenses

2018 7
Samnes 126 i
Soc.al secunty contnoutinns 23 21
eNSIGT Xpenios exciosive finencial iters {see Note 11) 14 7
Uiher penetits 7 17
Total salaries and other personnel expenses 169 IS
Numper of emiployees at vear-end 39 %7
Numnger ¢f full rme equivalenls at year-end 33 =7
AUDIT FEE IS INCLUDED IN OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES AND CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING:
T S T A T P T ‘ 208 2017
Statutary audit 1.9 2]
Altestasion services - -
Tax servicas - .
Other services 01 0.2
Total 20 24
REMUNERATION TO/FROM GROUP COMPANIES AND RELATED PARTIES CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:
T N i 2018 2017
Invorced for services and office rent within the Grouo 15.7 08
Invoiced for services to The Resaurce Groun TRG AS 21 20
Procured services from tne T1e Resource Grou TRG AS and Kiell inge Rak«e (1.6} (.63
Board fee 1o Tre Resource Group TRG AS, excluding payroll tax (0.6) {C.0)
Total 15.6 106

Seg Note 32 to the group dccounts for otner transactions with related oarties

INCENTIVE PROGRAMME FOR EMPLOYEES (EXCLUDING THE
PRESIDENT AND CEQ)

Acer ASA nas adooted an incentive programme ta promote the
company’s geals and give emoloyess the same molivation as
snareholders. In 2018, tne incentive prograrmme had the following
alements:

= adnadend bonus, based on the A<er ASA dividend

= apersonal Donus, oased on personal achieverneant

= ponus shares, allocated on the basis of on a1 agreed 1ncrease In net
asset value

= anopficn to purcnase Axer ASA shares subject to a lock-up percd.

See hate 33 [0 the group accounts regarding the incettive programme
for Lhe Presiddent and CEO.

BONUS CEILING

Dividends and personai bonuses are paid in casn in the year after ine
vesting year. Part.c:pants can achieve a total bonus equal to a defined
percentage of fixed salary {bonus cering), split :nto a div.dend bonus and
a perscnal nonus

DIVIDEND BONUS

The dividend bonus 1s linked to dividends paid for the vesiing year A
cefined number of snagow srares are used s the basis for calculating
e dividend ponus. The calculation of the shadow shares s based on the

target vield for net asset value 3nd the target dividend for tae vesting
yea~. Participants receive a dividend ponus (casn) equal (o the dividend
per snare proposed oy the ooard of directors multinled oy the numpar of
snadow shares,

PERSONAL BONUS

The personal nanus s inded to the arievermnent of nersonal results
and goals, and s set based on an overall evaluation covering eacn
participant’'s personal achievernents and development, the resuits and
cevelopment of the company and Lne umit to wich the participant
belengs, and tne participant's contribution to the Aker-cammunity,

BONUS SHARES

Participants may be awardad snares 1n the company If the comoany
acnleves an INCrease 1N net asset value of more than 10 per cent i

ine relevant year The numoer of potential bonus shares cannol oe
ceterrrired before allocatior takes place. as the final numoer 15 basad
cn e share once on tne deterrmnation date and the participant’s salary
a5 &t &1 December ¢f the vesting year An allocation range is calculated
for the award of bonus shares at Ing beginning of the vesung year, equal
ta 50 per cent of the rarge for <he divicend conus. The fixed allocation
“ange s a gross range Thne parlickant's estimated tax on the free bonus
snares I1s deducted from this gross range, as Ine company nays Lnis
amaunt 17 by way of advance lax deduction Deduction of tax leaves

3 net renge as a basis 1or calculating the nurmber of bonus shares. Tne
value of the ponus shares equals the share price o0 the vesling date



minus 3 deduction 1o take 1nto e 3CCount e .0C<-up eriod {20 per
cent). 1€ 10c<-up peried 1s three years [-om {ne date tne bonus snares
are received. Tne imitalions on e right of parlicipan:s to d soose of te
discounted snaqes freely are registered in VPS as a restriction i fevour
of Le compeny. I¥ a partcioant leaves the company diinmg the lock-un
panod, 50 per cent of the distisuted oorus snazes are returned 1o the
cempany w.thout compensation o tie past:cipant.

QOPTION TO PURCHASE SHARES SUBJECT TO A LOCK-UP PERIOD
Paricinarts may purchase shares in tne comrpany at a orice aqual tc

50 per cenl of the snare prce al e time the snares are surchased.

Te numper of snares 11al €an pe purcnased dunng the vasting year

15 calculated pased on e estimated rumrber of bonus snares Ine
naricinant may theoretcally receive at trne end of the earming vear if ne/
she agnieves Le maximum tonus, Participants choose 1ow Many shales

tey wa—t 1o buy wiinis trer gilocation range, A lock-up sencd of In-ee
years aogles from tne date the snares are -ecenved, The [mitations on e
~ghi of part:cipants to cispose af the snaes freely are registered in VPS
as a restiiction oo favour of the comaany. ~he lock-uge ceriod contnues

to apniy If te paricipant leaves the company during the loc<-up ter:od,
unless Lne company and tne cart:cipent agres oiherwise,

Divdenid conuses ad personal ponuses are recorded as saleny exoenses
AN aliocation of NO® 35 miilion nas been made under other current
Habuities as at 31 Becemiper 2018 11 respect of dividend bonuses and
cersonal conuses inciuding nohday pay and pay-olilax Tne accrual of
poMUs sMaes 15 mecorded as a salary expense 10 lne income statement
distr:buted over the lock-un period. The contra entry 15 otner eguity. It 15
recorded &n accrual related to 2018 bonus shares of NOK 3 muiion

Note 3 | Property, plant and equipment

Office and
R DA RN Art f xlures Property Total
Acquisition cos: as at 1 January 2018 43 104 g 155
Additions - 5 - 5
_Acquisition cost as at 31 December 2018 - 43 10% 8 160
Accumuialed depreciation and write-downs a7 (43> a (61)
Book value as at 31 December 2018 26 66 6 98
Depreciation for the year AES! - 4)
Useful ife 3-Hyears 50 years
[epreciabion plan No depreciations Linear Linear
Note 4 | Shares in subsidiaries
Equity as at 31 Profit before tax Dividend
S R T T Ownershin in % Locallon, city Dec, 2018 % 2008 race ved Book value
Aker Caoital AS 100.0 Fornenu 16 703 1139 3500 16 814
Axer Kvaerner Holding AS 700 Fornebu 7144 (15043 - 5001
Axer BloMarnine AS 100.0 Fornebu 1554 am - 1746
Ader Solutions ASA ” 6.4 Fornebu 7 608 7482 - 687
A<astor ASA Y B.5 fornebu 4317 an - 305
Resource Group internaticnal AS 1000 Forneou 53 (3} - 52
Nor-on Helding AB 543 Steckholm 71 66 17 44
Intellectual Property Holdings AS W00 Forneoi 3 - - 8
Ager Acnigvements AS 1300 Farmeoy 6 - - -
AGE A1 AS 1000 Fornaou - - -
Totaf 3517 24 657

Tne investiments are recordled at the lowest of tair value and cost orice



wlated  Book value  Bo
Cost write-down 2018
G&A Air AS! m (&3] &6 [§}0)} 56 ob
Others - - 1 €)l -
Total investments in associates and joint ventures 67 {n 56 66

The investrnents ave recorded at the lowest of fair value and cost

Note 6 | Other non-current financial assets and receivables from subsidiaries

PTw 2018 2017
Nan-current derivatives - 50
Obner non-currant receivables 7 52
Aker Pensjoniskasse 4 4
Total other non-current financial assets " 106
hi 2018 2007
Aler BioMarine AS 477 Ehe
AGE Air AS 190 -
Arer Kvaerner Holding AS 4 2
Resource Group [nlernational AS - 30
Total non-current raceivables from group companies 671 951
The recetvab.as have matunties of nore tran ong yean, Interest terms on the recervaoles reflect market tenms.,
O ST TR B 2018 0V
Axer Capital AS 3500 1259
Other 5 1
Total current receivables from group companies 3505 1260
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Note 7 | Impairments and reversals of impairment of shares

2018 2017
Axer Kverer Holding AS {1053) b2
Az Solutions 54 m3 84
Axastor ASA (783 5
GEA AIr AS (10} -
Total impairment and reversals of impairments on shares {1254) 760
Note 8 | Cash and cash equivalents
 FO A 2018 207
Unrestricted cash 1289 851
Restricted cash 20 22
Total cash and cash equivalents 1310 873

Note 9 | Shareholders’ equity

e sh'ar@ capitat at 31 December 2018 cangisted of 74 321 862 shares with & nominal value of NOK 28 per snare. Alf snares nave equal vobing rights and are
entitied to dividends. Akar ASA has no vating nghts for its own shares At 31 Decenner 2018, Aker ASA nad 53 070 awn snares, and the number of shares
outstanding was 7 268 792. Al the General Meeting on 26 April 2019, if will be proposed 3 dividend of NOK 2250 per share, tofaiing NOK 14671 million

CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY IN 2018 ARE SHOWN BELOW:

Premium Share  Other paid-n Total paid-n
' i g Share capital on sha-es premiurm caoital camtal Cther eguity Total equity
Equity as at | January 2 0Bl 0] 250 235 17751 20081
Purcnased/sold/bonus
/ ) ; 2
treasury snares o ! 26 (26)
Changes :» estimae pension R
- - 4
naoked direclly against equity v o
Allocation of dividend - as/m (1677}
Profit for the year - 1767 1767
Equity as at 3t December 2081 N 250 | 2 3% 17 B16 20148

In 2018, the company has acquired 50 GO0 treasury shares and sold/distributed 23 279 treasury snares in connection with the employees imcentive

program. Net effect recordec agains: equity was NOK 24 milliorn.

In agddition, accrued snare bonus in 2018 witn NOK 2 miliion "as been recorded as an expense and increased other ecuity. Gther equily has been

redhuced tirough ¢ str bution of profit and loss with the same amaun: and accrues share hanus totally 1as net zero effect on other equity.



THE 20 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018:

ARG e

Mumnoe of shares Per cent
TRG Holding AS' 49 785 635 67.0%
Folxetryadfondet 2300408 4.8%
The Resource Group TRG AST EBY 942 1.2%
JE Morgan Bank Luxenburg S.A BAT 475 13%
Tvenge, Torstan Ingvad 750300 10%
KL= Aksjenorge 288 767 07%
Slate Street Bank & Trust Comoany 460 70 06%
UBS AG 224 547 06%
Handelsoank Nordiska Smanolagsfond 400 000 0.5%
1P Morgan Chase BANK NA London 366 795 05%
J P Morgan Chase BANK N.A. London 29069 04%
Koamrwunal Landsnensjonskasse 313110 04%
Société Générale 08949 0.4%
Norron Sicav - Act.ve 293 814 0.4%
State Street Bane ad Trust Comp 288 960 0.4%
VPF Nordaa Norge Ve-d 266 741 04%
State Street Banx and Trust Comp 247129 03%
Morgan Slantey & Co LLC 231667 03%
KLP Axsienorge indeks 229930 0.3%
Pagano AS 25477 0.3%
Otners 13874 767 18 7%
Tatal 74 321 862 T00%
R e e ¢ 0 CF e Liais e

Note 10 | Tax expense and deferred tax

The table below shows the difference oerween accounting ana tax values at the end of 2018 and 2017 respeciively, changes i these differences.
deferred tax assets ai the end of each year and the change 1n deferred tax assets

SR T, 2018 2007
Provisions and accruals - 50
F.xed asset difterences 1 2
Net pension Hanility/guaran:ee pansion (147) (1743
Capital gains and 1055 reserve 23 41
Total differences i3 @y
Tax losses carried forward (3 565) (3957)
Cther differences [41)] (3
Total deferred tax basis e (3 689) {4041
Net deferred tax 22% (2017: 23%) B (812) (929)
Write-down defer-ed {ax assets 812 929
Recognised deferred tax assets - -

Deferred tax asset is recognised 11 the dalance sheet f future wiilisation of the asset 15 expected.

T1e deferred Lax assets have been written down (o zero as of 31 Decemoer 2018 NOK 834 mallion of tne tax losses carried forward are disouted and
ncluded in tre 2017 figures. The amourt 1s removed in the 2078 figures. ’

i3



ESTIMATED TAXABLE INCOME

: T e 2018 207
Profi: before tax 1767 1359
Pa-manent aifferences (2 208) rgviey
Changa in temporary differences Q7 11893
Estimated taxabie income (458) BA
Tax pavaile 23% i the crofit and loss accout 2017 24% -

Tax payable 25% in the balance sheet (ZDIHT: 24%) - -
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

S FANTEE S (U TR S 2018 2007
Tax pavable i the profit and loss account -

Change In geferred tax -

Total tax expense - -
RECONCILIATION OF EFFEKCTIVE TAX RATE IN THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

L L R 2018 2017
23% tax on profit before rax (2017 24%) (406) (3743
23 % tax on permanent differences (2017, 24%,; 508 482
Cnange earl e years 13

Cnangein tax rate 3D 40)
Cnange In urecognised deferred tax assat (78) 08}
Estimated tax expense - -
Effective tax rate (“ax expense compared wilh prafl / loss belore tax) 0% 0%

Note 11 | Pension expenses and pension liabilities

Accoqding Lo tne Norwegian Occupationa: Pensions Acl {Lov om tenestepens|on), tne cormgany is required Lo provide 8 pension 0ian fo- all its
emoloyees, The company's pension plans meets e statutory requirements Axer ASA primarily covers ILs pensian habiities firolgh a groun pension
plan provided bty 2 e inscrance company. From 1 .anuary 2018, the company changed the pensicn schame to a defined contributicn plan. Tae charge
had effect for persors up to 58 vears old a5 at 1 anuary 2018. The emplovess included in the definea betefis plan received paid-up rolicies accorcing
w earned rghts from the defined benefit plan. For accourting purposes. the change in scheme was weated 25 a change in olan and included 33
persons. The pension scheme for parsons above 58 yvears is treated as a definec benefit plan and includes 4 active persans as of 31 Jecember 2008, In
add:t.on. Aker ASA ras uninsured pension liabikties, which gives ngnts to defined “uture benehits,

AKTUARIAL CALCULTATIONS HAVE BEEN UNDERTAKEN BASED ON THE FOLLOWING ASSUMPTIONS 2018 2087
[nscount rate 2.8% 74%
Wage icreases 2.8% 25%
Social secur:ty base adiustment / inflat:on 2.5% 2.5%
Pension adjustment 0.0% Q0%

Tre actuanial assumptions are vased on assumplions commonly used in the Iife insurance industry witn respect 1c demographic faciors
1he discount rate 1s based on the Norwegian trgn-guality corporate bond rate.

PERCENTAGE COMPOSITION OF PENSION ASSETS 2018 2017
Bonds 84.2% 86 7%
Shares 8.2% T5%

Propertyfathor 7.6% 5.8%



PENSION EXPENSES

e e 2008 2017
Presertt value of this year's peision accruals [¢-)] {e)
Change in oian = profit and 1035 a6Co. nis - {
nterest ex0ense o4 accrieq pensicn hatilities [e3) B)
Expectea return on pension fuads 1 2
Net pension expenses defined benefit plan a0y G0y
Pension experses defines contributicns plan (5 -
Total pension expenses (-} {15) -

NET PENSION LIABILITIES AS AT 31 DECEMBER

T e 2018 2007
Present value of accrued pension kabilibies 101 (124)
Vaiue of pension tunds 43 43
Net pension liabitities ? ) (58} 81
Nurnber of individuals covered 63 65

Tne plans mcude 3 actrive and 60 refired persons.

Pens:on funds are 1vvested 1 accordance with the general guidelres for Iife msurance comparves. Recorded pension iabilities aze calculated on the
basis of estimated future pension hanriies and accrued in accordance with generally accested accounting principies. The pension hizilily recorded in
[ne accounts is not the same as the vested pensio™ nights as at 31 Decemper,

Note 12 | Other non-current provisions

5 = by . 208 2017
US pension guarantée provision 89 93
Total other non-current provisions 89 93

Aker ASA nad earlier signed a guarantee commutment regarding tae US pension fund Kvaerner Consolidated Reti-ement Plan with Kvaerner US Inc
(KLSI). As of Decernber 2015, A<er Maritime Firance AS (AME") Leok over the pension haolily from KUSHin order to avoid accelerated oayments under
tne A<er ASA guarantee because of a potential pankruptcy of KUSI Aker ASA contirued (o guarantee for the Labity and snali cover for alt AME's
expenses related to the pension olan, .0 2017, Acer Maritime Finance AS merged with The Resource Group 1RG AS ("1RG"), and the commutment of
Aker ASA to cover ne experses s now against TRG. As at 31 Decemper 2018, Aker ASA nas made a provizion of NOK 83 mition in the balance sneet

Note 13 | Non-current liabilities to subsidiaries

BT L L it 2018 207
Aker Capital AS 2 367 1253
Alker Holding Start 2 AS 13 13

Total non-current liabilities to group companies 2 380 1272




Note 14 | External interest-bearing debt

interest Maturity 2018 207
Bond AKERTZ Stpor + 3.25% July 2019 - 149G
Bond AKERID Nibor + 4% June 202 700 700
Bond AKER13 Nigor + 3.5% May 2020 1000 1000
Bond AKERCI Nipar + 5% Septemper 2022 1000 100G
Bond AKER14 Mibor + 2685% January 2023 2 000
Loan expenses n 6)
Totat non—current external interest-bearing liahilities 4 679 4184
Bond AKERT Nibor +3.5% June 2018 - 1300
Bond AKERT2 Stigor + 3.25% Juty 2019 1 455
L oan expenses m [t
Total current external interest-bearing liabilities 1454 1299

Treleans are all denominated i NOK, except for the AKERIZ pond that s denorninated 1 SLK. The comipany 15 11 1o breaches to its covenants as of

31 Cecember 2012,

Note 15 | Other current liabilities

E T A T S S plott:] 27
Accrued inierest externa 34 33
Other accrued expenses 33 23
Foreign exchange dervatives 19 -
Qther 35 38
Total other current Habilities Az 5B
Note 16 | Guarantee obligations

Srmln Tl 208 207
Loan guaranlees 308 308
Otner guarantees 32 -
Total guarantee obligations 340 308

L oan guarantzes as at 31 Decernber 2018 consisted rnainiy of guarantees reiated to Ager BioManne AS with NOK 305 mithion.

Note 17 | Financial market risk

The company are exposed to several types of finarcial risk, the most
sigrificant of which are credit, [ quidity, foreign exchange ard interast

rate nisk. The nurpose of risk managemnent IS to measuse and manage
firancial nisks in a rehaile manner, in order to .ncrease predictability and
simdltaneously mimimise any negative impacts an Aker's f:iparcial resuits,
Aker ASA has loan and guarantee commitments thal contam equity
covenants, At 31 Decemper 2018, Aker ASA was 1n compliance with all
such covenants. See also Note 6 10 the groun accounts. A<er ASA secures
a part of net exposure in cash flow in foreign exchange and normally not

balance itams. Cash flow, including detectable struct.ral fransactiors
and possible loars in foreign exchange are secured within fixed intervals.
In total, Axer ASA nas hedged USD 35 millien net by means of forward
contracts and options 0 addition, Aker ASA has an interast- and foreign
currency agreement of SEK 1350 miliion. As at 31 Decemnier 2018, the
income stalernent shows an aet loss of NOK 65 millian on ali foreign

exchange agreement. Unrealised gain :s included 1n aother cur-ent

racervatles of NOK 1 ~ithon, and unrealised loss of 19 mithon s included
n other curent babilities.



Note 18 | Shares owned by board members and key executives

See Note 33 <o the “inarc.al staternents of the Grocp.

Note 19 | Salary and other remuneration to the Board of directors, nomi-
nation committee, CEO and other senior executives

See Nute 33 ¢ the financal slatemerts of the Group.

Note 20 | Disputes and contingent liabilities

There are no snaw” Najo” disputes or cantirgent laoihities as at 3112 8.

Note 21| Events after the balance sheet date

There have not geen any other major events after Lhe balsnce sheet date, See also Note 24 in the financal statement of the Group.



Directors’ responsibility statement

Today, the board of drectors and the president and chie’ executive sfficer reviewes and approved the board of dvectors’ report ana
the consolidated and separate annual financial statements of Aker ASA, consclicated and parent company for tre year ending and as
of 31 December 2018,

Axar ASAs corsclidated finarcial statements Fave oeen prepares in accordance with IFRSs and IFRICs adepted by the £U as well as
additional disclosure requirements in the Norwegian Accounting Act and as such are to be applied per 21 Decerrber 2018, The separate
financizl statements o Aker ASA anc the parent company nave been orepared in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and
Norweglan acceunung standards as at 31 Degember 2018. The board of directors’ report for the group and the parent company satisfy
wirh rthe reguirements of the Norwegian Accounting Act ard Norwegian accountng standard ne. 16, as at 3t December 2018,

To the best of our knowledge:

v Tke consolidates and separate annual financial statements for 2018 have been pregared in accoroance with applicane
accounting standards.

v The consolidated and separate annual financial statements give a true and farr overali view of the assets, hal | ties, financial
pasiticn and pref t/1oss of the group and for the parent company as of 31 December.

»  The board of directors’ report provides a true and fair review of the
- - development and performance of the business and the position of the group and the parent company,
- —the principal risks and urcerta nties the group and the parent company may face.

Fornebu, 29 March 2019
Aker ASA
Kjell Inge Rekke (sign) Finn Berg Jacobsen (sign) Anne Marie Cannon (sign) Kristin Krohn Devold (sign)
Chairman Deputy Chairman Director Director
Karen Simon (sign) Atle Tranay (sign) Tommy Angeltveit (sign) Amram Hadlda (sign)
Director Director Director Director
Arnfinn Stense (sign) @yvind Eriksen (sign)

Director Presicent and CEQ
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To the Annual Shareholder's Meeting of Aker ASA

Independent auditor’s report

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinon

We have audited the financial statements of Aker ASA. The financial statements comprise:

= The financial staternents of the parent company Aker ASA (the Company), which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, and incame statement and cash flow staternent for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial staternents, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, and

+ The consolidated financial statements of Aker ASA and its subsidiaries {the Group), which
comptise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, and income statement, statement of
total comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, cash flow for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial siaterents, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our apinion:
+ The financial statements are prepared In accordance with the law and regulations.

+ The accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year theh ended in accaordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards
and practices generally accepted in Norway.

+ The accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EUJ.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway, including International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and the
Group as required by laws and regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the
context of cur audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

RPN AS, & Norwagian Lratad Aty compdny ard mgrmbiar Lt of e KPMG netwsre of ngepanden mamosr iors atiiated Do Ehverum Mn 4 Pan Stoed
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KPMIG Aker ASA

1. Assessmant of the canying value of property, plant and equipment and goodwill

Reference is made tc Note 2 Basis for preparation and estimates and assumptions, Note 5 Accounting
principles, Note. 12 Impairments, Note 15 Property, plant and equipment, Note 16 Intangible assets,
and the Board of Directors' report. '

The key audit matier How the mattor was addressed in our audit

The impairment assassment of property, plant Audit procedures in this area, performed by the

and equipment and goodwill is considered to be | group team and component auditors in othey

a risk area mainly due to the size of the listed subsidiaries, included:

balances and the economic environmentin the | s  assessing management's process and

Group's operating segments, particularly oit & results for identification and classfication of

gas business segments. cash generating units; |

o evaluating managernent's assessment of

The identification of indicators of impairment and impairment indicators;

the preparation of the estimate of the recoverable | o where impainment indicators were identified

amount of an asset volves significant or where impairment testing was required,

uncertairties and subjective udgments, which assessing the mathematical and

requires special audit cansideration. methodological integrity of management's
impairment models and the reasonableness
of discount rates applied with reference to
market data;

» using KPMG valuation specialists on the
audit of certain valuations;

+« evaluating the historical accuracy of
management's budgets and forecasts in
order to challenge management on the
current year cash flow forecasts;

+ evaluating and challenging management on
the appropriateness of the key assumptions,
such as for example growth assumptions
and residual values, in the cash flow
forecasts; and .

+ evaluating the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures in the
financial statements related to the camrying
value of property, plant and equipment and
goodwill.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has
property, plant and equipment with carying
values of NOK 18 262 million and goodwill of
NOK 7 506 million.

The Group has recognised impairment charges
of property, plant and equipment and goodwill
during the year of NOK 172 million and

NOK 80 million respectively.

From the audit evidence obtained, we consider
managemant's assessment of the camrying value
of property, plant and equipment and goodwill to
be in accordance with the requirements under

the relevant accounting standards.

2. Construction contract estimatas and revenue recognition

Reference is made to Note 2 Basis for preparation and estimates and assumptions, Note 5 Accounting
principles, and Note 10 Operating revenue,

The key audit mafter How the maller was addrassed in our audit

IFRS 15 Revenue frorm contracts with customers | Our audit procedures, performed by the group
('IFRS 15") was implemented by the Group on 1 | team and component auditors in other listed

January 2018. This new accounting standard subsidiaries, included:
ir:'tmdu_qas a 'five step model' for revenue + assessing the implementation of IFRS 15,
 recognition and new requirements and guidance including the Group's updated accounting
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relevant to project accounting estimates and
judgements.

IFRS 15 has introduced & higher degree of
judgment in determining the number of
performance obligations which can impact the
timing and amount of revenue recognition for
certain contracts.

Agcounting for long term construction contracts
invoives management estimates and judgrments
which are often complex and involve
assumptions regarding future events for which
there may be little or no external corroborative
evidence available.

The key judgements and estimates applied by
management include their assessment of the
stage of project complation as well as assessing
the estimated future contract revenue and cost
outcomes. Revenue and cost outedmes factored
in management's forecasts include:

* incentive payments;

+ key periormance indicators;

+ liquidated damages; and

= expected fulfilment cost.

As such, these contract accounting estimates
also require significant attention during the audit
and-are subject to a high degree of auditor
judgment.

policies, transition impact assessment,
application to construction and service
contract accounting and disclosures;

» for financially significant contracts and any
contracts with a reasonable possibility of
being in a significant loss-making position,
we applied professional skepticism and
critically assessed the accounting estimates
and judgments against the requirements of
IFRS 15;

= challenging management's assumptions in
determining if certain contracts contain
single or multiple performance obligations
by oblaining, reading, and critically
assessing the terms and conditions of
relevant contractual documents;

=« assessing contractual revenue forecasts
including corroborating those forecasts with
reference to signed contracts and variation
orders;

» assessing variable considerations estimates
included in forecasted revenue against the
requirements of IFRS 15;

» obtained and read the terms and conditions
of significant contracts and comparing these
1o management's assessment of the
contract forecasts;

+ evaluating management's process for
assessing measurement of progress and the
method applied;

+ challenging management on estimated
recovery of incentive payments, incentives
linked to key performance indicators and
recognition of liquidated damages;

» reading and discussing project repons with
management and comparing current
forecasts to historical outcomes where
relevant;

» challenging management on the estimate of
cost to complete and the risk assessment
related to forecast cost; and

+ evaluating the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures in the
financial statements related to IFRS 15
transition effects, revenue from construction
contracts and service contracts.

From the audit evidence obtained, we consider
construction contract estimates and revenue
recognition to be consistent with the
requirements under the relevant accounting
standards,

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, with the exception of the financial statements and the Independent

auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance congtusion thereon, with the exception of our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Reqguirements below.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
informaticn and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to repoet that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responstbilities of the Board of Directors and the Managing Director for the Finandial Statements

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director {Management} are responsible for the preparation
in accordance with law and regulations, including fair presentation of the financial statements of the
Company in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway, and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
of the Group in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU,
and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's and
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem. The financial statements of the Company use the going concemn basis of accounting insofar
as it is not likely that the enterprise will cease operations. The financial statements of the Group use
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sc.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finandial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reascnabie assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway, including I1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenial if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial staternents.

As part of an audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway, including 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

» identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. We design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
cbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far aur opinion. The
risk of nat detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overmide of intemal control.

» cbtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are apprepnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
cpinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s or the Group's internal control.

» evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the geing congem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company and the
Group's ability to continue as a going cancern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty
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exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements o, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
Heowever, future events ar conditions may cause the Company and the Group to cease to
continue as a going cohcem,

* avaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant ¢eficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a staternent that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we detemmine those matters that were of
mast significance in the audit of the financial statements of the curmrent period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We dascribe these matters in our auditer's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Cther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Opirdon on the Board of Directors’ report

Based on our audit of the financial statements as described above, it is our opinion that the
infermation presented in the Board of Directors’ report and in the statements on Corporate
Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility conceming the financial statements, the going
concern assumption, and the proposal for the allocation of the profit is consistent with the financial
statements and complies with the law and regulations.

Opirnior: on Registration and Documentation

Based on our audit of the financial statements as described above, and controf procedures we have
considered necessary in accordance with the international Standard on Assurance Engagements
(ISAE) 3000, Assurance Engagemeants Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Irformation, it is our opinion that management has fulfilled its duty to produce a preper and clearly sat
out registration and docurmentation of the Company's accounting information in accordance with the
law and bookkeeping standards and practices generally accepted in Norway.

Oslo, 29 March 2019
KPMG AS

Arve Gevoll
State Authorised Public Accountant

Note: This translation from Norwegian has been prepared for information purposes only,
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Combined income statement

Naota 2018 2007
Operating revenues 2 194 -
Operaling expenses (254) (2445
Deorecisiion and wrtedowr {18) (4
Operating profit (78) (258)
Dividends recervad 3 2174 5aa
Ctmar fingnical items 4 (247 {208)
Value cnange of shares and fund gams B a (383) {(289)
Profit before tax B 1467 833
INCOME tax BXpense 6 - -
Profit for the year 1467 833
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Combined balance sheet as at 31 December

Director Presicent and CEO

Note 208 2017

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment N B i 8 328 149
Neresi-neanng ren-curent recavatles g 759 136
Fingnoiai imtecest-frer ngn-current assets 89 154 146
=quify Ivest ments 7 20082 19578
Total financial non-current assets 20996 21030
Totai non-current assets 21324 279
Interest-free current recevables 192 127
Interest-nea ing curent recevables g 225 196
Casn and casn eguivalents i0 1945 1232
Total current assets 2363 1555
Total assets 23686 22735
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Paid-in capital 1 230 2 331
Retained earings 10 215 10448
Total equity 12 546 12779
Non-current provisions 12 147 174
Interagi-pearng non-curent haoilities 13 6 837 G224
Total nen-current liakilities 6984 6358
Interesi-free curent Habilities 12 1833 i 433
Interest-bearning current anilities 13 2323 2hG
Total current liabilities 4156 3558
Total equity and liabilities 23 686 22735

Fornebu, 29 March 2019
Aker ASA
Kjell Inge Rekke (sign) Finn Berg Jacobsen (sign) Anne Marie Cannon (sign) Kristin Krohn Devoid (sign)
Chalrmar Deputy Chairman Director Director
Karen Simon {sign) Atle Trangy (sign) Tommy Angeitveit (sign) Amram Hadlda (sign)
Director Director Director Director
Arnfinn Stenso {sign) Byvind Eriksen (sign}



Notes to the financial statements

Note 1| Accounting principles and basis for preparation

The comaired financat statements of Aker ASA ard rolding corpanios
rayg been prepared o wresenl Ader's Inencal pasition as a parent holdng
company. The radimonal f nar.cial statemenst of the parert corpany

nas peen extended Lo include ail sunordinate admin strative service arg
hoiding comoan es that ae whaolly-owned oy Aker ASA ana ~ave nalance
sheels contamng only mvesinents, bank deposits and debt,

THE COMPANIES THAT HAVE BEEN COMBINED ARE AS FOLLOWS:
= Ader ASA

o Ager Capital AS

= Axer Holding Start 2 AS

= Axer US Se-vices LLC

= Resource Groun [niermational AS

= ACE AIrAS

Note 2 | Operating revenues

.-

To tne extent apolicavie, tne acccuntig arinceoies of A<er ASA ang
NOICING COMDAanIes g e oased 0 178 Same aCCounhNg D ACiples an
AreT ASA Ses accouniing prnciples of Axer ASA onpage 98 One
excention from Aker ASA's acccunting prmoinies 1s trat (e acjulsition
ad dispasal of companies s part of the ordinary ousiness of Akes ASA
and hoidimg comoanies, Conseqguently, gans on sales ¢f shares are
classilied as operating revenies in the combined -nceme stazement,
Gains and lasses are only reccgrised when assets are sold 1o tni-d
partas Trs s cre redsor way tne accounts of Aker ASA and hoding
corrpanies may show different historical cost for share 1~vestmants
thar the company accounts of the underlying companies inckuded ¢
the comihbined financia! statements. Group corininutions apgroved after
tne oalance sheet date are accountead for -1 1ne year of approval

T 2018 207
Gainon sale of shares 1 Forebuparten Holding AS 194 -
Total operating revenues 194 -
Note 3 | Dividends received

: e . 2018 2017
Aner BP ASA 1465 820
Ocean Yield ASA 613 603
American Snicpang Company ASA 79 AN
Fornebuparien Holding AS - 45
Phlly Shipyard ASA - 15
Otner 17 14
‘Total dividends recelved 2174 1588




Note 4 | Other financial items

2018 2007
Intarest Income from supsidiares 43 31
Otner interest (333 (253
Civer fingrial tems 42 13
Totat other financiaf items (247 (209

Cther fmancialberms in 208 inclueed 3 gainan toisl retuen swan (RS sgreements of NCATH6 million znd loss on foreign excnange incluaing medge

sistrumenrs totalng NOK 1027 mlion,

Clner “mancal tems in 2017 :inciuded a gair on foreign excrange i~cludng hadge insiru~enis totaling NOK 68 mdl 2n, impairment on Solszad O¥s-ore

ASA convertinle loan NOK 31 wllon and a toss on TRS agreements of NOK 18 mill:on.

Note 5 | Value change of shares and fund gains

e 2018 207
Aker Solutions ASA (drect mvestment) {113} B4
Akastor ASA [direct mvestment) (78) 5
Solslad Farstad ASA / Farstad Shipping ASA (253) {325)
Cxense ASA an 27N
ine kuture Groun AbSA - {Z0)
Amencan Suomng Comoany ASA 41 5
17ygg I Holdings Corp (89) -
Gther changes in value of snares 22)
Fund gais - Nar-on Targel,/Seiect 148 -
Total (383) (283

Note 6 | Tax

Deferred Lax asset 15 Incorporated i the balance sheet 'f pudgets and olans indicale tat the assel will be utilised 11 t1e future, The deferred tax assets

nave been wrtlen down to zero as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017



Note 7 | Equity investments

[vestment

Owaership iq Numge- of docsvalue  Per share mar«e: markef value ~
oe el shares INOK mllier) vateg {NOK) NGO o)

Industriat Holdings

Axer Soluticns ASA 2833 772335350 IRE6 3063
Arastor ASA Y 2319 7723353 12.06 1609
Kvzerner ASA * 281 7725353 12.06 93
Asgr Kegorigr Holdng AS T 7000 3460 5003
Awgr Soluticns ASA T 6.37 17 331 762 687 IHE6 687
Axastor ASA - 852 23331762 305 306 305
Aker BP ASA 40,00 144 019 005 8967 21830 A3
Aker BioMarine AS 100020 69053 544 241 - 240
Ocean Yielc 61 65 98242 575 z 457 53.20 5816
Total industrial investments 18 318 45 825

Financial fnvestments

FP kiendom AS 508
Axer Energy AS 471
Amencan Supong Comoany ASA a7
Allgn AS 17
Solstac Offshore ASA 1
G&A AIF AS 56
Prully Shioyard ASA 51
Nerren Holding AB 44
Cogrute AS 432
Irygg 107 Holdings t Corp 20
Cxanse ASA i3
Otner equity investments 24

Total shares and long-term equity investments 20082

Note 8 | Property, plant and equipment and financial interest-free
non-current assets
Finarcial interest- Prooerty, plant

R frae fixed asseats and equioment Total 2018 total 2007
Pension funds 1 - 1
Interest-free nan-current recevanies from suosidianes w3 - 153 95
Other %28 o 328 200
Total 154 328 482 295

In 2018, procerty, plant ana equipmentincludes a1 arolane of NOK 183 million. The itern alsg includes invertary, software, office machines and real
estate of NOK 115 mithon (NGK 118 mitlion in 20173

=g deprec:ation 10 2018 was NOK 18 mitlhon (NOK 14 myllion :q 2017).
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Note 9 | Interest-bearing receivables and interest-free non-current receivables

i~terast-peaning imerasi-neanng

current Gn-curent
I recavanles reCeivalles Total 2018 ‘pial 2017
Receivanles -ar sunsichiares 60 328 388 B25%
Recewvaple American Shiooing Campany ASA 58 58 55
Rerewaole Ocean Harvest Invest AS 367 367 <04
Otrer recevables 107 £ 7 218
Total 235 759 985 1803

INTEREST-BEARING RECEIVABLES AND INTEREST-FREE NON-CURRENT RECEIVASLES FROM SUBSIDIARIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2018:

inlarest-oearing [rierest-free
interest-neanng non-current Total non-currant Total re¢eivables
current receivaples recenables  interest-bearing “ecevenles from subsidiaries
FP Eiendom AS 60 - 60 60
Mg BioMarnng AS - 324 324 153 477
Other compan:as - 4 4 a
Total 60 28 388 153 541

Note 10 | Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenls amcunted to NOK 1945 miliion as at the end of 2018, OF tus total, NOK 20 mullion wee restricted deposis.

Note 11 | Shareholders' equity

Number of Par valug lolal par value
SNGEIES {NOK) (NOK ulhon)
Share capilal 74 32" 862 28 7 GBI
Own snares (BIGI 28 [}
Other paid-in capital 252
Total paid-in capital / shares outstanding 74 268 792 2331
All shares nave eaual voting fights and are entitled to dndends, Aker ASA hag no voting nghts for i1s own sna‘es.
A dividend of NOK 22.50 per share, NOK 1 €71 millior 11 tota, will oe oroposed at the Annual General Meeting 01 26 Apni 209,
Note 12 | Interest-free current and non-current liabilities
I T Current Nor-current Total 2018 folal 2017
Pension Iao ines 58 58 81
Guarantee hatility The Rescurce Croup TRG AS - B9 89 a3
Dividend 1671 1671 1337
Otrer liabilities 162 162 102
147 19849 163

Total 18335




Note 13 | Interest-bearing current and non-current liabilities

INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES TO EXTERNAL CREDITORS IS SHOWN BELOW:

2018 2017

NON-CLT et ponds 4 700 4169
Segurad sar« leans 2172 2681
Caoitalised feas (35) 27
Total non-current interest-bearing Hahilities 6837 6224
Curenf oands 1455 1300
Secured car< toans (3-year loan witn anriuzl rollover) 869 821
Canitaiised fees [L)] {22
Total current interest-bearing liabilities 2323 REH:]
Jotal Interest-bearing liabilities 9160 8343
INSTALMENT SCHEDULE FOR EXTERNAL INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES, BY TYPE:

ST N H Bonds Secured ban« fcans Accried fees Toatal
209 1455 869 4] 2323
2020 1700 (3) 1697
2ca - 2172 (14) 2158
2022 1000 - (%) 995
2023 2000 (a2 1988
Total 6155 3041 {36} 9160
Note 14 | Risk

THE BALANCE SHEET OF AKER ASA AND HOLDING COMPANIES 1S SPLIT INTO TWO SEGMENTS:
2018 2017
ndustrial mvestments 7% 7%
Firancial investments 23% 23%
Specification financial investments:
Funds- and equity investments 7% 9%
Casn BY% 5%
Inieresl-oeanng receivanies 4% 7%
Fixed assets, deferrec tax assets and interest-free ecevanles 3% 2%

The businesses witnin each category are exnosed o macro-development

I ther respective Markel segments,

1he total boo« value of the assets of Axer ASA and holding comnanies
are NOK 23 686 million including tne baok value for irdustrial
nvestments of NOK 1& 318 million The book value and market vaiue

of each mvestment mcluded in sadustr al ovestments are specf edin
Note 7 The total market valle of tae Industrial Investments, NOK 45 625
milkon, is sian ficantly higher than the bock value, The boox val.e of
the unhisted company Axar BioMaring AS 15 includad 1n tne total marxet

value. In the case of Ader ASA's direct investment in the Lsted company

Aker Solations ASA (6.37 per cent owrership r~terest) ard Akastor ASA
(8.52 pe- cenl ownership interast), the book value 15 equal to the market
value,

The pogk value of Financial investments s NOK 5 359 mil ion Casn
represents 8 per cent of the boo« value of fotal assets and 36 per cent of

Financial ivestments.

See alsa Mote 6 ta the corsoldzied financ al staterents for Aker ASa&,



Independent auditor's report

T KPMG AS
E Suikagalcvinen &
¥ Poetnous 750 S
2306 Osly

To the board of Aker ASA

Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Audit of the combined financial statements of Aker ASA and hotding companies

Opinion
We have audited the combined financial statements of Aker ASA and holding companies, which

comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, the income statement for the year then ended, a
summary of key assumptions used as basis for preparation and other notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying combined financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
basis for preparation of the financial reporting defined in the introduction to the combined financial
statements and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Aker ASA and holding
companies as at 31 December 2018, and the financial performance for the year then ended.

Without modifying our opintor, we draw attention to the basis for preparation of the financial reporting,
defined in the intreduction to the combined financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. As a result, the combined financial statements may not be suitable for any other purpose.

Basis for Qpinion

Ve conducted our audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and pragtices
generally accepted in Norway, included International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Combined Financial Staterments section of our report, We are independent of Aker ASA
and holding companies as required by laws and regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
respansibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

Aker ASA has prepared financial statements faor the year ended 31 December 2018, comprising parent
financial statements prepared in accordance with Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting
standards and practices generally accepted in Norway and consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU. We have issued a
saparate auditor’s report on the statutory financial statements to the shareholders of Aker ASA dated
29 March 2019,

Responsibilities of The Board of Directors for the Combined Financial Statements

The Board of Directors (management) are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
cormbined financial staternents in accordance with the basis for preparation of the financial reporting
defined in the introduction of the combined financial statements, and for such internal controf as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the combined financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error,

s
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Combined Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements
as a whole are free frorm material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards
and practices generally accepted in Norway, including |SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenral if, individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these combined financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway, included International Standards on Auditing {ISAs), we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the combined financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. We design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for ene resulting from etror, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controt.

s obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Aker ASA and holding companies' internal control.

« gvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the combined financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Beard of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during cur audit.

Oslo, 29 March 2018
KPMG AS

Arve Gevoll
State Authorised Public Accountant

[Translation has been made for informatior: purposes only]




